
There is an induction hearing loop system available in all meeting rooms.  Some of the 
systems are infra-red operated, if you wish to use this system then please contact 
Paulina Ford on 01733 452508 as soon as possible.

AB
STRONG AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

TUESDAY 24 NOVEMBER 2015
7.00 PM

Bourges/Viersen Room - Town Hall

AGENDA
Page No

1. Apologies for Absence

2. Declarations of Interest and Whipping Declarations

At this point Members must declare whether they have a disclosable 
pecuniary interest, or other interest, in any of the items on the agenda, 
unless it is already entered in the register of members’ interests or is a 
“pending notification “ that has been disclosed to the Solicitor to the Council. 
Members must also declare if they are subject to their party group whip in 
relation to any items under consideration.

3. Minutes of the Meeting held on 16 September 2015 3 - 8

4. Call In of any Cabinet, Cabinet Member or Key Officer Decisions

The decision notice for each decision will bear the date on which it is published 
and will specify that the decision may then be implemented on the expiry of 3 
working days after the publication of the decision (not including the date of 
publication), unless a request for call-in of the decision is received from any two 
Members of a Scrutiny Committee or Scrutiny Commissions.  If a request for 
call-in of a decision is received, implementation of the decision remains 
suspended for consideration by the relevant Scrutiny Committee or 
Commission.

5. Portfolio Progress Report: Cabinet Member for City Centre 
Management, Culture and Tourism

9 - 18

6. Selective Licensing Consultation 19 - 114

7. Community Connectors 115 - 128

8. Forward Plan of Executive Decisions 129 - 152

9. Work Programme 2015/2016 153 - 158

Public Document Pack



10. Date of Next Meeting

Wednesday 20 January 2015

Recording of Council Meetings: Any member of the public may film, audio-record, take 
photographs and use social media to report the proceedings of any meeting that is open to the 
public. A protocol on this facility is available at: 

http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/documents/s21850/Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%
20Recording.pdf

Emergency Evacuation Procedure – Outside Normal Office Hours

In the event of the fire alarm sounding all persons should vacate the building by way of the nearest escape 
route and proceed directly to the assembly point in front of the Cathedral.  The duty Beadle will assume 
overall control during any evacuation, however in the unlikely event the Beadle is unavailable, this 
responsibility will be assumed by the Committee Chair.

Committee Members:

Councillors: A Iqbal, P Faustino, R Bisby, L Forbes (Chairman), S Martin, C Ash (Vice Chairman) 
and J R Fox

Substitutes: Councillors: S Lane, B Saltmarsh, N Khan and P Thacker

Further information about this meeting can be obtained from Paulina Ford on telephone 01733 
452508 or by email – paulina.ford@peterborough.gov.uk

%5Cdemapp01
%5Cdemapp01


AB
MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE

STRONG AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
HELD IN THE

BOURGES & VIERSEN ROOMS, TOWN HALL, PETERBOROUGH
ON

WEDNESDAY 16 SEPTEMBER 2015

Present: Councillors: Forbes (Chairman), Ash (Vice Chairman) Iqbal, Faustino, Bisby, 
Martin, and J R Fox 

Officers in 
Attendance:

Also Present:

Adrian Chapman 
Belinda Child
Clair George
Dania Castagliuolo 

Councillor Hiller 

Councillor Sandford
Councillor Jamil
Karl Bowden
Sgt. Chris Huggins
Oliver Sainsbury 
Hani Mustafa

Service Director for Adult Services and Communities
Head of Housing & Health Improvement  
Senior Road Safety Officer 
Democratic Services Officer 

Cabinet Member for Growth, Planning, Housing and 
Economic Development 
Group Leader, Liberal Democrats
Group Leader, Labour 
Safer Peterborough Partnership, Deputy Manager 
Cambridgeshire Constabulary 
Youth Councillor
Youth Councillor 

1. Apologies for Absence  

There were no apologies for absence. 

2. Declarations of Interest and Whipping Declarations 

Item 8 – Proposed Selective Licensing Scheme for the Gladstone, Millfield, New England and 
Eastfield areas of Peterborough 

Councillor Jamil, who was in attendance at the meeting as Labour group leader, declared an interest in 
Item 8 on the agenda and advised the Committee that he had obtained dispensation from the Monitoring 
Officer to speak on this item.

Councillor Khan and Councillor Nadeem were also in attendance, in the public gallery, and declared an 
interest in item 8 on the agenda, they advised the Committee that they had also obtained dispensation 
from the Monitoring Officer to speak on this item. 

3. Minutes of the Meeting Held on 22 July 2015

The minutes of the meeting held on 22 July 2015 were approved as an accurate record.

4. Call in of any Cabinet, Cabinet Member or Key Officer Decisions 

There were no requests for call-in to consider.

3



The Chairman advised the Committee that there had been a request from Officers to move Item 8, 
Proposed Selective Licensing Scheme for the Gladstone, Millfield, New England and Eastfield areas of 
Peterborough up to Item 5 on the agenda, due to the amount of public interest in the item.

The Committee agreed for Item 8 to be moved up the agenda to item 5.

8. Proposed Selective Licensing Scheme for the Gladstone, Millfield, New England and Eastfield 
areas of Peterborough

The Cabinet Member for Growth, Planning, Housing and Economic Development provided the 
Committee with a statement, which included the following proposal:

 To defer the decision to implement Selective Licensing and instead to develop proposals for a 
new scheme which would take full advantage of the opportunities created through the new 
legislation. This would enable the Council to consider how other areas of Peterborough might be 
impacted by the new eligibility criteria for Selective Licensing which may lead to a broader 
scheme.

Under these new arrangements, the Council would be required to consult publicly and in full 
again on the new proposals, and take in to account the outcomes of that consultation before a 
final decision was made. Details of this new consultation would be announced shortly.

It was confirmed that if the new proposals affected more than 20% of Peterborough’s private 
rented housing under new regulations they would require Secretary of State approval, prior to 
implementation of the scheme.

ACTION AGREED

The Committee noted the Statement.

RECOMMENDATIONS  

1) The Committee endorsed the statement made by the Cabinet Member for Growth, Planning, 
Housing and Economic Development and recommended the following:

 That the Cabinet deferred the decision on selective licensing to enable further work to be carried 
out;

 that all areas of Peterborough were assessed for eligibility for the Selective Licensing Scheme 
and any new proposals for Selective Licensing included all areas which had evidence to support 
the implementation of the Selective Licensing Scheme;

 that all work was to be carried out in partnership with Members, Residents, Tenants and 
Landlords, and 

 that an update on progress was brought to the Committee at its meeting on 20 January 2016.

2) The Committee recommended to the Service Director for Adult Services and Communities that 
a Task and Finish Group was set up to support officers in gathering up to date evidence on 
areas affected by rogue landlords and identify the boundary which was most appropriate for the 
Selective Licensing Scheme to be implemented within the city.

5. Portfolio Progress Report from Cabinet Member for Growth, Planning, Housing, and Economic 
Development

The Cabinet Member for Growth, Planning, Housing and Economic Development introduced the report 
which provided the Committee with a progress report on work carried out on matters relevant to the 
Committee. 

4



The Head of Housing and Health Improvement highlighted the following key points within the report:

Housing Programmes 

 Empty Homes which included:

- Empty Dwelling Management Orders
- Empty Homes Partnership – this scheme had now come to an end, whilst in operation it saw 

the return to use of 7 long term empty properties.
- Consulting with other Councils and Shared Service Arrangements 
- Council Tax Partnership – Owners of empty properties were notified of certain milestones 

within their Council Tax account.

 Housing Related Support which included:

- Continued contribution to the funding of support staff in homeless hostels, floating outreach 
support and drop-in support services to vulnerable groups.  

- The new performance monitoring framework which had now been embedded with providers, 
reporting on a quarterly basis the number of people accessing services.

 Heataborough
 Care and Repair 

Housing Needs

 Homelessness in Peterborough – the service continued to deliver a housing options approach 
when dealing with clients who approached the authority for assistance.

 Rent deposit scheme – which enabled people to access an interest free loan to be used for 
upfront costs associated with private rented properties.

 The Peterborough Homes Scheme and Choice Based Lettings – The Council worked in 
partnership with 10 registered providers of social housing who had significant numbers of social 
housing in the city.

 Rough Sleeping in Peterborough – The Council had a rough sleeper outreach officer who 
assisted individuals who found themselves sleeping rough after losing their accommodation.

 Single Person Homelessness – The service remained committed to supporting single homeless 
people to prevent them from sleeping rough.

Housing Enforcement 

 Improving Energy Efficiency – Working with landlords in Central and East areas of the city to 
encourage and promote the Heataborough Scheme.

 Selective Licensing 
 Raising Awareness – The Housing Enforcement Team had appeared on channel 5 in a series 

called ‘Nightmare Tenants and Slum Landlords’.
 Partnership Working – The team had been working closely with Cambridgeshire Fire and Rescue 

Service, Police and the Planning Department on a number of cases where landlords had turned 
commercial properties in to rented living accommodation.

 Tenancy Relations – The team continued to find some landlords who would evict tenants rather 
than carry out repairs on their properties.

 Mobile home Parks – The introduction of the Mobile Homes Act 2013, allowed the Council to 
charge owners of park home sites for inspection and issuing of the Park Home licenses.

The Committee was asked to scrutinise the report and, provide challenge where necessary and suggest 
ideas and initiatives to support the continued delivery of priorities.

5



Questions and comments were raise around the following areas:

 Members were concerned regarding the increase in people begging in the city centre and 
asked for reassurance that these people had been approached and offered help. The Head of 
Housing and Health Improvement reassured the Committee that all people begging in the city 
centre had been approached and offered support. Officers would endeavour to get rough 
sleepers who were not from Peterborough back to where they had a connection. Members 
were informed that there was no need for rough sleeping in the city, in some cases it was a 
lifestyle choice.

 Members queried whether there was support available to rough sleepers who did not have a 
connection with Peterborough and did not want to return to their place of residence. Members 
were advised that the Council would attempt to offer help within the private rented sector with 
the Rent Deposit Scheme. Officers would try to contact friends and family of rough sleeper and 
also to discover the reasons why they were in Peterborough. They would not be entitled to 
access services until they had built up connection in Peterborough and met the necessary 
criteria. 

 Members queried whether all people seen begging in the city centre were rough sleeping or if it 
was a way of earning money. Members were informed that not all of the people begging in the 
city centre were homeless, 17 were rough sleeping and would engage on and off with Officers, 
the others seen were not homeless. 

 Members were concerned that the work carried out with Chanel 5 could portray people’s 
problems as entertainment. Members were advised that Channel 5 had never made any 
suggestions to sensationalise the issues. The series was directed towards myth busting and 
getting the accurate information out to the public.

 Members queried whether the Council were strict when landlords were non-compliant with 
regulations. Members were informed that if non-compliant landlords did not work with the 
Council to improve the state of their properties then a statutory notice would be served and they 
could be prosecuted. 

 Members queried what the role of Officers was with regards to Empty Homes and what action 
was taken to encourage the empty home owner to return their properties to use. The Cabinet 
Member for Growth, Planning, Housing and Economic Development responded that the 
Council currently employed 4 Empty Homes Officers and some of the empty homes were 
relatively easy to get back in to occupation. Houses were left empty for reasons such as 
inheritance, people being cared for or repair costs being too high. The head of Housing and 
Health Improvement added that often people did not know what to do with their empty home 
and they would contact the Officers for advice, the Officers would advise them on options. If 
houses were not brought back in to occupation, an Empty Dwellings Management Order would 
be issued. 

 Members queried the milestones which were highlighted on page 11 of the report, part 5.1.7 
‘Council Tax Partnership’. The Head of Housing and Health Improvement informed the 
Committee that the milestones were to ensure that information was shared between the 
Council Tax Department and the Empty Homes Officers to prevent wrong figures relating to 
empty homes being recorded.

 The Chairman of the Committee congratulated the Care and Repair Team on the work they 
carry out.

ACTION AGREED

The Committee agreed for the Head of Housing and Health Improvement to investigate the possibility of 
the Council working in partnership with local businesses to assist vulnerable people in the city, this could 
 fit in with the Council’s emerging Volunteer Strategy.

6. Road Safety 

6



The Senior Road Safety Officer introduced the report which provided Members with details of accidents 
happening on Peterborough roads, partnership work being delivered to reduce the number of casualties 
and future opportunities for casualty reduction. 

Questions and comments were raise around the following areas:

 Members queried whether work related accidents could largely be caused by people rushing to 
meet a deadline or time limit set by employers. The Senior Road Safety Officer responded that 
there were no definite figures to prove this. Employers were advised when receiving talks on road 
safety that they could be found liable in court if an accident did occur due to restrictions or 
deadlines given. 

 Members referred to page 28 of the report, section 4.8 and queried whether the Partnership had 
considered demonstrating to drivers that there were alternative means of transport to get across 
the city. The Senior Road Safety Officer advised Members that work was carried out with the 
Travel Choice team to promote sustainable transport options. 

 Members queried how many of the accidents shown within the graphs on pages 29 and 30 of the 
report were caused by cyclists. Members were advised that almost none of the accidents had 
been reported to have been caused by cyclists. 

 Members queried whether the Partnership went in to organisations to discuss Road Safety. 
Members were informed that the Partnership had recently contacted HGV mobile drivers and 
been to Perkins and other distribution centres in Fletton, to discuss Road Safety. 

 A youth Council Representative asked for clarification on whether the Partnership worked with all 
schools in the city or with targeted schools only. Members were advised that the Partnership 
offered to work with all secondary schools in the city and targeted primary schools.

 A youth Council Representative queried how the Partnership decided which areas became 
targeted. Members were advised that data was looked at and the targeted high risk areas were 
those which proved to have high casualty data.

 The Safer Peterborough Partnership, Deputy Manager commented  that data provided from the 
past two years suggested that there had been a 20 % reduction in Fire Service attendance at 
Road Traffic Collisions, this indicated that the road safety education element was effective. The 
improvement of infrastructure on Peterborough roads had also contributed to the reduction of 
Road Traffic Collisions. The average speed cameras had also appeared to have had a beneficial 
impact on the reduction of Road Traffic Collisions. 

 The Cambridgeshire Constabulary Representative commented that the road policing unit applied 
their specialist skills to look at offences or issues which occurred on the roads. The Department 
for Transport advertises several campaigns and their calendar was set to focus resources on 
important topics for certain times of the year. 

ACTION AGREED 

The Committee agreed for the Road Safety Officer to:

 Investigate the possibility of working with professional racers to deliver road safety advice to 
young people.

 Provide a briefing note on Operation Backfire.
 Provide a briefing note containing a breakdown of how many accidents were caused by cyclists in 

the city.
 Provide a briefing note on the percentage of KSI’s which had occurred on Peterborough’s trunk 

roads.
 Provide a briefing note on how many road traffic accidents were related to drink drivers.
 Investigate the possibility of using existing lampposts to display safety information and reminders.

7. Proposed Scope for the Scrutiny Committee’s Communities Strategy Task and Finish Group 

7



The report was introduced to the Committee by the by the Service Director for Adult Services and 
Communities to provide the Committee with a draft scope for the previously agreed Task and Finish 
Group which would focus on a new Communities Strategy. 

The Committee was asked to review and scrutinise the proposed scope, and, subject to any 
requirements being incorporated, to approve it in order for the work of the Task and Finish Group to 
commence.

ACTION AGREED

The Committee noted the report and agreed to the proposed scope of the new Communities Task and 
Finish Group.

9.         Forward Plan of Executive Decisions 

The Committee received the latest version of the Council’s Forward Plan of Executive Decisions, 
containing key decisions that the Leader of the Council anticipated the Cabinet or individual Cabinet 
Members would make during the course of the forthcoming month.  Members were invited to comment 
on the Plan and, where appropriate, identify any relevant areas for inclusion in the Committee’s work 
programme

ACTION AGREED

The Committee noted the Forward Plan of Executive Decisions.

10. Work Programme 

Members considered the Commission’s Work Programme for 2015/16 and discussed possible items for 
inclusion.

ACTION AGREED

Members noted the work programme for 2015/2016

11.       Date of the Next Meeting 

The Chair advised the Committee that the next meeting was scheduled for Tuesday, 24 November 2015.

The meeting began at 7.00pm and ended at 8.34pm

                                          

 CHAIRMAN

8



STRONG AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITIES 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Agenda Item No. 5

24 NOVEMBER 2015 Public Report

Report of the Cabinet Member for City Centre Management, Culture and Tourism 
                                   

Contact Officer(s) – Lisa Roberts, Strategic Client Manager: Culture and Leisure
Contact Details - Email: Lisa.Roberts@peterborough.gov.uk  Telephone: 01733 452386

PORTFOLIO PROGRESS REPORT: CABINET MEMBER FOR CITY CENTRE 
MANAGEMENT, CULTURE AND TOURISM 

1. PURPOSE

1.1 To provide members with a progress report from the cabinet member for City Centre Management, 
Culture and Tourism in relation to cultural matters relevant to this committee.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 1. Members are asked to scrutinise the progress made on those aspects of the cabinet 
members’ portfolio relevant to this committee by providing challenge where necessary and to 
suggest ideas and initiatives to support the continued delivery of priorities within that portfolio.

2. Members are asked to request a performing review report of commercial operation to be 
presented to this committee in March 2016. 

3. LINKS TO THE SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY 
3.1 The city centre management, culture and tourism portfolio contribute to the following priorities in the 

Sustainable Community Strategy:-
 Creating opportunities – tackling inequalities;
 Creating strong and supportive communities; and
 Delivering substantial and truly sustainable growth.

4. BACKGROUND
4.1 The Council’s Constitution sets out the responsibilities of the cabinet member, including:

 Culture and leisure 
 Vivacity contract 

These responsibilities fall under the remit of the Strong and Supportive Communities
Scrutiny Committee.

Other responsibilities contained within the constitution fall outside the remit of this
committee and are therefore not included in this report. 

5 CULTURE AND LEISURE
5.1 SPORTS STRATEGY

     
The council has identified the need for a strategy to assist in guiding the future provision of sport and 
sporting facilities in the city, the current sports strategy cycle finished at the end of 2014. The 
refreshed strategy will have be strongly linked to Health and Wellbeing and has been renamed 
‘Peterborough Active Lifestyles Strategy’ running for 10 years from 2015 – 2025, the time frame 
will enable the document to link with the growth and health and wellbeing agendas. 

9

mailto:Lisa.Roberts@peterborough.gov.uk


The strategy will address the need for a clear framework for future investment is particularly critical 
given the projected population growth within Peterborough and the sounding area, taking into 
consideration the Health and Wellbeing requirements of our residents. 

The development of this strategy provides the opportunity to assess the condition of existing 
provision, establish whether it is appropriate to meet local needs and demand and ensure that 
potential provision helps address any current quantitative or qualitative deficiencies. In addition there 
is a need to facilitate increased participation and improve the Health and Wellbeing of the residents 
of Peterborough. 

The emerging strategy sets out:

Our vision
To promote active lifestyles: Providing facilities and encourage participation for all.

Our priorities
 Health and Wellbeing

 Participation

 Economic growth

 Stronger communities

 Value for money and efficiency

A director-led project group be established to develop and implement the Active Lifestyles Strategy, 
drawing on different areas of expertise across the council and strategic partners including Sport 
England and Vivacity, to be delivered for public consultation by the end of the new year. 

5.2 REVIEW OF OPEN+ LIBRARIES
Bibliotheca open+ and Peterborough City Council rolled out the UK's first open+ model of libraries on 
the1st May 2015. This technology enabled the council to save £305,000 a year by moving from 261 
staffed hours to 387 hours, of which open+ enables 238 self-service hours. In essence, this reduced 
the cost of the library service by over 20 percent and provided a 50% increase in hours for the 
service.

Following significant expenditure cuts, a review of the library service began in 2014, which led to a 
public consultation to understand how residents use, or would like to use, libraries. The way in which 
patrons use the library is changing; 90% of book loans are now completed through self-service 
kiosks, and staff now focus their time supporting people with more specific enquiries. The public 
consultation revealed that the most valued aspects of libraries are the ability to borrow books, access 
to information and location. In addition, when asked ‘What would make you use your library more? 
75% of respondents stated that access outside of normal opening hours was important.  

The Solution
With open+, libraries can decide the days and hours they open for their communities, to supplement 
access outside of the times when staff and volunteers are present. The technology is really easy to 
use, it’s an extension of the libraries current RFID system, and it links with the doors, alarms, lights 
automating the building via verification through the library management system. With so many of our 
patrons already accustomed to using self-service, accessing the library by simply scanning their 
library card and entering their usual pin number at the external access control panel was easy 
enough for them to adapt to straight away. Users can come in, use the building, do what they need 
to do and then leave, or if they need staff assistance they can visit during staffed hours.

In addition to managing opening hours and accessibility, open+ can be configured to control other 
elements of the library such as lights, public announcements, PCs, self-service kiosks and a full 
CCTV surveillance system for a safe environment. 

10



Results
The new technology solution gives library users everything they asked for, open+ has been really 
well received by our library users. The solution has allowed us to make the required saving of 
£305,000, keep all of our libraries open, future-proof the service, extend opening hours by almost 
50% across all sites, extending hours from 261 to 386 per week. 

Saving
A reduction of £305,000 to total library budget of £1.5 million  
£275,000 from staff, 15 voluntary redundancies
£30,000 from Materials

£45,000 was added back into the library budget to provide Open+ assistants at 4 libraries, those 
linked with schools and on multiple floors. 

Capital 
£170,000 one off capital bid through invest to save, broken down below: 
£123,000 for open+ system
£45,000 for cabling and doors
£2,000 for enabling works, including internal locks

Revenue
Ongoing support costs £1,500 per library, £13,500pa
Cost of borrowing: £24,600 over 8.5 years

Statistics
Peterborough has 10 libraries with 1 mobile service, the statistics detailed below are form the 
financial year to date: April – September 2015 with Open+ implemented on the 1st May 2015. 

 Visitors to all libraries                               211,783
 Visitors to Central Library                                   91,622
 Loans at all libraries                                           248,416
 Loans at Central Library                                     64,508
 All libraries opening hours per month                  149
 All libraries unstaffed opening hours per month  226
 Total library book stock                                     240,000
 Percentage of book issues in open+ hours         22%
 Percentage of book issues in staffed hours       78%
 Active borrowers all libraries                              19,446
 Number of Open+ users 6,378

Since the initial implementation, over 6,378 members have opted in, with a peak usage of 250 open+ 
users in one day at central library. Customers have found it really easy to use, and are grateful that 
the council has managed to keep all of the cities libraries open and for longer. 

The libraries are more alive now than they have ever been before, with groups independently using 
the space. Users are not restricted and they appreciate the choice that the new system offers. The 
library service now looks forward to widening community use to create multi-user sites.

The council has been pleased to see how easy the system is to use. We are reassured that the staff 
and patrons had not encountered any issues, and that the library had not suffered any damage at all. 

Another advantage is that staff members can be better utilised and distributed throughout the library 
network to undertake more customer-focused duties across fluctuated staffed opening hours. 
Open+ has enabled all Peterborough’s libraries to stay open, to open for longer hours and to 
successfully overcome the challenge of transformation in times of austerity. 

11



So much so that the council has been contacted by 64 other councils to learn from Peterborough’s 
Open+ mode and has been shortlisted for the best customer project of the year by the V3 technology 
awards. 

The libraries will continue to be supported and developed by the council and as such the council has 
been awarded a grant from Arts Council England to fit free public Wi-Fi in all of Peterborough 
libraries to extend access and develop digital skills across the City. 

The Wi-Fi project is due to start in January 2016 and will cause minor disruption to users with all 
building closed for 2 days to carry out the work. The project team will endeavour to programme 
works around normal closed days to minimise the disruption.  

5.3 Proposed change to the Mobile Library service 

Background 
Vivacity have requested to amend the Saturday model library service stop frequency in order to open 
up the service across a broader area.

The Saturday route has been operating the same weekly route of five (5) separate stops for several 
years. With the introduction of the new model for libraries, Vivacity would now like to amend the 
Saturday model library services to serve more customers moving a number of stops from weekly to 
fortnightly.

With this proposal Vivacity intend to add two extra route stops, taking the service to seven stops 
rather than five.

Consultation period 

Vivacity undertook a consultation which took place over four calendar weeks - 21 March to 11 April 
2015. This was completed mainly on the Saturdays where the change would take place enabling 
Vivacity to capture everyone who would be affected by the proposed changes.

The range of customers surveyed were from pre-school through to retired customers, one customer 
being 92 years of age.

The consultation was carried out in the format of a survey populated by the staff member on that 
day.        

Results of consultation 

The result from the survey carried out showed that overall customers were in favour of the new route 
and frequency change for the mobile. 

Proposal – new rota

Appendix A:  New Mobile library rota

The weekly Saturday stops will change to fortnightly stops, opening up two (2) available stops. 
Instead of just adding another fortnightly visit to fill this space Vivacity propose to add two (2) new 
stop areas, visiting them on a four (4) week rota, therefore adding seven (7) new visit stops instead 
of five (5). 

The reason for not adding eight (8) new stops is that one of the stop areas covers Cardea, and 
Vivacity can only find one suitable place to park. 

Vivacity will be staying at the Cardea stop for an extended time to allow people from all over Cardea 
to visit. Vivacity are worked in conjunction with the Cardea Families Association to coordinate this.
The new Saturday route is dependent on agreement from the council, with this committees view 
sought before recommendation to cabinet.  

12



The first of the revised routes are:

 Cardea (Morrisons' car park)             09:30 - 11:30
 Regional Pool                                    11:45 - 12:30

The second of the revised routes are:

 Castor                                                  09:30 - 10:00
 Sutton                                                 10:15 - 10:45
 Ufford                                                  11:00 - 11:30
 Helpston                                             11:45 - 12:15

6 VIVACITY CONTRACT

Since May 2010, Vivacity, a charitable trust, has been providing culture and leisure services on 
behalf of the council. The cabinet member for City Centre Management, Culture and Tourism and 
her adviser Councillor Graham Casey both sit on the Vivacity board to represent the council’s views. 

Vivacity is one of the council’s key strategic partners and is resourced through a Funding and 
Management Agreement (FMA) that specifies the total sum of money made available by the council 
to support the delivery of the councils priorities. This income is supplemented through additional 
externally-secured funding. Vivacity provide services in the following areas: 

 Art services

 Heritage services

 Library and Archives services

 Sport service

Vivacity has and is delivering a wide range of services and events to the people of Peterborough 
throughout the year, which include, arts, heritage, sports and libraries. The council has continued to 
invest in Vivacity’s services, including through major capital investment to the regional pool, lido and 
Jack Hunt swimming pool.  

In looking to the future, the council is working closely with the Vivacity to ensure that the services it 
provides continue to offer both a compelling, and value-for-money offer. The council is working with 
Vivacity to develop their next business plan that reflects the need for Vivacity to continue to grow 
commercially in order for it to thrive as an organisation in the future. 

2015-2016 Objectives Summary
  

 A new set of contract performance indicators which can be tracked and benchmarked 
 A review of Vivacity’s commercial position to enable them to become truly independent 

from the council 
 Measurement of Vivacity performance against culture strategy objectives
 Development of capital assets
 An agreed Vivacity business plan

Vivacity has adopted – with the support of the council – a balanced scorecard to reflect its 
performance. The council are currently working with Vivacity to produce a new set of performance 
indicators for 2015 – 2016, some of which will be incorporated in to the score card and displayed in 
all Vivacity occupied buildings. 

13



6.1 SPORTS
Vivacity sports services has focussed on creating increased opportunities and higher quality services 
by:
 

 Bringing together the management of sports facilities, 
 Developing a citywide programme and pricing strategy, 
 Creating greater synergy, cost effectiveness and a single delivery model improving 

customer’s services and value for money.  

Linked to a comprehensive service restructure in May 2015 and growth in new services in the 
Hamptons, the service has seen year on year improvement in attendance and participation levels.

The sports team have had eight objectives, which are to:

 Supporting the council in its multi million pound investment in modernising the cities 
swimming pools and leisure centres - improvements have included refurbishing gyms, dance 
studios, changing rooms, reception areas, sports pavilions, new all- weather pitches, health 
suites, and improving access for disabled customers.

 Investment in energy conservation measures – reducing our carbon footprint.

 Introduction of family activities; rollers roller skating, aqua fun sessions utilising a wide range 
of fun inflatable play equipment.

 Developing of a new Swim Academy (learn to swim programme).

 On-going development of productive relationships with major sports clubs (swimming, 
athletics, football, racquet sports).

 Developing new activities for customers with disabilities such as cycling, balance and 
coordination classes and swimming for the visually impaired.

 To provide Health and Wellbeing classes for users with, obesity, diabetes, stress, cardiac 
issues and dementia. 

6.2 ARTS, MUSEUM, LIBRARIES AND ARCHIVES

Art, museums, libraries and archives have now merged in to one service effective from May 2015, 
the new service is entailed cultural services and has a new service director Rob Parks joining 
Vivacity from the science museum in October 2015. As all four areas have always played a 
significant role in supporting the information, education, cultural and recreational needs of the 
community in Peterborough, therefore the services fit natural together. 

At the core of the offer are the ten library buildings, library mobile, museum, Flag Fen and 
Longthorpe Tower, the city gallery and the Key Theatre.

The new director of culture will work with his team to develop and new set of objectives for 2016 and 
beyond for the service, which will be shared with the committee on the 10th March 2016 through 
Vivacity annual report. The current objectives are as follows: 

14



 To encourage creative expression and critical reading among young people aged 11-16.  

 To developed a state of the art conservations unit at Flag Fen and transformed the onsite 
Museum to illustrate the new finds and put them in context of the story of the Flag Fen basin.

 For the service to maintain full accreditation for the museum, demonstrating that 
Peterborough Museum is achieving a quality standard that serves as an authoritative 
benchmark for assessing performance, rewarding achievement and driving improvement.

 To deliver a pilot to address the fact that to date the e-book offer of all public libraries has 
been stymied by publisher concerns about loss of sales and infringement of the digital 
rights management software, the pilots will be run to resolve these concerns.

 For the heritage services to build on the successful partnership with the Natural History 
Museum. The British Museum and the National Space Centre, as all originations share 
significant archaeological collections linked to Peterborough.

 Lower the cost of the Key Theatre to under £100,000
 Reduce costs and increase income for the arts festival 
 To deliver a grant funded programme ‘Peterborough Presents’ to meet both the public and 

funders expectations

7. IMPLICATIONS
7.1 As budgets become more constrained, the council will need to ensure the very best possible return 

on any continuing investment in services. It is anticipated that the Scrutiny Committee will comment 
on and make recommendations relating to the updates provided in this report in order that delivery 
potential is maximised for the benefit of our communities.

8. CONSULTATION
8.1 This report has been developed with the Cabinet Member for City Centre Management, Culture and 

Tourism and the Cabinet Member for Communities and Environment Capita. The report has been 
discussed with a wide range of stakeholders, including Vivacity Trustees and officers, community 
associations, voluntary groups and individuals from across the city. 

9. NEXT STEPS
9.1  Comments and recommendations made by the Scrutiny Committee members will be considered as 

part of the ongoing development and delivery of specific business areas. 

10. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 
1985

10.1 Existing council strategies, the Funding and Management Agreement dated 1 May 2010 between the 
council and Vivacity.

11. APPENDICES

11.1 Appendix A:  New Mobile library rota

15



This page is intentionally left blank

16



Annex A: New Mobile library Saturday Stops

Week 2 - Route 13,  Tuesday Time Duration Frequency
21 Apr, 19 May, 16 Jun, 14 Jul, 11 Aug, 8 Sept, 6 Oct, 3 Nov, 1 Dec, 29 Dec

Newark Hill Close 9.30 - 9.50 20 mins Fortnightly
Larch Grove 9.55 - 10.25 30 mins 4 Weekly
Pinetree Close 10.35 - 11.05 30 mins 4 Weekly
ECH 11.20 - 12.00 40 mins 4 Weekly

LUNCH    12.15 - 1.15
Wansford Haycock 1.30 - 1.50 20 mins Weekly
Wansford Nene Close 1.55 - 2.20 25 mins Weekly
Ailsworth Andrews Close 2.30 - 2.50 20 mins Fortnightly
Eagle Wood Neurological Care Centre 3.00 - 3.30 30 mins Fortnightly
Marholm 3.40 - 4.00 20 mins Weekly
West Town - St John's Hall 4.10 - 4.40 30 mins Weekly

Route 14,  Wednesday Time Duration Frequency
22 Apr, 20 May, 17 Jun, 15 Jul, 12 Aug, 9 Sept, 7 Oct, 4 Nov, 2 Dec, 30 Dec

Etton 9.30 - 9.50 20 mins Weekly
Maxey Quarry 10.00 - 10.20 20 mins Fortnightly
Helpston Primary School 10.30 - 11.00 30 mins 4 weekly
Woodland Lea Helpston 11.05 - 11.25 20 mins 4 weekly
Barnack School Lane 11.35 - 12.15 40 mins Fortnightly

LUNCH    12.25 - 1.25
Helpston 1.25 - 2.10 45 mins Fortnightly
Glinton Neaverson Road 2.30 - 3.00 20 mins Fortnightly
Glinton Church 3.10 - 3.40 40 mins Weekly
Anchor Court 3.55 - 4.15 20 mins 4 weekly
Catley 4.20 - 4.40 20 mins 4 weekly

Route 15,  Thursday Time Duration Frequency
23 Apr, 21 May, 18 Jun, 16 Jul, 13 Aug, 10 Sept, 8 Oct, 5 Nov, 3 Dec, 31 Dec

Longthorpe: Woburn Close 9.30 - 10.00 30 mins Weekly
Botolph Green:Rothwell Way 10.10 - 10.50 40 mins Weekly
Alpha Kindergarten, BigSky 10.55 - 11.25 30 mins 4 Weekly
Peterborough High School 11.35 - 12.00 25 mins 4 Weekly
Hartwell Court 12.10 - 12.40 30 mins 4 Weekly

LUNCH    12.40 - 1.40
Beckets Close A & B 1.40 - 2.10 30 mins 4 Weekly
Walton Park 2.35 - 2.50 15 mins Fortnightly
Walton School 3.00 - 3.30 30 mins Weekly
Thornhaugh Home Farm 3.50 - 4.10 20 mins Fortnightly
Wittering Community Centre 4.20 - 5.00 40 mins Weekly
Wittering Spar 5.10 - 6.00 50 mins Weekly

Route 16,   Friday Time Duration Frequency
24 Apr, 22 May, 19 Jun, 17 Jul, 14 Aug, 11 Sept, 9 Oct, 6 Nov, 4 Dec,

Paston Honeyhill 9.30 - 09.50 20 mins Weekly
Gunthorpe - Bala Court 10.00 - 10.20 20 mins Weekly
Eaglesthorpe 10.35 - 11.10 35 mins 4 Weekly
Blossom Court 11.25 - 12.00 35 mins 4 Weekly

LUNCH    12.15 - 1.15
Hampton Hargate School 1.15 - 2.15 1 hr Fortnightly
Valence Road 2.25 - 3.00 35 mins 4 Weekly
Leighton School 3.10 - 3.40 30 mins Weekly
Hinchcliffe 1 3.45 - 4.15 30 mins 4 Weekly

17



Annex A: New Mobile library Saturday Stops

Hinchcliffe 2 4.20 - 4.40 20 mins 4 Weekly
Saturday Time Duration Frequency

Cardea - Morrison's car park 9.30 - 11.30 2 hrs 4 Weekly
Regional pool 11.45 - 12.30 45 mins 4 Weekly
    
    
    

18



STRONG AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITIES 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Agenda Item No. 6

 24 NOVEMBER 2015 Public Report

Report of the Head of Housing and Health Improvement

Contact Officer – Belinda Child
Contact Details – 01733 863769

SELECTIVE LICENSING CONSULTATION

1. PURPOSE

1.1 To consult with Members as a formal part of the public consultation on proposals for Selective 
Licensing schemes.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 Members are asked to provide a formal response to the consultation into the proposed 
Selective Licensing schemes.

3. LINKS TO THE SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY

3.1 Providing affordable, warm, safe and secure housing is the cornerstone of a strong society.

3.2 Whilst this work cuts across the entire Sustainable Community Strategy, it is most closely 
aligned to the priorities of ‘creating opportunities, tackling inequalities’ and ‘creating strong and 
supportive communities’.

 
4. BACKGROUND

         
4.1    The Housing Act 2004 has given councils the power to introduce Selective Licensing of 

privately rented properties to improve conditions for tenants and the local community in certain 
circumstances.

 4.2 In order to introduce Selective Licensing the council must demonstrate that an area has a high 
level of privately rented housing stock and that one or more of the following criteria are met: 

i. That the area is suffering from low housing demand
ii. That the area is experiencing a significant and persistent problem caused by anti-

social behaviour 
iii. That the area is suffering from poor property conditions
iv. That the area has high levels of migration
v. That the area has high levels of deprivation
vi. That the area has high levels of crime

19



4.3 In considering whether to designate an area for Selective Licensing on the grounds set out 
above the local housing authority may only make a designation if the area has a high 
proportion of property in the private rented sector. Local Authorities are entitled to consider 
areas as ‘high’ if the proportion of private rented stock exceeds the national average. 
Nationally the private rented sector currently makes up 19% of the total housing stock in 
England. When considering whether areas are suitable for designation the Council has 
determined that in Peterborough, only those areas that meet at least five or more of the above 
conditions and have high proportions of privately rented housing will be considered.

4.4 The council has taken great care in deciding which areas would be included in the proposed 
Selective Licensing scheme, using independently produced data. The Office for National 
Statistics (ONS) collects and analyses economic and demographic data across the country to 
assist local and central government decision making and policy creation. The ONS splits the 
whole of the UK into small areas called Lower Super Output Areas (LSOAs), each with a 
population of approximately 1,500. These areas are independent of political boundaries (such 
as councillor wards or parliamentary constituencies) and can be used to assess differences 
across cities and other regions. 

4.5 The initial test is that Selective Licensing can only be introduced in areas where the Private 
Rented Sector (PRS) constitutes greater than 19% of the total housing stock by number of 
dwellings. All the individual LSOAs in the proposed areas exceed that, and the total for the 
selected areas represents just under 40% of Peterborough’s total PRS.

 
5. Key Issues

5.1 The specific areas that we are proposing to designate for Selective Licensing are located in the 
following wards: Central, North, East, Park, Fletton, Bretton North, Stanground Central, 
Walton, and Orton Longueville. The evidence supporting this selection is set out in the 
Selective Licensing Evidence Document contained within the appendices to this report.

5.2 Selective Licensing will give the Council the power to make landlords accountable for the 
management of their property and tenants. The proposed Scheme is contained within the 
appendices to this report. All landlords who rent a property in these areas would need to apply 
for a licence. Conditions will be attached to licences and the proposed Licence Conditions are 
contained within the appendices to this report.

5.3 In addition, we have identified a range of measures to support the general improvement of the 
proposed areas, and to assist landlords to deal with bad tenant behaviours. Details of this 
support is contained in the Support for Landlords document in the appendices to this report.

6. IMPLICATIONS

6.1 If Selective Licensing is introduced, it would mean that all private landlords with residential 
property in designated areas of the city would need to apply for a licence for each property let 
to tenants. The Scheme/s would run for 5 years and the licence is given for the entire period. 
In order to become a licence holder a landlord would have to meet certain standards. There 
will be a licence fee and the proposed Licence Fee Structure is contained within the 
appendices to this report. 

20



7. CONSULTATION

7.1      A public consultation is being held over a period of twelve weeks which commenced on 22nd 
October 2015 and ends on 14th January 2016.  All interested parties are being invited to 
participate in the consultation with all the documents being available on the Council’s website. 
 Consultation is taking place by way of letter, email, public events across the proposed areas, 
and newspaper advertising. The documents are also available in Lithuanian, Polish, 
Portuguese, Slovak and Urdu.

8. NEXT STEPS

8.1 Comments and recommendations made by the Scrutiny Committee members will be 
considered as part of the public consultation process.

9. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

 Department of Communities and Local Government “Approval Steps for additional and 
selective licensing designations in England” - February 2010

 Part 3 of the Housing Act 2004
 Department of Communities and Local Government ‘Selective licensing in the private 

rented sector: A Guide for local authorities’ - March 2015
 Department for Communities and Local Government ‘ Dealing with Rogue Landlords: A 

Guide for Local Authorities’ – August 2012
 The Selective Licensing of Houses (Additional Conditions)(England) Order 2015  

10. APPENDICES

Appendix 1: Proposed Selective Licensing Scheme
Appendix 2: Support for Landlords
Appendix 3: A map showing the proposed designated areas
Appendix 4: A list of the streets that fall within the designated areas
Appendix 5: Selective Licensing Evidence Document
Appendix 6: Proposed Licence Conditions
Appendix 7: Proposed Fees and Charges
Appendix 8: Equality Impact Assessment

21



This page is intentionally left blank

22



1

APPENDIX 1: PROPOSED SELECTIVE LICENSING SCHEME

Selective Licensing – An Introduction

This document will give you the information you need to understand the law and context around Selective 
Licencing.

The private rented sector is continually growing and is an essential and significant part of the City’s housing 
market.  We believe that residents should be able to live in good quality, safe, warm, affordable homes in 
mixed, thriving sustainable communities.

Landlord licensing is part of a wider set of measures to enable landlords to provide good quality housing 
within their communities and to address issues of anti-social behaviour, crime, and low demand within the 
areas. 

If Selective Licensing is introduced, it would mean that all private landlords with residential property in 
designated areas of the city would need to apply for a licence for each property before they can be let to 
tenants. In order to become a licence holder a landlord would have to meet certain standards.

The Housing Act 2004 - Improving conditions in Privately Rented Property 

The Housing Act 2004 has given councils the power to introduce Selective Licensing of privately rented 
properties to improve conditions for tenants and the local community in certain circumstances.

In order to introduce Selective Licensing the council must demonstrate that an area (or areas) have a high 
level of privately rented housing stock and that one or more of the following criteria are met:

 That the area is, or is likely to become, an area of low housing demand; and that making a designation 
will, when combined with other measures taken in the area by the Council, or by other persons 
together with the Council, contribute to the improvement of the social or economic conditions in the 
area

 That the area is experiencing a significant and persistent problem caused by anti-social behaviour and 
that some or all of the private sector landlords who have let premises in the area are failing to take 
action to combat the problem that it would be appropriate for them to take; and that making the 
designation will, when combined with other measures taken in the area by the Council, or by other 
persons together with the Council, lead to a reduction in, or elimination of, the problem

 That the area is suffering from poor property conditions. Local housing authorities can address poor 
property conditions through their powers in Part 1 of the Act, which are extensive. As mentioned below 
a local housing authority should not use its Part 3 powers (selective licensing) where it is appropriate to 
tackle small numbers of properties which are in disrepair directly and immediately under Part 1. There 
may, however, be circumstances in which a significant number of properties in the private rented 
sector are in poor condition and are adversely affecting the character of the area and/or the health and 
safety of their occupants. In that case, as part of wider strategy to tackle housing conditions, the local 
housing authority may consider it appropriate to make a Selective Licensing scheme so that it can 
prioritise enforcement action under Part 1 of the Act, whilst ensuring through licence conditions under 
Part 3 that the properties are properly managed to prevent further deterioration

23



2

 That the area has high levels of migration. Migration refers to the movement of people from one area 
to another. It includes migration within a country and is not restricted to migration from overseas. A 
Selective Licensing designation can be made, as part of a wider strategy, to preserve or improve the 
economic conditions of the area to which migrants have moved and ensure people (including migrants) 
occupying private rented properties do not live in poorly managed housing or unacceptable conditions

 That an area has high levels of deprivation. A local housing authority may make a designation if the 
area is experiencing a high level of deprivation. It must, however, be clear that by making the scheme it 
will, together with other measures as part of a wider strategy, improve housing conditions in the 
private rented sector in that area

 That an area has high levels of crime. In considering whether an area suffers from a high level of crime 
the local housing authority may wish to have regard to whether the area has displayed a noticeable 
increase in crime over a relatively short period, such as in the previous 12 months, whether the crime 
rate in the area is significantly higher than in other parts of the local authority area or that the crime 
rate is higher than the national average. In particular the local housing authority may want to consider 
whether the impact of crime in the area affects the local community and the extent to which a selective 
licensing scheme can address the problems.

In considering whether to designate an area for Selective Licensing on the grounds set out above the local 
housing authority may only make a designation if the area has a high proportion of property in the private 
rented sector. Local Authorities are entitled to consider areas as ‘high’ if the proportion of private rented 
stock exceeds the national average. Nationally the private rented sector currently makes up 19% of the 
total housing stock in England.

When considering whether areas are suitable for designation the Council has determined that in 
Peterborough, only those areas that meet at least five or more of the above conditions and have high 
proportions of privately rented housing will be considered in the first instance.

Why is the Selective Licensing Scheme being proposed?

The Council acknowledges that many landlords provide decent well-managed and well maintained 
accommodation, which does not cause any problems for the local community. There are, however, also 
properties that are poorly managed, suffer from overcrowding, or provide unsafe accommodation. These 
properties have a negative effect on their local area.

The problem of anti-social behaviour, poor quality rented housing and irresponsible and unscrupulous 
landlords can have a detrimental effect on the community.  This, combined with vandalism and other anti-
social behaviour can cause people to move. Rapid and continuous churn within the housing market creates 
unstable communities. As the area becomes less attractive, owner occupiers also move and properties are 
either left empty or bought by speculative landlords.  These landlords often have no interest in the 
community and often rent to tenants who are not properly vetted, leading to further anti-social behaviour, 
poor property management and decline.

24



3

It is expected that the scheme will provide the following benefits for all: 

 A higher standard of management 

 A reduction in overcrowding

 Better housing 

 An improved image and perception of the area 

 Greater ability of landlords to deal with rogue tenants

 A reduction in crime and anti-social behaviour 

 Better waste management 

 More settled communities 

 A mixed and vibrant community that people enjoy living in

 Improved health and wellbeing of tenants

 Landlords encouraged to become accredited and undergo continued professional development 

Selective Licensing will give the Council the power to make landlords accountable for the management of 
their property and tenants.  All landlords who rent a property in these areas would need to apply for a 
licence.

The proposed areas for Selective Licensing

The specific areas that we are proposing to designate for Selective Licensing are located in the following 
wards:

 Central 

 North

 East 

 Park 

 Fletton 

 Bretton North

 Stanground Central 

 Walton

 Orton Longueville 

A map showing the proposed designated areas can be found at Appendix A.

A list of the streets that fall within the designated areas is available at Appendix B.

25



4

How have the proposed areas for Selective Licensing been chosen?

The council has taken great care in deciding which areas would be included in the proposed Selective 
Licensing scheme, using independently produced data. 

The Office for National Statistics (ONS) collects and analyses economic and demographic data across the 
country to assist local and central government decision making and policy creation. 

The ONS splits the whole of the UK into small areas called Lower Super Output Areas (LSOAs), each with a 
population of approximately 1,500. These areas are independent of political boundaries (such as councillor 
wards or parliamentary constituencies) and can be used to assess differences across cities and other 
regions. 

The initial test is that Selective Licensing can only be introduced in areas where the Private Rented Sector 
(PRS) constitutes greater than 19% of the total housing stock by number of dwellings. All the individual 
LSOAs in the proposed areas exceed that, and the total for the selected areas represents just under 40% of 
Peterborough’s total PRS. 

An evidence document has been prepared and is available separately to this scheme document.

Who would need a Licence?

Once an area has been designated for licensing all properties let by private landlords must have a licence.  
A licence holder can be the owner or an appropriate person designated by the owner, e.g. a managing 
agent.

All landlords would need to make a valid application for each property they rent out. This would be through 
an on-line application process and assistance will be provided where necessary.

In order to obtain a licence the applicant will need to demonstrate that they are a ‘fit and proper’ person 
and that they have satisfactory management arrangements in place for the property.  This will involve 
providing your identification and providing a declaration to confirm your status with regards to criminal 
offences.

Exemptions

A full list of statutory exemption can be found at The Selective Licensing of Houses (Specified Exemptions) 
(England) Order 2006.  If you are in any doubt you should seek independent legal advice. An example of the 
statutory exemption include:

 Those managed by Housing Associations or the local authority
 Buildings regulated by other legislation
 Holiday Lets
 Tenancies under long leases

26

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2006/370/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2006/370/made
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2006/370/made


5

Temporary Exemption Notices

A property can also be exempted for a period of 3 months if a Temporary Exemption Notice (TEN) is in 
force. The council can issue a TEN, on written request of the owner/proposed licence holder if they are 
satisfied that the proposed owner/ proposed licence holder is taking steps to ensure that the status of the 
property will be changing within the exemption period and that it would not be required to be licensed 
thereafter. 

Fit and Proper Person

The council must take into account any evidence that the person applying for a licence has:

 Committed any offence involving fraud or other dishonesty, violence, drugs and certain sexual 
offences

 Practised unlawful discrimination on the grounds of sex, colour, race, ethnic or national origins or 
disability in connection with any business

 Contravened any provision of the law relating to housing or landlord and tenant law

Licence Conditions

All landlords must be able to demonstrate satisfactory management is in place for each rented property.  
The council aims to use the proposed Selective Licensing scheme to ensure that all privately rented 
properties are well managed.  Many landlords do this already, however there are problems in some 
instances where landlords neglect their management responsibilities. There are also a number of well-
intentioned landlords that are not aware of their responsibilities and the relevant laws and there are also 
some absentee landlords who may not be aware of problems that are being caused by their tenants.

Where licence holders are not able to demonstrate satisfactory management practices they may be 
required to undertake training to give them the knowledge and skills that are necessary.

As part of the application process the proposed licence holder must also provide evidence of appropriate 
safety and security within their property and that they meet the specific conditions set out within the 
licence. Full licence conditions are set out in a separate document.

Housing officers will work with applicants to support them throughout the application process and to assist 
them in meeting the criteria in order to be granted a licence. This may involve applicants undertaking a 
training course.

27



6

Anti-Social Behaviour

The proposed conditions set out a staged approach for landlords to deal with anti-social behaviour and that 
the landlord must work with the council and partner agencies to address complaints associated with his/ 
her property.  These include, but are not limited to writing to the tenant upon receipt of a complaint 
regarding ASB informing them of the allegation and the possible consequences of it continuing, then 
monitoring the complaint for a period of 14 days to see if the problem continues.  If it doesn’t then the 
landlord can just file the complaint in a safe place.

If the issue is not resolved within 28 days the landlord must visit the property and give the tenants a 
warning letter advising them of the possibility of eviction. If the ASB continues for a further 14 days the 
landlord  must, if appropriate and supported by housing enforcement officers and/or the ASB team, take 
the appropriate legal proceedings to evict the tenants. 

If the landlord suspects criminal activity he/she must notify the appropriate authorities, i.e. the Council’s 
landlord support officer, ASB team or police. The landlord must also participate in any case conferences or 
multi agency meetings that take place to address ASB associated with his property. 

The Anti-Social Crime and Policing Act 2014 provides for a new absolute ground for possession in the 
following circumstances:

 Where a tenant or member of their household or visitor has met one of the following conditions:

1. Is convicted of a serious criminal offence
2. Is found by a court to have breached Injunction to Prevent Nuisance or Annoyance (IPNA)
3. Is convicted of breach of a Community Behaviour Order (CBO)
4. Is convicted for breach of a Noise Abatement Notice
5. Tenants property closed under a Closure Order 

If a landlord applies to the court after serving the relevant notice then the court MUST grant possession 
provided the correct procedures have been followed. The courts discretion to suspend possession is 
restricted to 14 days or 6 weeks in exceptional circumstances. 

The Council will take a lead role in improving education and effective support for landlords in the 
management of tenants who cause anti-social behaviour and bringing together the appropriate teams and 
agencies to tackle issues of ASB and support landlords through the eviction process should it become 
necessary to seek possession.

Does Selective Licensing support and complement other Council Strategies and Initiatives?

The Council wants to sustain long-term improvements in the quality of private rented sector 
accommodation within the proposed scheme boundaries. Therefore it understands the need to ensure a 
balance is achieved between the rights and responsibilities of landlords and those rights and 
responsibilities of their tenants.

Thus, in addition to the proposed introduction of Selective Licensing, the Council and its partners have 
already introduced some, or are exploring the following, additional measures:

28



7

 The introduction of a Public Space Protection Order (in accordance with Part 4, Anti-Social 
Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014) within the area.  This will focus enforcement and 
education activity on such things as street drinking, litter and waste management, and other 
aspects of anti-social behaviour that are largely the responsibility of the tenant. 

 The re-structuring of policing and partner enforcement teams to ensure those areas with the 
biggest challenges receive the most appropriate targeted resource. This has led to dedicated 
policing teams working within some of the proposed Selective Licensing areas focussed on working 
with communities to deal with the issues that matter to them. A joint approach to tackling anti-
social behaviour is now in place with a range of Council, police and other specialists gripping issues 
with a range of prevention, education and enforcement. These teams will work within the 
regulatory framework to support landlords who seek their assistance with tenants who commit 
damage, anti-social behaviour and engage in other problematic behaviour.

 The draft licensing conditions, which form part of the proposed scheme, set out a staged approach 
for landlords to deal with anti- social behaviour. The landlord, council and other agencies will work 
together to address complaints associated with their properties.  If the landlord suspects criminal 
activity a responsible landlord will notify the appropriate authorities. We will make this easier by 
ensuring easily understood reporting routes to the ASB team or police. 

 The Council will take a lead role in improving education and effective support for landlords in the 
management of tenants who cause anti-social behaviour and bringing together the appropriate 
teams and agencies to tackle issues of ASB and support landlords through the eviction process 
should it become necessary to seek possession.

 A review of the current Cumulative Impact Policy introduced under The Licensing Act 2003 that 
addresses the growth of licensed premises in the Millfield and New England area of the City. The 
policy was introduced to stem the levels of alcohol related anti-social behaviour and crime and thus 
improve the environment and quality of life for all.

 Further Training and Education for Landlords: Engagement with landlords has identified a training 
need for some. As part of the proposed scheme we intend to offer a bespoke training package and 
access to an online information library which will be developed with landlords during consultation 
to ensure that the training meets the specific needs of Peterborough landlords.

The City Council’s Housing Strategy 2011-15 identifies effective housing enforcement. As part of its 
broader project to address social and environmental issues, the city council will fully explore the benefits 
and implications of replacing the existing ‘additional HMO licensing scheme’ with a ‘Selective Licensing 
scheme’ that covers all privately rented accommodation within these areas.

Supporting the Safer Peterborough Partnership

Tackling anti-social behaviour (ASB) is now synonymous with effective neighbourhood and tenancy 
management and the creation of sustainable communities. It is essential private landlords take their 
responsibilities seriously and work with local agencies to ensure that communities do not suffer from 
persistent ASB from private tenants. 

Effective information sharing and good standards of tenancy management are key to supporting 
communities and preventing any spiral of decline. 

29



8

Peterborough, as with all other local authority areas, has a statutory Crime and Disorder Reduction 
Partnership – the Safer Peterborough Partnership. It is made up of statutory and civil society sector 
agencies, and works collaboratively to reduce crime and disorder, prevent reoffending, and serves as the 
Drugs and Alcohol Partnership. Although the Partnership works closely with the new Police and Crime 
Commissioner, it has the sole responsibility for ensuring a partnership approach is taken to address crime 
and disorder in Peterborough. It has governance responsibility for example for the Operation Can-do 
programme. The Partnership, through its pooled budgets, also oversees the work of the Safer 
Peterborough staff team which comprises staff from a range of different agencies. This team focuses on 
tackling ASB, exposing and reducing hate crime, tackling domestic abuse, making our roads safer, 
supporting recovery from substance abuse, and managing our most prolific offenders who cause the most 
crime.

Through Selective Licensing the council can offer advice and support to landlords to ensure that they take 
appropriate and effective action where they receive a complaint about their tenants. It is important to 
recognise that the private rented sector provides housing to many of those excluded from other sectors of 
the market and these can be the most vulnerable sections of society, with issues such as alcohol or drug 
misuse and a history of anti-social behaviour affecting their ability to sustain a tenancy. 

A landlord must comply with the conditions which are attached to a Selective Licence. Several of these 
conditions relate directly to the effective management by the landlord of incidences of anti-social 
behaviour.  We are aware that there is a lack of expertise amongst some private landlords and their 
managing agents in tenancy management and in particular in dealing effectively with anti-social behaviour. 
Therefore, under any Selective Licensing scheme the council will provide landlords with support and hands-
on advice. This team will also provide individual support when the landlord is devising a strategy for 
responding to individual cases. 

This role does not replace the service that already exists to provide a statutory anti-social behaviour service 
to members of the public, but will provide a valuable training resource to landlords. However, landlords will 
not be able to pass the ownership of complaints on to this team. This must remain their responsibility.  By 
having appropriate conditions on a licence, we can continue to work in tandem with landlords on the issue 
of anti-social behaviour. 

Private Rented Sector Measures

Homelessness

A coordinated approach in connection with homelessness prevention is required, as prescribed under 
Section 81 of the Housing Act 2004. Selective Licensing provides protection for tenants on assured 
shorthold tenancies in unlicensed properties, as a landlord is not allowed to serve a Section 21 notice 
(Notice to Quit) under the Housing Act 1988. The Council provides a Tenancy Relations   service within the 
housing enforcement team to tackle complaints of harassment and illegal evictions from tenants and 
landlords in the private rented sector.

Through the Councils homelessness prevention work, housing needs and advice is available as well as a 
Rent Deposit Scheme. These activities can assist a household to remain in their current home, where 
appropriate or provide options to enable a planned and timely move and help sustain independent living. 
The Rent Deposit Scheme aims to provide assistance to people who can't afford to pay cash deposits.

Housing Strategy

Whenever considering whether to make a Selective Licensing designation Councils must also ensure that 
the exercise of power is consistent with their overall housing strategy, in accordance with section 81 (2) of 
the Housing Act 2004. 

30



9

Peterborough is a city with huge ambitions. The city council’s vision is simple: for a bigger and better 
Peterborough, where sustainable growth brings with it opportunities that will improve the quality of life of 
its residents, helps to preserve the environment, and helps to create vibrant and cohesive communities. 
Good quality housing is fundamental to this vision: the standard of our accommodation is pivotal to health, 
wealth, aspirations and life chances.

The Housing Strategy has the following 4 key objectives:-

 Objective one - To support the delivery of substantial yet truly sustainable growth

The first objective of the Housing Strategy relates to the scale and nature of housing growth that is 
required to meet the needs of the existing and future population, as well as supporting Peterborough’s 
economic performance and employment growth.

 Objective two - To secure the regeneration of and improvements to Peterborough’s housing stock

The second objective of the Housing Strategy relates to the role that housing regeneration and 
improvements can play in wider neighbourhood renewal, meeting our Environment Capital ambitions, 
and improving the health of the local population.

 Objective three - To meet existing and future housing needs

Objective three relates to how the city council and its partners will work to meet the growing needs of 
the residents of Peterborough, including disabled households, those unable to afford market housing, 
and those threatened with or experiencing homelessness.

 Objective four - To create mixed and sustainable communities

The final objective set out in the strategy relates to how the city council will seek to utilise its housing 
agenda to ensure that future neighbourhoods created and the communities that live within them are 
mixed, thriving and sustainable.

Sustainable Community Strategy

In terms of local priorities, the overarching strategic objectives for the city council and its partners, is set 
out in the Peterborough Sustainable Community Strategy (SCS) 2008-21. The four priorities of the SCS are 
as follows:

 Creating opportunities – tackling inequalities

 Creating strong and supportive communities

 Creating the UK’s ‘Environment Capital’

 Delivering substantial and truly sustainable growth

These four priorities underpin every strategic document and policy produced by the city council, including 
the Housing Strategy.

Empty Homes Strategy

The Council has a robust Empty Homes Strategy in place with a dedicated Empty Homes Officer taking 
action on all empty properties. 

31



10

Has the Council considered other measures?

A Council must not make a designation to introduce selective licensing unless it has considered whether 
there are any other courses of action available to them that might provide an effective method of achieving 
the objective that the designation is intended to achieve. 

Alternative approaches to the proposed designation of Selective Licensing in the proposed area have been 
considered and are illustrated in the table below. Each of these represents a valuable tool for dealing with 
low demand and the improvement of social or economic conditions of the area, including persistent anti-
social behaviour, poor management practices and so on. However there is no single solution and each 
alternative solution will have its limitations. None of these alone, including Selective Licensing, can solve 
the problem and therefore a co-ordinated strategy is required which links a full range of agencies and 
services using various interventions appropriately. 

Alternative Solutions Weaknesses Strengths 

Management  and training support 
to private landlords 

Requires landlord voluntary 
engagement. 

Could remove responsibility away 
from landlords. 

Source of funding unclear. 

No enforcement powers available. 

Improves standards where 
landlord is engaged with 
authority and promotes 
confidence amongst their 
tenants. 

Introduction of private sector 
leasing scheme 

Resource intensive. 

Does not improve management 
standards of landlords who choose 
not to join the scheme. 

Reactive rather than proactive.

Contributes to homelessness 
prevention as could be used for 
allocation to those in need of 
housing. 

Targeted use of Special Interim 
Management Orders and Empty 
Dwelling Management Orders 

Resource intensive. 

Does not present a long term 
solution to poor management of 
private rented properties (up to 
maximum of 5 years – then 
returned to original owner).

Does not tackle poor management 
techniques. Reactive. 

Intervention of last resort. 

Removes rogue landlord 
responsibilities and gives to 
responsible, nominated agent. 

Improves standards for tenants 
and local community.

32



11

In general, there are a number of barriers or limitations to the use of the alternatives to Selective Licensing. 
To summarise: 

 The use of Special Interim Management Orders and Empty Dwelling Management Orders on all 
problematic properties would be neither appropriate nor feasible, given the number of properties. The 
Council must act in a proportionate manner and a heavy handed approach would undermine our 
efforts to work with landlords to improve standards. Selective Licensing provides an opportunity to 
continue to forge partnerships with otherwise often anonymous private landlords and provide training 
and support, where the use of these orders does not

 None of these options adequately tackle the private tenant’s behaviour. This could result in the same 
“problem” tenant being left to float within an area without any real targeted tenancy enforcement and 
where required, supported tenancy referral. The proposed Selective Licence conditions include a 
requirement for the landlord to seek references when allocating the property and to deal with any 
complaints of anti-social behaviour from their tenants (and/or their visitors/children). Furthermore, 
landlords can access advice and support from the Safer Peterborough Partnership’s anti-social 
behaviour team

 None of these tools provide a long-term solution to the training of inexperienced landlords whose 
business would benefit, either because they are not fit, or because of their poor management 
arrangements

 Improvements attained in management standards will have a trickledown effect and will benefit 
tenants and communities across wider areas as landlords have properties in other areas than the 
proposed area and Peterborough as a whole

The Application

If the scheme is adopted, each application would need to be accompanied by:

 2 forms of identification (one to be photo ID)
 A copy of the current gas safety certificate (if applicable)
 A copy tenancy agreement 
 The fee
 A copy membership agreement if you are claiming a discount 

The Fee

Each property will need a licence. Each licence will run for up to 5 years. 

If the property is let to a single family the fee for each licence is £600.

Landlords can pay a discounted fee* of £50 if you meet the following criteria:

 You are an accredited member of a nationally accredited landlords association.
 Your property is managed by an ARLA accredited agent

* This discount is only available for the first 3 months of the scheme or for any property thereafter that is 
being rented for the first time

If the property is let as a house of multiple occupation the fee is £750.

33



12

Application for a Temporary Exemption Notice fee is £50.

Any landlord who is found to be renting a property without having made a valid application 3 months after 
the start of the scheme will have to pay a fee of £900.

Penalties

Incomplete applications will be subject to an administration charge of £30.

Properties that are found not to be compliant with the licence conditions or where multiple inspections are 
required to achieve compliance will be charged a re-inspection fee of £100.

What happens if a landlord fails to apply for a licence?

It will be a criminal offence for a landlord to let a property in the proposed licensing areas without applying 
for a licence. There are a range of sanctions that could be applied. These are:

 Prosecution in the Magistrates Court and an unlimited fine for failure to apply for a licence
 If the Council cannot grant a licence or a licence is revoked, the Council has the power to make an 

Interim Management Order (IMO). This will transfer the management of the property to the council
  The landlord will be unable to use Section 21 to regain possession of their property 
 For any period where an unlicensed property is rented, an application can be made to the 

Residential Property Tribunal for a Rent Repayment Order of up to 12 months.

Right of Appeal

If a landlord feels that the council has made a decision that is unfair, in the first instance they would contact 
the Housing Enforcement Team to try and resolve the problem.

If the landlord still feels the council has acted unfairly they would appeal to the Residential Property 
Tribunal (RPT). The RPT is an independent tribunal that can either confirm, amend or overturn the council’s 
decision.

Monitoring the Proposed Scheme

If the scheme is adopted, the Council must from time to time review the operation of the scheme.

The Council would intend to do this through a series of methods including but not limited to:

 Resident questionnaires
 Monitoring levels of ASB
 Regular reporting of prosecutions and enforcement action
 The number of accredited landlords and agents
 The number of houses brought up to the required housing standard
 The number of category one and two hazards removed from licensed properties
 The number of complaints received regarding poor properties and management
 The number of complaints regarding illegal eviction and harassment

34



13

Housing Enforcement Team

Housing Enforcement Officers will be responsible for the administration of the proposed Selective Licensing 
scheme and would be available for help and advice. They would also be responsible for the inspection of 
the property and ensuring that management conditions are adhered to.

  

35



This page is intentionally left blank

36



Support for landlords 
 
The Council wants to sustain long-term improvements in the quality of private rented sector 
accommodation within the schemes boundaries. Therefore it understands the need to 
ensure a balance is achieved between the rights and responsibilities of landlords and those 
rights and responsibilities of their tenants. 
 
Thus, in addition to the proposed introduction of Selective Licensing, the Council and its 
partners have already introduced some, or are exploring the following, additional measures: 
 
The introduction of a Public Space Protection Order (in accordance with Part 4, Anti-Social 
Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014) within the area.  This will focus enforcement and 
education activity on such things as street drinking, litter and waste management, and other 
aspects of anti-social behaviour that are largely the responsibility of the tenant.  
 
The re-structuring of policing and partner enforcement teams to ensure those areas with the 
biggest challenges receive the most appropriate targeted resource. This has led to dedicated 
policing teams working within some of the proposed Selective Licensing areas focussed on 
working with communities to deal with the issues that matter to them. A joint approach to 
tackling anti-social behaviour is now in place with a range of Council, police and other 
specialists gripping issues with a range of prevention, education and enforcement. These 
teams will work within the regulatory framework to support landlords who seek their 
assistance with tenants who commit damage, anti-social behaviour and engage in other 
problematic behaviour. 
 
The licensing conditions comprising the scheme will set out a staged approach for landlords 
to deal with anti- social behaviour. The landlord, council and other agencies will work 
together to address complaints associated properties.  If the landlord suspects criminal 
activity a responsible landlord will notify the appropriate authorities. We will make this 
easier by ensuring easily understood reporting routes to the landlord support officer, ASB 
team or police.  
 
The Council will take a lead role in improving education and effective support for landlords 
in the management of tenants who cause anti-social behaviour and bringing together the 
appropriate teams and agencies to tackle issues of ASB and support landlords through the 
eviction process should it become necessary to seek possession. 
 
A review of the current Cumulative Impact Policy introduced under The Licensing Act 2003 
that addresses the growth of licensed premises in the Millfield, New England area of the 
City. The policy was introduced to stem the levels of alcohol related anti-social behaviour 
and crime and thus improve the environment and quality of life for all. 
 
Further Training and Education for Landlords: Engagement with landlords has identified a 
training need for some. As part of the scheme we intend to offer a bespoke training package 
and access to an online information library which will be developed with landlords during 
consultation to ensure that the training meets the specific needs of Peterborough landlords. 
 
Additional benefits of Selective Licensing include:  
• Protecting investment in the area.  
• Supporting all local landlords so that they can achieve a benchmark standard of property 

management.  

37

aad280
Typewritten Text
APPENDIX 2



• Improving the quality of life for all by educating those landlords who are not providing 
good quality accommodation or managing their tenancies effectively and removing 
”rogue landlords” altogether.  

• Educating tenants in their responsibilities and the impact of their behaviour on the 
community and neighbours.  

• Improving desirability of area as a place where people want to live.  
• Reducing tenant turnover leading to more sustainable communities, creating 

communities where tenants want to remain  
• Encouraging the use of reputable managing agents when landlords are inexperienced or 

“absentee”.  
   
 

38



Proposed 22 LSOAs 
across 4 schemes

39

aad280_1
Typewritten Text
APPENDIX 3



Proposed 22 LSOAs 
across 4 schemes 
with Dwelling 
markers

40



Proposed 22 LSOAs across 4 
schemes = RED

Consulted with = GREEN

41



Proposed 22 LSOAs across 4 schemes –
Dwelling Level = RED

Consulted with – Dwelling Level = GREEN

42



Breakdown of Individual LSOAs with Map and 
Street Names within LSOA.

Please note, street name does not necessarily 
mean that the entirety of the street is included.43



Bretton North Scheme

44



E01015594 – Peterborough 011C – Bretton North

Including elements of
• BARNSTOCK
• BENLAND
• BRETTON CENTRE
• CLEATHAM
• CLEATHAM BRETTON
• DEERLEAP
• EYRESCROFT
• KING HENRY CHASE
• MUNTJAC CLOSE
• RIGHTWELL
• SCHOOL CLOSE
• STRAWBERRY AVENUE
• STRAWBERRY AVENUE DRIVE
• TOLLGATE

45



E01015596 – Peterborough 009B – Bretton North

Including elements of
• BRYNMORE
• GURNARD LEYS
• MEWBURN
• OLDBROOK
• OUTFIELD
• OXCLOSE
• STIRLING WAY
• STUMPACRE
• WATERGALL

46



E01015639 – Peterborough 021B – Orton Longueville

Including elements of
• BODESWAY
• BREWERNE
• CHEYNEY COURT
• ELDERN
• HERLINGTON
• LEIGHTON
• SALTMARSH
• SHORTFEN
• TOFTLAND
• WILDLAKE

47



Old Peterborough

48



E01015599 – Peterborough 014A – Central

Including elements of
• BRIDGE STREET
• BRIGHT STREET
• CHURCH STREET
• COBDEN STREET
• COWGATE
• CRAIG STREET
• CROMWELL ROAD
• CROSS STREET
• DYSON CLOSE
• GLADSTONE STREET
• HEREWARD CROSS
• LINCOLN ROAD

• LONG CAUSEWAY
• MIDGATE
• MINSTER PRECINCTS
• NEW ROAD
• PRIESTGATE
• QUEEN STREET
• RUSSELL STREET
• ST. MARYS COURT
• TOWNSEND CLOSE
• VIERSEN PLATZ 
• WESTGATE
• WHEEL YARD

49



E01015600 – Peterborough 014B – Central

Including elements of
• BAMBER STREET
• BEECH AVENUE
• COBDEN AVENUE
• COBDEN STREET
• CROMWELL ROAD
• GLADSTONE STREET
• HANKEY STREET
• KIMBOLTON COURT
• LINCOLN ROAD
• RUSSELL MEWS
• RUSSELL STREET
• VICTORIA PLACE

50



E01015601 – Peterborough 012A – Central

Including elements of
• BAMBER STREET
• CAMBRIDGE AVENUE
• CROMWELL ROAD
• DOGSTHORPE ROAD
• GLADSTONE STREET
• GREEN LANE
• LIMETREE AVENUE
• LINCOLN ROAD
• LINCOLN ROAD RO
• NORFOLK STREET
• SILVERWOOD ROAD
• SPRINGFIELD ROAD
• SUMMERFIELD ROAD
• TAVERNERS ROAD
• WINDMILL STREET

51



E01015602 – Peterborough 014C– Central

Including elements of
• BROADWAY
• BROOK STREET
• BURGHLEY ROAD
• CATTLE MARKET ROAD
• CATTLE MARKET WAY
• CHURCH WALK
• COBDEN AVENUE
• CRAWTHORNE ROAD
• CRAWTHORNE STREET
• EASTFIELD ROAD
• FITZWILLIAM STREET
• GRANVILLE STREET
• HENRY STREET
• JORDAN MEWS
• LINCOLN ROAD

• MANOR HOUSE STREET
• MIRAL COURT
• MONUMENT STREET
• NEW ROAD
• NORTH STREET
• NURSERY CLOSE
• PARK ROAD
• RAEDWALD COURT
• ST. MARKS STREET
• STANLEY ROAD
• TOM LOCK COURT
• TOWLER STREET
• WESTGATE

52



E01015603 – Peterborough 010A – Central

Including elements of
• LINCOLN ROAD
• ALEXANDRA ROAD
• ALLEN ROAD
• BERRY COURT
• BOURGES BOULEVARD
• CLARENCE ROAD
• EAGLESTHORPE
• EAGLESTHORPE ROAD
• GILPIN STREET
• GLADSTONE STREET
• HARRIS STREET
• LINCOLN ROAD
• OCCUPATION ROAD
• PEPPERCORN CLOSE
• ROCK ROAD
• SEARJEANT STREET
• ST. PAULS ROAD

53



E01015604 – Peterborough 010B – Central

Including elements of
• BOURGES BOULEVARD
• CLARENCE ROAD
• ENGLISH STREET
• GLADSTONE STREET
• HARRIS STREET
• LOIRE COURT
• PARLIAMENT STREET
• SEARJEANT STREET
• TAVERNERS ROAD

54



E01015611 – Peterborough 013B – East

Including elements of
• ATKINSON STREET
• BISHOPS ROAD
• EASTGATE
• FENGATE
• FENGATE CLOSE
• FENGATE MOBILE HOME PARK
• FIELD WALK
• GLENTON STREET
• GRANBY STREET
• HAMMONDS DRIVE
• HAMMONDS DRIVE WAY
• HARVESTER WAY
• HEREWARD CLOSE
• HEREWARD ROAD
• JAMES AVENUE
• KESTEVEN WALK

• MILLER WAY
• MITCHELL CLOSE
• NENE STREET
• POTTERS WAY
• RUDD CLOSE
• RUTLAND COURT
• SECOND DROVE
• SHROPSHIRE PLACE
• SOUTH STREET
• ST. DAVIDS SQUARE
• STAR ROAD
• STEPHENSON COURT
• TITAN DRIVE
• WAKE ROAD
• WESTMORELAND GARDENS

55



E01015612 – Peterborough 014D – East

Including elements of
• BUCKLE STREET
• BURTON COURT
• BURTON STREET
• CAVENDISH STREET
• CAVENDISH STREET 
• CHARLES STREET
• COBBET PLACE
• DICKENS STREET
• EASTFIELD GROVE
• EASTFIELD ROAD
• EASTHOLM CLOSE
• GLENTON STREET

• MONKSFIELD MEWS
• MORRIS STREET
• PADHOLME ROAD
• PIPE LANE
• ST. JOHNS STREET
• STAR CLOSE
• STAR MEWS
• STAR ROAD
• WARD CLOSE
• WELLINGTON STREET
• WHALLEY STREET
• WHITSED STREET

56



E01015614 – Peterborough 013D – East

Including elements of
• AUGUSTA CLOSE
• COLWYN AVENUE
• EDGERLEY DRAIN ROAD
• ELBORNE WAY
• EYEBURY ROAD
• FRANKLYN CRESCENT
• HERON PARK
• LANGDYKE
• LAVINGTON GRANGE
• LYVELLY GARDENS
• MEADENVALE
• MYRTLE HOUSE CARAVAN PARK
• NEWARK ROAD
• OXNEY ROAD
• PALMERS ROAD
• THE MAPLES
• WHITACRE

57



E01015616 – Peterborough 013F – East

Including elements of
• BELGIC SQUARE
• CHALLENGER WAY
• CHESTER ROAD
• DURHAM ROAD
• EASTFIELD GROVE
• EASTLEIGH ROAD
• EMPSON ROAD
• FLAG FEN ROAD
• GREENGATE COURT
• HEXHAM COURT
• KINGSLEY ROAD
• LEOFRIC SQUARE
• MELLOWS CLOSE
• NEWARK ROAD
• NORMAN ROAD

• NORTH BANK ROAD
• PADHOLME ROAD
• PADHOLME ROAD EAST
• PARK LANE
• RASEN COURT
• ROYCE ROAD
• SABRE WAY
• SARACEN WAY
• SAXON ROAD
• STEVERN WAY
• STOREYS BAR ROAD
• VICARAGE FARM ROAD
• WETHERBY WAY

58



E01015621 – Peterborough 017A – Fletton & Woodston

Including elements of
• ABBEYFIELDS
• CHARTWELL CLOSE
• FAIRFIELD ROAD
• FELLOWES GARDENS
• FLETTON AVENUE
• FLETTON AVENUE FLETTON
• GLEBE ROAD
• GLOUCESTER ROAD
• HADRIANS COURT
• HADRIANS COURT STREET
• HAWKSBILL WAY
• LONDON ROAD
• OUNDLE ROAD

• PARK STREET
• QUEENS ROAD
• QUEENS WALK
• REGAL PLACE
• SPRINGFIELD
• ST. JOHNS ROAD
• STAGSHAW DRIVE

59



E01015622 – Peterborough 016A – Fletton & Woodston

Including elements of
• BALDWIN DRIVE
• SUGAR WAY
• BAYSTON COURT
• BRANCEPETH PLACE
• BREWSTER AVENUE
• CANDY STREET
• CARMEL AVENUE
• CUBITT WAY
• DEER VALLEY ROAD
• DOVE GARDENS
• EARL SPENCER COURT
• FLAMBOROUGH CLOSE
• GEDDINGTON ROAD
• GEORGE STREET
• GROVE COURT
• GROVE STREET
• JUBILEE STREET

• KARIBA COURT
• MOSEL WALK
• OUNDLE ROAD
• PALMERSTON ROAD
• RHINE AVENUE
• ROBDEN COURT
• ROBINS CLOSE
• SWAIN COURT
• THE DELL
• THE SQUIRES
• TOWER COURT
• TOWER STREET
• VAUGHAN WAY
• WARELEY ROAD
• WHARF ROAD
• WHARF ROAD RO
• WILLAN COURT
• WYE VALLEY ROAD

60



E01015624 – Peterborough 017C – Fletton & Woodston

Including elements of
• BARRY WALK
• CHARNWOOD CLOSE
• DAVID CHALMERS CLOSE
• ELM STREET
• FLETTON FIELDS
• HUNTING AVENUE
• LANGFORD ROAD
• LONDON ROAD
• MELROSE DRIVE
• NEW ROAD
• ORCHARD MEWS
• QUEENS WALK
• ORCHARD STREET
• PALMERSTON ROAD
• QUEENS WALK

• SHERWOOD AVENUE
• SILVER STREET
• SYMMINGTON CLOSE
• WOODBINE STREET

61



E01015632 – Peterborough 010C – North

Including elements of
• BELHAM ROAD
• BRASSEY CLOSE
• BURMER ROAD
• CECIL PACEY COURT
• CHAUCER ROAD
• COLERIDGE PLACE
• CROWN STREET
• DRYDEN ROAD
• GRAYS COURT
• KEATS WAY
• KEETON ROAD
• KIPLING COURT
• LINCOLN ROAD
• SCOTNEY STREET
• THISTLEMOOR ROAD

62



E01015652 – Peterborough 012C – Park

Including elements of
• STONE LANE
• ALEXANDRA ROAD
• CLARE ROAD
• EXETER ROAD
• LINCOLN ROAD
• LYNTON ROAD
• NORTHFIELD ROAD
• NORTON ROAD
• OXFORD ROAD
• PEVERIL ROAD
• ST. PAULS ROAD
• STONE LANE
• VERE ROAD
• WARBON AVENUE
• YORK ROAD

63



E01015654 – Peterborough 012E – Park

Including elements of
• DOGSTHORPE ROAD
• ALEXANDRA ROAD
• ALL SAINTS ROAD
• ALMA ROAD
• BURROWS COURT
• CENTURY SQUARE
• CHANTRY CLOSE
• DOGSTHORPE GROVE
• DOGSTHORPE ROAD
• ELIZABETH COURT
• GARTON END ROAD
• GREEN LANE
• HIGHBURY STREET
• INGLEBOROUGH
• JELLINGS PLACE

• LINCOLN ROAD
• PARK CRESCENT
• PARK ROAD
• QUEENS DRIVE WEST
• QUEENS GARDENS
• ST. MARTINS STREET
• VICTORIA STREET
• WATERLOO ROAD

64



E01015655 – Peterborough 014E – Park

Including elements of
• ALL SAINTS ROAD
• BEDFORD STREET
• BRADFIELD WAY
• BROADWAY
• BROADWAY GARDENS
• DOGSTHORPE ROAD
• EASTFIELD ROAD
• GRANVILLE STREET
• HUNTLY GROVE
• OAKLANDS
• PARK ROAD
• PRINCES GARDENS
• PRINCES GATE
• PRINCES STREET
• ST. MARYS CLOSE
• STUART COURT
• VERGETTE STREET

65



E01015668 – Peterborough 017E – Stanground Central

Including elements of
• CHURCH LANE
• CONEYGREE ROAD
• DUKE STREET
• EARLS CLOSE
• EARLS CLOSE COURT
• EDIS COURT
• FELLOWES ROAD
• FLEET WAY
• FLETTON AVENUE
• GARRICK WALK
• HIGH STREET
• HIGH STREET FLETTON
• KINGS ROAD
• KNIGHTS MEWS
• MANOR AVENUE
• MILTON ROAD

• MONARCH AVENUE
• PALACE GARDENS
• PHOENIX CLOSE
• PRINCES ROAD
• RECTORY GARDENS
• SOUTH STREET
• THE GLEN
• VISCOUNT ROAD
• WHITTLESEY ROAD

66



E01015677 – Peterborough 010E – Walton

Including elements of
• CHURCHFIELD COURT
• CHURCHFIELD ROAD
• COUNCIL STREET
• FANE ROAD
• LINCOLN ROAD
• MONTAGU ROAD
• PASTON LANE
• SOUTH VIEW ROAD
• WILLESDEN AVENUE

67



T
his page is intentionally left blank

68



Street Name Summarised Street Numbers

ABBEYFIELDS 1-42

ALEXANDRA ROAD 2-9, 13-60, 62, 67-156, 159-166, 169-185, 187-199(odds only)

ALL SAINTS ROAD 1-73, 75-95(odds only)

ALLEN ROAD 1, 5, 6, 8-26, 31-61, 62-66(evens only)

ALMA ROAD
1, 3, 12-22(evens only), 23-43(odds only), 49, 50, 57-62, 64-74(evens only), 87-

106, 108-118(evens only)

ATKINSON STREET 2-37, 39-51(odds only)

AUGUSTA CLOSE 1-23

BALDWIN DRIVE 1-27, 29-51(odds only)

BAMBER STREET 1, 3, 5-9, 11, 13-40, 42-62(evens only), Bamber Court

BARNSTOCK 1-170

BARRY WALK 1-14

BAYSTON COURT 1-16, 18-34(evens only)

BEDFORD STREET 1-40, 55-69(odds only)

BEECH AVENUE 1-6

BELGIC SQUARE 3, 5, 8, 14

BELHAM ROAD 2-25, 27-35(odds only), 36, 38A, 38B, 38C

BENLAND 1-139

BERRY COURT 1-22

BISHOPS ROAD 19-117(odds only)

BODESWAY 1-48

BOURGES BOULEVARD
786-796(evens only), 822-842(evens only), 896-974(evens only), 1034-

1082(evens only), 1083-1131, 1205-1251(odds only)

BRADFIELD WAY 1-12

BRANCEPETH PLACE 1-27

BRASSEY CLOSE 11

BRETTON CENTRE

BREWERNE 1-66

BREWSTER AVENUE 1-9, 19-22

BRIDGE STREET 25, 37, 94, 96

BRIGHT STREET 38-54(evens only)

BROADWAY
98-136(evens only), 143-153, 160-183, 185, 189, 191-220, 222-226(evens 

only), Broadleigh Residential Home, Lavender House

BROADWAY GARDENS 1-24

BROOK STREET 43, 45

BRYNMORE 1-108

BUCKLE STREET 2-28

BURGHLEY MANSIONS 1-12 Burghley Mansions

BURGHLEY ROAD 9-22, 24-36(evens only), 37-48, 55, 57, 66-104(evens only)

BURMER ROAD 1-76, 95-103(odds only)

BURROWS COURT 1-10, 12-16(evens only)

BURTON COURT 1-39

BURTON STREET
2, 3, 5, 6, 8-11, 14-18, 21-27(odds only), 41-47(odds only), 1-4 Mehdi Court, 

Friary Court

CAMBRIDGE AVENUE 3-45, 47-53(odds only)

CANDY STREET 1-16, 18-22(evens only), 25-27, 29-41(odds only)

CARMEL AVENUE 1-3

CATTLE MARKET ROAD 3

CATTLE MARKET WAY 3

CAVENDISH COURT All

CAVENDISH STREET 1-29, 31A, 31B, 33, 35, 35A, 38-52(evens only)

CECIL PACEY COURT 1-16

CENTURY SQUARE 1-12, 34-100

CHALLENGER WAY 16

CHANTRY CLOSE 1-16

CHARLES STREET 1-9(odds only), 10, 11-19(odds only), 21-62, 64-72(evens only)

CHARNWOOD CLOSE 1-20

CHARTWELL CLOSE 1-10

CHAUCER ROAD 96-112(evens only), 113-160, 162-186(evens only)

CHESTER ROAD 1-21

CHEYNEY COURT 1-33

CHURCH LANE 21-25(odds only)

CHURCH STREET 6

CHURCH WALK 1-13

CHURCHFIELD COURT 1-43

CHURCHFIELD ROAD 2-6, 8, 10-17, 19, 21, 27, 28-38(evens only)

CLARE ROAD 1-20, 22-26(evens only)

CLARENCE ROAD 1-46, 57-68, 69-103(odds only), 104-124(evens only), 125-336

CLEATHAM 1-98

COBBET PLACE 1-12

COBDEN AVENUE 1-12, 47-95(odds only), 104-158(evens only)

COBDEN STREET 1-40, 42-66(evens only), 82-98(evens only), 1-13 Walpole Court

COLERIDGE PLACE 1-6

COLWYN AVENUE 1-30, 32-36(evens only)

CONEYGREE ROAD 2-39, 1-10 Bellamy Court

COUNCIL STREET 1-20

COWGATE 2, 19, 21, 36A, 36B, 50, 50A

CRAIG STREET 1-21, 24-52, Parkodi Court

CRAWTHORNE ROAD 1-8, 10-44(evens only), 84-88(evens only), 1-45 Cathedral Green Court

CRAWTHORNE STREET 1-30, 34-38(evens only)

CROMWELL ROAD 9-295, 297-323(odds only), 1-3 Cromwell Court

CROSS STREET 3, 9, 15, 19, 23

CROWN STREET
1-21(odds only), 22-51, 54-60(evens only), 61-66, 69-79(odds only), 80-82, 84-

96(evens only), 98-108, 117-150,152-162(evens only)

CUBITT WAY 1-55, 57-119(odds only), 120-134

DAVID CHALMERS CLOSE 1-6

DEER VALLEY ROAD 1-56

DEERLEAP 51-152

DICKENS STREET 1-99(odds only)

DOGSTHORPE GROVE 1-7, 9, 11

DOGSTHORPE ROAD
8-18(evens only), 19-63, 68-78(evens only), 79-94, 104-127, 134-185, 186-

208(evens only), 209-239, 241-313(odds only), Millfield Court

DOVE GARDENS 1-7

DRYDEN ROAD 1-24, 26-40(evens only)

DUKE STREET 2-50, 52

DURHAM ROAD 1-19

DYSON CLOSE 1-7

69

aad280_2
Typewritten Text
APPENDIX 4



EAGLESTHORPE 1-151

EARL SPENCER COURT 1-9(odds only), 10-55, 57-75(odds only)

EARLS CLOSE 1-45

EASTFIELD GROVE 1-30, 31-77(odds only)

EASTFIELD ROAD
2-12(evens only), 3, 15-100, 101-109(odds only), 117, 119, 133-143(odds 

only), 198-240(evens only), 260-278(evens only)

EASTGATE 1-15, 17-27(odds only)

EASTHOLM CLOSE 1-11(odds only)

EASTLEIGH ROAD 1-54

EDGERLEY DRAIN ROAD 2-5, Red Brick Farm Cottage

EDIS COURT 1-5

ELBORNE WAY 1-11

ELDERN 3-76

ELIZABETH COURT 1-53

ELM STREET 2-40(evens only)

EMPSON ROAD 1

ENGLISH STREET 1, Marcus House

EXETER ROAD 49-76

EYEBURY ROAD 1-11 & 21-23 Oxney Grange

EYRESCROFT 147-205

FAIRFIELD ROAD 1-3, 6, 8, 10, 13-45, 47-59(odds only)

FANE ROAD 1-7(odds only), 8-25, 27-35(odds only)

FELLOWES GARDENS 1-81

FELLOWES ROAD 1-64, 65-175(odds only)

FENGATE
37-61(odds only), 82-108(evens only), 113-129, 131, 133, 135-145, 147-

169(odds only)

FENGATE CLOSE 1-34

FENGATE MOBILE HOME PARK 1, 3, 4, 6-9, 11, 14-101

FENLAKE BUSINESS CENTRE 19

FIELD WALK 1-33, 35-39(odds only)

FITZWILLIAM STREET 9, 20, 22, 28, 28A, 30, 30A

FLAG FEN ROAD 1-6, 7-29(odds only)

FLAMBOROUGH CLOSE 1-93

FLEET WAY 1-44 Maud Swift Court, Farnsworth Court

FLETTON AVENUE FLETTON 1-61, 68-78(evens only), 79-155, 163-221(odds only), Gabriel Court?

FLETTON FIELDS 1-54

FRANKLYN CRESCENT 1-50, 51-63(odds only)

GARRICK WALK 1-6

GARTON END ROAD 1, 5, 15-57(odds only)

GEDDINGTON ROAD 1-10, 12-46(evens only), 47-58

GEORGE STREET 1-40, 42, 44

GILPIN STREET 1-60, 62-84(evens only)

GLADSTONE STREET
1-400, 401-429(odds only), 431-522, 523-541(odds only), 560-632(evens only), 

1-14 Rosehall Court

GLEBE ROAD 1-20, 22-77, 79-85(odds only)

GLENTON STREET 12-83, 85, 87

GLOUCESTER ROAD 1-65

GRANBY STREET 2, 4

GRANVILLE STREET 1, 11-99, 101-123(odds only) 

GRAYS COURT 1-9, 11, 15, 17

GREEN LANE 1-7(odds only), 8, 9, 11-20, 22-24, 26

GREENGATE COURT 1-27

GROVE COURT 1-39

GROVE STREET 3-15

GURNARD LEYS 175-189(odds only)

HADRIANS COURT 1-93

HAMMONDS DRIVE 1-25, 26-304(evens only)

HANKEY STREET 2-30, 32-38(evens only), 39-49, 51-65(odds only)

HARRIS STREET 2-90, 92-96(evens only), 97, 98, 100-105, 107, 113-135(odds only) 

HARVESTER WAY 2, 4, 7, 9, 14

HAWKSBILL WAY 146-204(evens only)

HENRY STREET 1-32, Henry Court?

HEREWARD CLOSE 1-6

HEREWARD CROSS 19

HEREWARD ROAD 1-21, 22-34(evens only)

HERLINGTON 2-19, 32-72

HERON PARK 1-64

HEXHAM COURT 1-12

HIGH STREET FLETTON

2-10(evens only), 11-49, 51-61(odds only), 62-68, 70, 72, 75-79(odds only), 81-

109, 111, 117, 119, 120-152, 153-217(odds only), Brewster Cottage, Hope 

House

HIGHBURY STREET MILLFIELD 2-10(evens only), 11-23, 26-29, 31, 33, 36, 38, 39-53(odds only)

HUNTING AVENUE 7-37(odds only), 38-58(evens only)

HUNTLY GROVE
1-120, 122-140(evens only), 141-147, 149-153(odds only), 1-24 William 

Nichols Court

INGLEBOROUGH 1-18

JAMES AVENUE 1-11(odds only)

JELLINGS PLACE 1-5

JORDAN MEWS 1-7

JUBILEE STREET 1-49

KARIBA COURT A-D Kariba Court

KEATS WAY 1-12

KEETON ROAD 8-14(evens only), 23-37(odds only)

KESTEVEN WALK 1-112, 113-161(odds only)

KIMBOLTON COURT 1-30

KING HENRY CHASE 1-36, 38-64(evens only)

KINGS ROAD 1-8

KINGSLEY ROAD 2-20, 22-30(evens only)

KIPLING COURT 1-8

KNIGHTS MEWS 1-14

LANGDYKE 1-25

LANGFORD ROAD 1-21, 23-33(odds only)

LAVINGTON GRANGE 1-77

LEIGHTON 1-66, 120-156

LEOFRIC SQUARE 10, 12, 13, 16, 20

LIMETREE AVENUE 1-42

LINCOLN ROAD
21-1051, Lincoln Gate, New England Complex, Fairfields, The Lindens, Cavell 

Court, University Court

LOIRE COURT 1-14

70



LONDON ROAD 1-27, 29, 31, 33, 34, 47-79, 84-86, 88-128(evens only)

LONG CAUSEWAY 32, 34

LYNTON ROAD 1-40, 42-76(evens only)

LYVELLY GARDENS 2-26(evens only), 27-65, 67-87(odds only)

MANOR AVENUE 1-24

MANOR HOUSE STREET 1-12, 17-21(odds only)

MEADENVALE 1-198

MELLOWS CLOSE 1-8, 10-72(evens only)

MELROSE DRIVE 1-33

MEWBURN 1-73

MIDGATE 6, 9

MILLER WAY 2-23, 24-72(evens only)

MILTON ROAD 1-45

MINSTER PRECINCTS
2-9, 11-16, 18, 22, 25-28, Ashton House, Deanery, Gardeners Cottage, Mandell 

House, The Garden House, The Palace, The Vineyard, William Robinson House

MIRAL COURT 1-15

MITCHELL CLOSE 1-26

MONARCH AVENUE 1-25

MONKSFIELD MEWS 2-42(evens only)

MONTAGU ROAD 1-105, 107-135(odds only)

MONUMENT STREET 1-59, 61,61A, 68-76(evens only), Leicester House

MORRIS STREET 1-17, 19-53(odds only), Westbourne House

MOSEL WALK 1-8

MUNTJAC CLOSE 1-15

MYRTLE HOUSE CARAVAN PARK 1-36

NENE STREET 1-6

NEW ROAD 34, 36, 73-79(odds only), 85-117, 119-149(odds only)

NEWARK ROAD 2, 4-7, 9-39(odds only), Adam Court

NORFOLK STREET 1-41

NORMAN ROAD 1-25(odds only), 27-36, 58-66(evens only), 67-95, 97-105(odds only)

NORTH BANK ROAD 1-9, 11, 13

NORTH STREET 7, 11, 13, 15, 28, 30B, 34B

NORTHFIELD ROAD 9, 11-37, 42-77

NORTON ROAD 2-23

NURSERY CLOSE 1-28

OAKLANDS 1-44

OCCUPATION ROAD 1-5

OLDBROOK 1-89

ORCHARD MEWS 1-20

ORCHARD STREET 1-71, 80-94(evens only)

OUNDLE ROAD
1, 2, 8-20(evens only), 21-83, 84-104(evens only), 131, 144-268, 270-

294(evens only), The Apex, The Rectory

OUTFIELD 42-85

OXCLOSE 1-85, 119-164

OXFORD ROAD 2-12(evens only), 15-21(odds only), 22-45

OXNEY ROAD
79, 85-105(odds only), 112-156(evens only), Marriot Court, Amblewood 

Lodge, America Farm, America Farm Cottage

OXNEY ROAD CARAVAN PARK 1-24

PADHOLME ROAD
1-129, 131-135(odds only), 149-161(odds only), 162-185, 187-209(odds only), 

210-222, 224-254(evens only)

PADHOLME ROAD EAST 318-324(evens only), 354, Low Cross House

PALACE GARDENS 1-15

PALMERS ROAD
3-4, 33-39(odds only), Ashbourne, Flag Fen View, Lyndale, Shamrock, 

Westonia, Windy Ridge

PALMERSTON ROAD
1-75, 77-95A(odds only), 84, 84A, 84B, 105-109(odds only), 110-191, 192-

222(evens only), De Montfort Court

PARK CRESCENT 1, 3-9, 11, 17,19, 21, 29, 31-33, 35, 37, 43

PARK LANE 1-106, 108-120(evens only)

PARK ROAD

40, 51-57(odds only), 61-62, 65, 73, 77, 79, 85, 93-99, 101-124, 125-135(odds 

only), 152-186(evens only), 194-195, 201-226, 227-235(odds only), 243-

263(odds only), Caroline Court, Zuleika House

PARK STREET 1-4, 6, 8,10, 14, 16-40, 42-48(evens only)

PARLIAMENT STREET 1-71

PASTON LANE 1-36

PEPPERCORN CLOSE 4 Blenheim Court

PEVERIL ROAD 2-37, 39-51(odds only)

PHOENIX CLOSE 1-10, 11-17(odds only)

PIPE LANE 1-29

POTTERS WAY 1-7(odds only), The Fengate Toll House

PRIESTGATE 25A, 28B, St James House

PRINCES GARDENS 1-11, 13-33(odds only), 36, 40-44(evens only), 53-57(odds only)

PRINCES GATE 30, Parkview Flats, Regency House

PRINCES ROAD 1-45

PRINCES STREET 1-40, 42-62(evens only), 63-86, 88-92(evens only), 91A-B, 93-103(odds only)

QUEEN STREET Queen Street Chambers

QUEENS DRIVE WEST 1-7, 9-27(odds only), 28, 30

QUEENS GARDENS 2, 4-29

QUEENS ROAD 1-89

QUEENS WALK
2-16(evens only), 100-121, 123-127, 129-133(odds only), 147-155(odds only), 

156-172, Fletton Tower

QUEENSGATE CENTRE 2, 6, 24, 27, 65, 67, 76, 97, The Almshouses

RAEDWALD COURT 1-16

RASEN COURT 1-14

RECTORY GARDENS 2, The Old Coach House

REGAL PLACE 1-73

RHINE AVENUE 1-3, 5

RIGHTWELL 1, 5, 6

ROBDEN COURT 1-6

ROBINS CLOSE 1-15

ROCK ROAD 1-17, 22-23

ROYCE ROAD 8, 11, 15, 20

RUDD CLOSE 1-10, 11-41(odds only)

RUSSELL MEWS 1-10

RUSSELL STREET 6-26(evens only), 27-33, 35-41(odds only), 48, 50-99, 100-112(evens only)

RUTLAND COURT 1-20, 22-32(evens only)

SABRE WAY 9-10

71



SALTMARSH 1-30, 41-77, 102-143

SARACEN WAY 6, 14

SAXON ROAD 1-54, 56-78(evens only)

SCHOOL CLOSE 1-44, 46-60(evens only)

SCOTNEY STREET
1-5, 7-11(odds only), 12-18(evens only), 19, 20, 24-51, 58, 60-89, 91, 93, 99-

105 (odds only), 111-127(odds only), 131-159(odds only)

SEARJEANT STREET 1, 2, 6, 7, 9, 14-26, 28-34(evens only)

SECOND DROVE 2, 11, 20, 23, 26, 33, Bridge House

SHERWOOD AVENUE Beech Court

SHORTFEN 1-61

SHROPSHIRE PLACE 1-19(odds only)

SILVER STREET 1-5(odds only), 6-70, 72-84(evens only)

SILVERWOOD ROAD 1-50

SOUTH STREET
1-16, 18-24(evens only), 25-40, 41-89(odds only), 88A,  91-119, 121-135(odds 

only) 

SOUTH VIEW ROAD 1-7, 8-14(evens only), 15-65

SPRINGFIELD All

SPRINGFIELD ROAD 5-42

ST. DAVIDS SQUARE 3, 24, 26

ST. JOHNS ROAD 1-28

ST. JOHNS STREET 36, 60, 64

ST. MARKS STREET 1-15, 40, 42, Claridge Court, Tarragon Court, St Marks Apartments

ST. MARTINS STREET
1-10, 12, 14-18, 20-56, 57-71(odds only), 72-78, 80-94(evens only), Popley 

Court

ST. MARYS CLOSE 1-19, 21-35(odds only)

ST. MARYS COURT
1-116 Cumberland House, Creighton House, Davys House, Dove House, 

Kennett House, Leeson House

ST. PAULS ROAD
1-62, 63-85(odds only), 86-108, 109-123(odds only), 124-142, 149-197(odds 

only)

STAGSHAW DRIVE 1-71, 73-129(odds only)

STANLEY ROAD 1-3, 5-9(odds only)

STAR CLOSE 1-4

STAR MEWS 1-42, Ivory Court

STAR ROAD

1-17(odds only), 18-20, 22-26(evens only), 27-29, 32-48(evens only), 49-57, 66-

98(evens only), 106-134(evens only), 135-192, 202-210(evens only), 213-

227(odds) only) 

STEPHENSON COURT All

STEVERN WAY 9

STIRLING WAY 1-3 Venture Park

STONE LANE 1-12, 15-19, 20A-B 21-37, 33A-B, 39-59(odds only), Hamilton Court

STOREYS BAR ROAD 1 & 3 BRAMHALL PLACE

STRAWBERRY AVENUE 1-12

STUART COURT 1-27

STUMPACRE 103-149

SUMMERFIELD ROAD 1-9(odds only), 10-36, 38-42(evens only)

SWAIN COURT 1-16

SYMMINGTON CLOSE 1-15

TAVERNERS ROAD 1-11 (odds only), 13--17, 21-29(odds only), 35-38, 40, 42, 44-102

THE DELL 130-131

THE GLEN 1-15, 17-23(odds only)

THE MAPLES 1-24

THE SQUIRES 1-25

THISTLEMOOR ROAD
1-11(odds only), 12-55, 57-61(odds only) 62-68, 70-74(evens only), 80-

122(evens only)

TITAN DRIVE 8-16

TOFTLAND 1-77

TOLLGATE 1-110

TOM LOCK COURT 1-4

TOWER COURT 1-34

TOWER STREET 28-38(evens only), 39-63, 65-75(odds only)

TOWLER STREET 2-22(evens only), 25-35(odds only), 36-40, 42, 44

TOWNSEND CLOSE 1-26

VAUGHAN WAY 1-15

VERE ROAD 3-101, 102-114(evens only)

VERGETTE STREET 1-26, 29, 30-40(evens only)

VICARAGE FARM ROAD 1, 3, 6, 7, 10, 13, 15, 16, 24, Bishopsgate House, Hytek House

VICTORIA PLACE 1-5

VICTORIA STREET 1-3, 5, 10-20(evens only)

VIERSEN PLATZ
9, 13, 16, 20, 27, Admiral House, Burlington House, Churchill House, Riverview 

House

VISCOUNT ROAD 2-12(evens only)

WAKE ROAD 1-26, 28, 30

WARBON AVENUE 1-25, 27-53(odds only)

WARD CLOSE 1-15

WARELEY ROAD 2

WATERGALL 66-114, 127-156

WATERLOO ROAD 1-13, 25, 27, 29-41, 48-54(evens only), 56-62

WELLINGTON STREET 109 -175 (odds only), 156

WESTGATE 1, 7, 13, 18-23, 25, 33A, 62A, 62B, De Vecti House

WESTMORELAND GARDENS 1-56, 70-80(evens only)

WETHERBY WAY 1-14, 16-36(evens only)

WHALLEY STREET 1-12, 14, 16, 18, 20, 22, 24-29, 31-33, 35-46, 1-12 Welland House

WHARF ROAD 1-19, 33, 35, 37-67, 71, 73, 77, 79, 81, 83, 85, 87, 100

WHEEL YARD 27A

WHITACRE 1-68

WHITSED STREET 1-11 (odds only), 15-16, 17-21(odds only), 22-42, 44-64(evens only)

WHITTLESEY ROAD Overland Mews, The Meadows

WILDLAKE 1-98

WILLAN COURT 1-8

WILLESDEN AVENUE 1-117

WINDMILL STREET 1, 3, 9-14, 18, 20-24, 26, 30-102(evens only), 101A-B, 102A 103-104, 106

WOODBINE STREET 1-3

WYE VALLEY ROAD 1 - 22

YORK ROAD 5, 19-31 (odds only)

72



1 
 

Annex A – Evidence 

 

For a council to introduce a selective licensing scheme within the city a number of criteria must be 
met as set down in the Housing Act 2004 and subsequent guidance documents issued by the 
Department of Communities and Local Government (DCLG).   

“Selective Licensing in the Private Rented Sector - A Guide for Local Authorities”, published by the 
DCLG in March 2015 sets out the criteria for making a selective licensing scheme and suggests the 
type of evidence needed to support a designation.  

A new general approval came into force with effect from 1 April 2015.  Local authorities are now 
required to obtain confirmation from the Secretary of State for any selective licensing scheme which 
would cover more than 20% of their geographical area or that would affect more than 20% of 
privately rented homes in the local authority area. 

Methodology 

A wide range of data has been analysed to provide an objective geographical appraisal of those areas 
across the city which may benefit from the implementation of a Selective Licensing scheme. The 
criteria used to assess areas for selective licensing are set out below together with the data sources. 
 
Low Housing Demand 

• Lack of Mixed Communities – Proportion of tenure mix* 
• Average House Sale Price 
• Count of Empty Properties 
• Count of Total Crimes 
• Count of Criminal Damage 
• Count of Burglary 
• Count of Robbery 
• Count of Theft 
• Count of Vehicle Crime  
• Proportion of families on Low Income. 

 
Anti-Social Behaviour 

• Lack of Mixed Communities – Proportion of tenure mix* 
• Count of Total ASB 
• Count of Nuisance ASB 
• Count of Personal ASB 
• Count of Environmental ASB 
• Count of Flytipping 
• Count of Rubbish Accumulations 
• Count of Graffiti cleared 

 
Housing Conditions 

• Lack of Mixed Communities – Proportion of tenure mix* 
• Proportion of Private Rented Sector Stock with a Category 1 hazard 

73

aad280_3
Typewritten Text
Appendix 5



2 
 

• Proportion of Private Rented Sector Stock with a Category 2 hazard 
• Count of Housing Complaints 

 
Migration 

• Lack of Mixed Communities – Proportion of tenure mix* 
• Count of Population change between 2011 to 2013 
• Count of New build Completions 

 
Deprivation – 2015 Indices of Multiple Deprivation 

• Lack of Mixed Communities – Proportion of tenure mix* 
• Overall Deprivation score 
• Employment Deprivation score 
• Income Deprivation score 
• Health Deprivation score 
• Access to Education, Training and Other Services score 
• Indoors Sub Domain score 
• Living Environment score 
• Levels of Crime score 

 
Crime 

• Lack of Mixed Communities – Proportion of tenure mix* 
• Count of Total crime 
• Count of Criminal Damage 
• Count of Burglary 
• Count of Robbery 
• Count of Theft 
• Count of Vehicle Crime 
• Rate of Crime per 1000 population 
• % Comparison to National Average 

 
Areas proposed for Selective Licensing must also have a high level of private rented housing. The 
criteria used to demonstrate a ‘high level’ is for an area to have above average levels. Average levels 
are 19% thus any area above 19% can be considered. 
 
Data has been analysed to Lower Super Output Areas (LSOAs) geographies, which average 
approximately 1,500 residents and are defined by the Office of National Statistics. Peterborough has 
112 Lower Super Output Areas.  
 
Peterborough currently has 24 electoral wards which are further divided into LSOAs, with the larger 
urban wards in Peterborough containing up to seven LSOAs. 
 
The average across all LSOAs for each condition was calculated and acts as the benchmark value 
around which all other values are indexed. An index score was established for each LSOA across each 
component within all six conditions. Analysis was then conducted to identify those LSOAs which were 

74



3 
 

above the Peterborough average for each condition. A total of 22 LSOA’s across the city met 5 or more 
of the conditions to be considered for a selective licensing scheme and were above the 19% threshold 
of private rented stock within the area.  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

Number of Conditions met by LSOA

demand asb conditions migration IMD Crime

75



4 
 

 
 
 
 
As the map below clearly demonstrates, there are four potential schemes, one consisting of 19 
adjoining LSOAs, mainly centred around the wards of Central, North, Park, East and Fletton & 
Woodston, including an element of Stanground Central; three others, two of which are in Bretton 
North and one in Orton Longueville.   

 
 
 
 
 
These LSOAs are shown in the map below. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The proposed areas cover 1637 hectares which is 4.8% of the city’s geographical area (34,343 
hectares).  

A total of 37.9% of the Citywide Private Rented Stock is contained within the areas shaded red. The 
total number of privately rented properties across the 22 LSOA’s being considered for selective 
licensing is 6205. 
 
The city of Peterborough has 188,373 residents1  and 82,401 dwellings2, which is an increase from the 
2011 Census data which recorded 183,631 residents and 74,023 dwellings3.   

                                                           
1 ONS 2013 Mid term population estimates 
2 BRE House Condition Report data 2015 
3 Census 2011 

76



5 
 

 
 
 
 
Low housing demand 

When deciding if an area is suffering from, or likely to become, an area of low housing demand, the 
local housing authority should consider the value of residential properties in comparison to the value 
of similar properties in other areas which the authority considers to be comparable.  

The Land Registry sold house prices between September 2012 and July 2015 showed that the 
average sold prices in Peterborough was £157,211. The average selling price across the 22 super 
lower output areas being considered for selective licensing was £130,021, the lowest being in the 
central area at £92,051.  In comparison the average house sold price in west ward was £206,429 and 
in Hampton £178,847.  In Stanground Central the proposed area showed that houses sold for an 
average of £120,584 compared with the rest of Stanground Central with an average selling price of 
£142,970. The two proposed areas of Bretton showed average sold prices of £112,555 and £127,634 
compared to an average for the rest of Bretton north £126,377.  

When there is a lack of mixed communities and/or a high turnover of occupants within an area it is 
difficult to build strong and supportive communities and people are more likely to have less pride 
and interest in their neighbourhoods.  A lack of mixed communities in terms of tenure is an 
indication of an area suffering or likely to suffer from low demand.  

The table below shows the number of dwellings in each LSOA as well as the number of those 
dwellings which are privately rented (PRS). Where the % of privately rented properties is higher than 
the city average this indicates a lack of mixed communities. The remaining dwellings in the areas are 
made up of owner occupied and social housing. 

LSOA WARD 

TOTAL 
DWELLING 

COUNT 

Number 
Private 
Rented 

Properties 
(PRS) % PRS 

E01015594 Bretton North 818 170 20.8% 
E01015596 Bretton North 646 163 25.2% 
E01015599 Central 782 324 41.4% 
E01015600 Central 612 202 33.0% 
E01015601 Central 608 190 31.3% 
E01015602 Central 1045 593 56.7% 
E01015603 Central 890 401 45.1% 
E01015604 Central 549 161 29.3% 
E01015611 East 1073 241 22.5% 
E01015612 East 1027 411 40.0% 
E01015614 East 922 351 38.1% 
E01015616 East 726 149 20.5% 
E01015621 Fletton and Woodston 1078 409 37.9% 
E01015622 Fletton and Woodston 1187 388 32.7% 
E01015624 Fletton and Woodston 850 244 28.7% 

77



6 
 

E01015632 North 774 258 33.3% 
E01015639 Orton Longueville 730 155 21.2% 
E01015652 Park 624 218 34.9% 
E01015654 Park 1051 324 30.8% 
E01015655 Park 962 434 45.1% 
E01015668 Stanground Central 986 264 26.8% 
E01015677 Walton 541 155 28.7% 

 

The city’s total housing stock is 82,401, of which 60.4% are owner occupied, 19.7% are social housing 
and 19.8% are privately rented. 

Within the 22 LSOA’s considered for selective licensing 32.9% of the housing stock is privately 
rented. The highest LSOA being in Central at 56.7%, the average of Central ward being 39.5% 
privately rented. The second highest area being in Park ward with 45.1%. In comparison Hampton’s 
private rented properties total 25.4% of the area, and the West ward with 15.5%.  

Across the city there are currently 540 long term empty properties.  Within the 22 LSOAs proposed 
for selective licensing 43.5% (235) of the city’s empty properties can be found. The highest number 
can be found in Park ward with 38 empty properties followed by Stanground Central ward with 24. 
Central ward has 64 empty properties. 

Empty homes are often magnets for ASB, arson, squatting and have a knock on effect to surrounding 
properties, lowering house prices and generally making the area a less desirable place to live. They 
can be a visual reminder of the need for social, economic and environmental regeneration of an 
area.  

The council should also consider the impact of the rented sector in the local community, for example 
poor property conditions, anti-social behaviour and criminal activity. 

Within the last 12 months, across Peterborough there was a total of 15,074 recorded crimes (13,213 
excluding the city centre). Of the citywide count 6,883 (45.7%) were within the 22 LSOA’s which 
make up  the proposed licensing areas (5,022 totalling 38% excluding the city centre), the highest 
being record in Central ward which contributed 1,710 of the total crimes recorded which is  12.9% of 
the citywide total, 41.7% of the dwellings in Central ward are privately rented. The proposed LSOA’s 
in the East ward contributed 948 crimes which is 7.14% of the city total. 

Ten separate criteria were used to demonstrate low housing demand and applied to all of the 112 
lower super output areas across the city. Of the 22 LSOA’s identified as meeting the overall criteria 
for Selective Licensing 21 met the low housing demand threshold. Each of the LSOA’s was ranked 
within the low housing demand condition. Across the city the 22 LSOA’s are shown with their index 
rank below  

78



7 
 

 

 

Anti-social Behaviour 

When deciding whether areas are suffering from anti-social behaviour which a landlord should 
address, regard must be given as to whether the behaviour is being conducted within the curtilage 
of the rented property or in its immediate vicinity and include acts of: intimidation and harassment 
of tenants or neighbours; noise, rowdy and nuisance behaviour affecting persons living in or visiting 
the vicinity; animal related problems; vehicle related nuisance; illegal drug taking or dealing; graffiti 
and fly posting; litter and waste within the curtilage of the property.  

The BRE Stock Modelling report 20154 showed the change in rates of ASB per household (regardless 
of tenure) between 2001 and 2004 as the start period and 2011 to 2014 as the end period. All of the 
wards containing the 22 LSOAS being considered for selective licensing have ASB higher than the 
Peterborough average and large percentage changes. The wards with the highest percentage 
changes are Central and Park.  

 

                                                           
4 BRE House Condition Report data 2015 

lsoa ward LOW HOUSING DEMAND INDEX RANK
E01015599 Central 1
E01015602 Central 2
E01015654 Park 3
E01015603 Central 4
E01015611 East 5
E01015612 East 6
E01015655 Park 7
E01015622 Fletton and Woodston 8
E01015594 Bretton North 9
E01015652 Park 10
E01015621 Fletton and Woodston 11
E01015668 Stanground Central 12
E01015601 Central 13
E01015632 North 14
E01015616 East 15
E01015604 Central 16
E01015677 Walton 17
E01015624 Fletton and Woodston 18
E01015600 Central 20
E01015639 Orton Longueville 24
E01015614 East 28
E01015596 Bretton North 34

79



8 
 

 

 

Within the last 12 months to end August 2015 there were 8330 anti-social behaviour incidents 
recorded by Cambridgeshire Police within the city. Of those 3218 occurred within the 22 LSOA’s 
which is 38.6% of the overall total. 

The average reported number of ASB incidents across each of the city’s 112 LSOA’s is 74. Within the 
22 proposed LSOA’s the average increases to 146 per LSOA. This highest being in the Central ward 
LSOA’s, with 333 incidents and where 41.7% of the dwellings are privately rented, followed by an 
LSOA in East ward with 191 incidents reported, where 30.8% of the dwellings are privately rented. 

Anti-social behaviour can be broken down into three key components: nuisance, personal and 
environmental. Higher proportions of both personal and environmental ASB occurred within the 
proposed areas. 

• Personal - ASB that is targeted at an individual or group rather than the wider community.  The 
LSOA of Orton Malborne which is in the Orton Longueville ward in which 21.2% of the dwellings 
are privately rented suffers from the highest level of personal ASB with 75 incidents recorded 
within the year. The citywide LSOA average for this criteria is 20 incidents – 17 of the identified 
LSOAs are in excess of this rate. 

• Environmental – ASB that targets the wider environment such as fly tipping, noise, criminal 
damage. 36% of all the city’s environmental ASB falls within the proposed licensing areas. For 
the 22 LSOA’s considered for selective licensing the average number of reported incidents is 12 
per LSOA. Areas within the Central and East wards are significantly higher than the city average 
contributing 44 incidents per LSOA.  

Within the last 12 months there have been 2913 reported incidents of fly tipping reported through 
the ‘My Peterborough’ app of which 35.3% (1028) is from within the proposed areas, the highest 

80



9 
 

number being reported in East ward.  Similarly there were 976 rubbish accumulations reported to 
the council citywide with 46% (449) coming from the proposed areas, with the worst levels being 
reported in Central ward which had over 20% of the total city’s reported rubbish accumulations. The 
private rented properties across the LSOAs in East equate to 30.8% and across the LSOA’s in Central 
equate to 41.7% of all dwellings. Geographically Central ward covers less than 1% of the City’s area.    

Ten separate criteria were used to demonstrate crime and ASB and applied to all of the 112 lower 
super output areas across the city. All of the 22 LSOA’s  were identified as meeting the overall 
criteria for the Selective licensing ASB threshold. Each of the LSOA’s was ranked within the ASB 
condition. Across the city the 22 LSOA’s are shown with their index rank below  

 

lsoa ward 
CRIME & ASB INDEX 

RANK 
E01015599 Central 1 
E01015602 Central 2 
E01015654 Park 3 
E01015611 East 4 
E01015603 Central 5 
E01015612 East 6 
E01015639 Orton Longueville 7 
E01015594 Bretton North 8 
E01015616 East 9 
E01015622 Fletton and Woodston 10 
E01015655 Park 12 
E01015621 Fletton and Woodston 15 
E01015601 Central 17 
E01015632 North 22 
E01015652 Park 24 
E01015600 Central 26 
E01015596 Bretton North 27 
E01015624 Fletton and Woodston 29 
E01015668 Stanground Central 31 
E01015614 East 33 
E01015604 Central 37 
E01015677 Walton 42 

 

Poor Property Conditions 

The local authority should consider poor property conditions including the age and visual 
appearance of the properties. 

In 2014 Peterborough City Council commissioned BRE to undertake a series of modelling exercises 
on their housing stock. This report describes the modelling work and provides details of the results 
obtained from the dwelling level model and database. The database is also provided to the council 
to enable them to obtain specific information whenever required. 

81



10 
 

This current report covers the BRE Integrated Dwelling Level Stock Models and Database. 
Peterborough City Council provided Energy Performance Certificate (EPC), Local Land and Property 
Gazetteer (LLPG) and vacant properties data and as a result 34,259 addresses have had their inputed 
energy characteristics replaced with observed characteristics from the EPC data for the purposes of 
the energy model. 

The stock models and database provide the council with dwelling level information on various key 
housing indicators, focussing on private sector housing. The key indicators provide Peterborough 
with detailed information on the likely condition of the stock and the geographical distribution of 
properties of interest. These properties are likely to be suitable targets for energy efficiency 
improvements or other forms of intervention, such as mitigating Housing Health and Safety Rating 
System (HHSRS) hazards. 

The key indicators and other information are derived from the Housing Stock Database which is 
made up of a series of Dwelling Level Stock Models. The BRE dwelling level stock models have been 
used for many years to provide key housing indicators to local authorities The most recent 2014 
models have been updated to make use of the results of the 2011 English Housing Survey (EHS) and 
additionally now incorporate a technique known as geomodelling which makes use of Ordnance 
Survey (OS) data. The models also make significant use of the Experian UK Consumer Dynamics 
Database of dwelling and household indicators as inputs to the models. 

The main aims of the BRE report were to provide estimates of: 
• The percentage of dwellings meeting each of the key indicators for Peterborough overall 

and broken down by tenure and then mapped by COA (private sector stock only) 
• Information relating to LAHS reporting for the private sector stock - category 1 hazards and 

HMOs, plus information on EPC ratings 
• The basic Green Deal variables for the private sector stock (wall and loft insulation) 
• Energy efficiency variables 

Potential energy/carbon savings through improvement scenarios 
• Changes in tenure of the private housing stock and incidents of anti-social behaviour (ASB) 
• Overcrowding 
• Vacant properties 
• Demand for handyperson services5  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                           
5 BRE Housing Condition Report 2015 

82



11 
 

Estimates of the percentage of dwellings meeting the key indicator criteria assessed by the housing 
stock models and database for all stock and private sector stock – Peterborough compared to East of 
England and England (EHS 2011) 

 

 

Poor property conditions are assessed under the Housing Act 2004 using the Housing Health and 
Safety Rating System to carry out statistical based risk assessments on dwellings.  It focuses on 
identifying and tackling the hazards that are most likely to be present in housing and most likely to 
impact on the health and wellbeing of the occupants.  Its intention is to make homes healthier and 
safer to live in. 

The system considers 29 separate hazards relating to: 

• Dampness, excess cold/heat  

• Pollutants e.g. asbestos, carbon monoxide, lead  

• Lack of space, security or lighting, or excessive noise  

• Poor hygiene, sanitation, water supply  

• Accidents - falls, electric shocks, fires, burns, scalds  

• Collisions, explosions, structural collapse  

83



12 
 

Each hazard is assessed separately, and if judged to be 'serious', with a 'high score', is deemed to be 
a category 1 hazard. All other hazards are called category 2 hazards. 

A risk assessment looks at the likelihood of an incident arising from the condition of the property 
and the likely harmful outcome. If a local authority discovers category 1 hazards in a home, it has a 
duty to take the most appropriate action.  

Within the proposed licensing areas just under 1 in 5 of all private rented properties has at least one 
category one hazard and just under 1 in 4 privately rented properties has one or more category two 
hazards.  

In the proposed selective licensing areas there are approximately 6205 privately rented properties, 
therefore 1,104 privately renting households are living in a property with at least 1 category one 
hazard and 1430 privately renting households are living in a property with at least 1 category two 
hazard.  

The graphs below show the percentage of privately rented properties in each of the LSOA’s being 
considered for selective licensing that have category one and category two hazards.  

 

 

0.0%
5.0%

10.0%
15.0%
20.0%
25.0%
30.0%

Category  1 hazards

0.0%

5.0%

10.0%

15.0%

20.0%

25.0%

30.0%

35.0%

Category  2 hazards

84



13 
 

Consideration should also be given to where, following a review of housing conditions under section 
3(1) of the Housing Act 2004, the authority considers a significant number of properties in the 
private rented sector need to be inspected in order to determine whether any of those properties 
contain category 1 or 2 hazards.  

Within the last 12 months 987 complaints have been received by the city council relating to 
conditions within the privately rented properties citywide.  Of those complaints 485 were about 
properties within the 22 LSOA’s proposed for selective licensing equating to 49%. Across the area 
this equates to an average of 22 per LSOA compared with a city wide average of 8 complaints per 
LSOA.  Of the 485 complaints 202 were about properties within the Central ward, where there are 
approximately 1871 properties which are privately rented followed by LSOAs in East with 79 
complaints and where 1152 properties are privately rented.  The LSOAs in Park ward totalled 88 
complaints, where 976 properties are privately rented, and the LSOAs in Fletton and Woodston 
totalled 42 complaints and 1041 of the properties are privately rented.  

It is a requirement under the Energy Performance of Buildings (Certificates and Inspections) (England 
and Wales) Regulations 2012 for all properties that are rented to have a valid energy performance 
certificate to be made available to tenants prior to entering into a contract to rent the property, so 
that tenants are able to make informed choices about the likely costs of heating their homes and the 
affordability before they are tied into a contract. Since August 2013 there have been 180 notices 
served on landlords across the city for renting out properties without a valid certificate.  118 of these 
notices were served for properties within the LSOAs in the Central and East wards of the city. 

Since August 2013 the council has served 117 notices on landlords who have failed to address poor 
housing conditions voluntarily with advice and support from the housing enforcement team. These 
notices were served to address a whole range of issues from a single hazard relating to reducing 
overcrowding or lack of heating and hot water to prohibiting whole properties due to the level of 
hazards and amount of work required to make them suitable being unreasonable or unable to be 
carried out.  

The table below shows the details of landlords and letting agents who have been prosecuted by the 
local authority for failure to comply with housing legislation. All have been within the 22 LSOA’s that 
are being considered for selective licensing. 

Property Defendant Offence Outcome Fine 

63 Bringhurst, Orton 
Goldhay 

Matthew CANHAM Fail to comply with Notice S235 of Housing Act 
2004 

Guilty £500.00 

Fail to comply with Housing Improvement Notice 
S11 Housing Act 2004 

Guilty £500.00 

The Lindens, 10/10A 
Limetree Avenue, PE1 2NS 

Shahnawaz LAL Fail to licence HMO & Breach of Regulations S234 Guilty £7,000.00 

95 Bishops Road, PE7 8JG Katie AMPS Breach of Management Regulations Guilty £300.00 

66 Russell Street, PE1 2BJ Smart Move (Peterborough) Limited Fail to comply with Notice S235 of Housing Act 
2004 

Guilty £500.00 

204 Cromwell Road, PE1 2HG Mohammed KHUBAIB  &  Maroof 
HUSSAIN 

Fail to licence HMO   
 
Fail to comply with S235 Notice 

Guilty £2,250.00 

Maroof HUSSAIN Guilty £1,250.00 

44 Silverwood, PE1 2JF Zaffer BASHIR Fail to comply S235 Notice & Provide false or 
misleading information 

Guilty £300.00 

53 Stone Lane, PE1 3BN Kevin LARGE Fail to comply with Notice S235 of Housing Act 
2004 

Guilty £200.00 

85



14 
 

Breach of Management Regulations Guilty £250.00 

Fail to Licence HMO Guilty £500.00 

145 Lincoln Road, PE1 2JB Haris Properties Ltd &  Shahnawaz LAL 
&           Mohammed YAQOOB 

Fail to licence HMO Guilty £2,000.00 

Haris Properties Ltd & Shahnawaz LAL FTC S235 Notice Guilty  Incl 
above 

196 Dogsthorpe Rd Mohammed Mahboob YOUSAF S80 (FTC S79(1)) Guilty £850.00 

    Fail to comply with Improvement Notices 
S11 Housing Act 2004 

Guilty  £1,500.00 

    Fail to comply with Improvement Notices 
S11 & S12 Housing Act 2004 

Guilty  Incl 
above 

 

Four separate criteria were used to demonstrate housing conditions and applied to all of the 112 
lower super output areas across the city. Of the 22 LSOA’s identified as meeting the overall criteria 
for Selective licensing 21 met the housing conditions demand threshold. Each of the LSOA’s was 
ranked within the low housing demand condition. Across the city the 22 LSOA’s are shown with their 
index rank below:  

lsoa ward 
HOUSING CONDITIONS 

INDEX RANK 
E01015602 Central 1 
E01015603 Central 2 
E01015612 East 3 
E01015655 Park 4 
E01015654 Park 5 
E01015599 Central 6 
E01015600 Central 8 
E01015601 Central 9 
E01015632 North 10 
E01015621 Fletton and Woodston 11 
E01015622 Fletton and Woodston 13 
E01015652 Park 14 
E01015624 Fletton and Woodston 16 
E01015668 Stanground Central 17 
E01015614 East 21 
E01015604 Central 22 
E01015611 East 29 
E01015677 Walton 30 
E01015596 Bretton North 31 
E01015616 East 37 
E01015639 Orton Longueville 38 
E01015594 Bretton North 44 

 

High Levels of Migration 

A designation can be made to preserve or improve the economic conditions of areas to which 
migrants have moved and ensure people (including migrants) occupying private rented properties do 
not live in poorly managed housing or unacceptable conditions. 

86



15 
 

Robustly establishing the impact of migration on an area is challenging. There are limited sources of 
accurate data that can be utilised, however, there are certain sources that can provide indicative 
information. The 2011 census provided population counts across all LSOAs in the city, this 
information, coupled with the recently released 2013 mid-term population estimates allowed for 
analysis to be conducted to identify those areas that had a numerical change.  

Planned population growth could be deemed as where housing development has occurred and 
population numbers understandably increase. Unplanned population growth is where population 
increases have been noticed, though without dwellings being built to accommodate this growth. 
With this in mind, the population change across each LSOA was compared against the number of 
new build completions spanning the same time period.  

It could be assumed that if an area has had an increase in population, and little to no housing being 
built, these new residents are either taking up existing empty properties or the housing composition 
dynamics have change to accommodate them. 

Over the 10 years between the 2001 and 2011 census the proposed areas have experienced a 
relatively large increase in the size of the population. 2001 Census showed a combined population of 
33,202, this increased by over 9000 people to 42,233. These increases have been assisted by the 
increased population of White Other ethnic groups – evidence from the 2011 census shows that 
across the selected 22 LSOAs, 70% of White Other Ethnicities live in Private Rented accommodation. 
This increases to almost 80% across the Central ward. 

Three separate criteria were used to assess the impact of migration and applied to all of the 112 
LSOAs across the city. Of the 22 LSOA’s identified as meeting the overall criteria for Selective 
licensing 17 met the migration threshold. Each of the LSOAs was ranked within the migration 
condition. Across the city the 22 LSOA’s are shown with their index rank below: 

lsoa ward 
MIGRATION CONDITIONS INDEX 

RANK 
E01015603 Central 4 
E01015612 East 5 
E01015652 Park 7 
E01015602 Central 11 
E01015594 Bretton North 12 
E01015622 Fletton and Woodston 13 
E01015616 East 15 
E01015599 Central 18 
E01015614 East 25 
E01015596 Bretton North 27 
E01015600 Central 28 
E01015668 Stanground Central 30 
E01015639 Orton Longueville 31 
E01015632 North 38 
E01015604 Central 39 
E01015655 Park 41 
E01015677 Walton 43 
E01015624 Fletton and Woodston 50 

87



16 
 

E01015654 Park 52 
E01015621 Fletton and Woodston 90 
E01015611 East 107 
E01015601 Central 109 

 

High Levels of Deprivation 

In deciding whether the authority considers the areas to be suffering from high levels of deprivation 
the authority should consider the English Indices of Deprivation 2015, provided by the Department 
for Communities and Local Government in comparison to other similar neighbourhoods in the area 
or within the region.  

This data measures overall multiple deprivation experienced by persons living in geographical areas 
at LSOA levels. Each LSOA in England is ranked according to its level of deprivation relative to that of 
other areas.  There are multiple domains and sub-domains that make up the overall deprivation 
level. Peterborough ranks 58th most deprived out of the 327 local authority areas in England.  

  

http://dclgapps.communities.gov.uk/imd/idmap.html 

 

There are clearly areas within the city that rank in the top 10% most deprived LSOAs nationally and 
others that rank in the bottom 10%.  The table below shows the national ranking of each LSOA 
within the proposed licensing areas.  (1 = top 10% - 10 = bottom 10%) for each criteria.  

88

http://dclgapps.communities.gov.uk/imd/idmap.html


17 
 

 

 

The average income of households - The Income Deprivation Domain measures the proportion of 
the population in an area experiencing deprivation relating to low income. The definition of low 
income used includes both those people that are out-of-work, and those that are in work but who 
have low earnings. Within the proposed areas 2 of the LSOAs in East ward and Orton Malborne 
within the Orton Longueville ward fall within the top 10% nationally and all of Central ward, North 
ward and part of East ward fall within the top 20% nationally.  

The employment status of adults - The employment deprivation of adults is calculated by looking at 
claimants of benefit including Job Seekers Allowance, Employment Support Allowance, Invalidity 
Benefit, Severe Disablement Allowance, and Carer’s Allowance. Within the proposed areas Orton 
Malborne (within the Orton Longueville ward) falls within the top 10% nationally and Bretton, most 
of Central, East, North, Stanground and Walton all fall within the top 20%. 

The health of households - The Health Deprivation and Disability Domain measures the risk of 
premature death and the impairment of quality of life through poor physical or mental health. The 
domain measures morbidity, disability and premature mortality but not aspects of behaviour or 
environment that may be predictive of future health deprivation. Within the proposed areas Orton 
Malborne falls within the top 10% nationally, Stanground, part of Park and most of Central and East 
areas fall within the top 20% nationally.   

The availability and ease of access to education, training and other services for households - The 
Education, Skills and Training Domain measures the lack of attainment and skills in the local 
population. The indicators fall into two sub-domains: one relating to children and young people and 
one relating to adult skills. These two sub-domains are designed to reflect the ‘flow’ and ‘stock’ of 
educational disadvantage within an area respectively. That is, the ‘children and young people’ sub-

LS
O

A 
co

de
 (2

01
1)

In
de

x 
of

 M
ul

tip
le

 D
ep

riv
at

io
n 

(IM
D)

 D
ec

ile
 

(w
he

re
 1

 is
 m

os
t d

ep
riv

ed
 1

0%
 o

f L
SO

As
)

In
co

m
e 

De
cil

e 
(w

he
re

 1
 is

 m
os

t d
ep

riv
ed

 
10

%
 o

f L
SO

As
)

Em
pl

oy
m

en
t D

ec
ile

 (w
he

re
 1

 is
 m

os
t 

de
pr

iv
ed

 1
0%

 o
f L

SO
As

)

Ed
uc

at
io

n,
 S

ki
lls

 a
nd

 T
ra

in
in

g 
De

cil
e 

(w
he

re
 

1 
is 

m
os

t d
ep

riv
ed

 1
0%

 o
f L

SO
As

)

He
al

th
 D

ep
riv

at
io

n 
an

d 
Di

sa
bi

lit
y 

De
cil

e 
(w

he
re

 1
 is

 m
os

t d
ep

riv
ed

 1
0%

 o
f L

SO
As

)

Cr
im

e 
De

cil
e 

(w
he

re
 1

 is
 m

os
t d

ep
riv

ed
 1

0%
 

of
 LS

O
As

)

Ba
rr

ie
rs

 to
 H

ou
sin

g 
an

d 
Se

rv
ice

s D
ec

ile
 

(w
he

re
 1

 is
 m

os
t d

ep
riv

ed
 1

0%
 o

f L
SO

As
)

Liv
in

g 
En

vi
ro

nm
en

t D
ec

ile
 (w

he
re

 1
 is

 m
os

t 
de

pr
iv

ed
 1

0%
 o

f L
SO

As
)

In
co

m
e 

De
pr

iv
at

io
n 

Af
fe

ct
in

g 
Ch

ild
re

n 
In

de
x 

(ID
AC

I) 
De

cil
e 

(w
he

re
 1

 is
 m

os
t 

de
pr

iv
ed

 1
0%

 o
f L

SO
As

)

In
co

m
e 

De
pr

iv
at

io
n 

Af
fe

ct
in

g 
O

ld
er

 P
eo

pl
e 

(ID
AO

PI
) D

ec
ile

 (w
he

re
 1

 is
 m

os
t d

ep
riv

ed
 

10
%

 o
f L

SO
As

)

Ch
ild

re
n 

an
d 

Yo
un

g 
Pe

op
le

 S
ub

-d
om

ai
n 

De
cil

e 
(w

he
re

 1
 is

 m
os

t d
ep

riv
ed

 1
0%

 o
f 

LS
O

As
)

Ad
ul

t S
ki

lls
 S

ub
-d

om
ai

n 
De

cil
e 

(w
he

re
 1

 is
 

m
os

t d
ep

riv
ed

 1
0%

 o
f L

SO
As

)

Ge
og

ra
ph

ica
l B

ar
rie

rs
 S

ub
-d

om
ai

n 
De

cil
e 

(w
he

re
 1

 is
 m

os
t d

ep
riv

ed
 1

0%
 o

f L
SO

As
)

W
id

er
 B

ar
rie

rs
 S

ub
-d

om
ai

n 
De

cil
e 

(w
he

re
 1

 
is 

m
os

t d
ep

riv
ed

 1
0%

 o
f L

SO
As

)

In
do

or
s S

ub
-d

om
ai

n 
De

cil
e 

(w
he

re
 1

 is
 m

os
t 

de
pr

iv
ed

 1
0%

 o
f L

SO
As

)

O
ut

do
or

s S
ub

-d
om

ai
n 

De
cil

e 
(w

he
re

 1
 is

 
m

os
t d

ep
riv

ed
 1

0%
 o

f L
SO

As
)

E01015594 Bretton North 2 3 2 2 2 1 4 8 3 4 1 3 5 3 9 4
E01015596 Bretton North 2 2 2 1 3 6 1 9 2 3 1 1 2 2 9 6
E01015599 Central 2 2 3 1 2 1 3 2 3 1 2 1 9 1 3 2
E01015600 Central 1 2 2 1 2 2 3 2 3 1 1 1 10 1 3 1
E01015601 Central 2 2 3 1 3 2 3 2 3 1 2 1 10 1 3 1
E01015602 Central 1 2 2 1 2 1 4 1 2 4 1 2 9 2 1 1
E01015603 Central 1 2 2 1 2 1 3 1 2 2 1 1 8 2 2 1
E01015604 Central 1 2 2 1 2 2 3 3 3 1 1 1 10 1 4 2
E01015611 East 1 1 2 1 2 2 3 4 1 1 1 1 5 2 4 3
E01015612 East 2 2 2 1 2 1 3 2 2 1 1 2 7 2 2 2
E01015614 East 4 3 4 3 4 5 3 5 3 3 3 3 4 3 5 4
E01015616 East 1 1 2 1 2 6 3 8 1 1 1 1 9 1 8 5
E01015621 tton and Woods 4 4 5 4 5 2 4 2 4 6 4 5 5 3 3 1
E01015622 tton and Woods 4 4 4 5 4 2 5 5 4 3 5 6 5 4 6 2
E01015624 tton and Woods 3 4 4 4 3 2 6 2 4 5 3 5 5 4 2 2
E01015632 North 2 2 2 1 4 1 5 2 2 2 1 1 9 2 3 2
E01015639 Orton Longuevill 1 1 1 1 1 2 1 7 1 2 1 1 3 2 9 3
E01015652 Park 3 4 4 1 4 2 6 2 4 3 2 1 9 2 3 1
E01015654 Park 2 2 3 3 2 1 5 2 3 3 3 2 10 2 2 2
E01015655 Park 4 5 5 5 4 2 7 2 5 5 6 5 9 3 3 1
E01015668 tanground Centr 3 2 3 2 2 5 7 3 2 2 1 4 10 3 2 4
E01015677 Walton 3 3 3 2 3 2 8 1 2 5 1 3 10 4 1 2

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10
1-10% most deprived Nationally 90-100% least deprived Nationally

89



18 
 

domain measures the attainment of qualifications and associated measures (‘flow’), while the ‘skills’ 
sub-domain measures the lack of qualifications in the resident working-age adult population 
(‘stock’). Of the proposed areas 11 LSOAs fall within the top 10% nationally, predominantly within 
Central and East areas with Bretton, Stanground and Walton falling within the top 20% nationally.  

The Living Environment Deprivation Domain measures the quality of the local environment. The 
indicators fall into two sub-domains. The ‘indoors’ living environment measures the quality of 
housing; i.e the proportion of houses that do not have central heating and the proportion of social 
and private homes that fail to meet the Decent Homes standard.  Within our proposed areas the 
Central and East areas fall within the top 30% nationally, as do Orton Malborne, Park and the 
Bretton North areas. The BRE Housing Stock condition report 2015 showed the housing stock by 
tenure with the percentage of properties and the related hazards, fuel poverty, and disrepair along 
with information regarding low income households. 
 

 
Ten separate criteria were used to demonstrate deprivation and applied to all of the 112 lower super 
output areas across the city. Of the 22 LSOAs identified as meeting the overall criteria for Selective 
licensing all 22 met the deprivation threshold. Each of the LSOAs was ranked within the low housing 
demand condition. Across the city the 22 LSOAs are shown with their index rank below  

lsoa ward IMD INDEX RANK 
E01015602 Central 1 
E01015603 Central 2 
E01015612 East 4 
E01015639 Orton Longueville 6 
E01015599 Central 9 
E01015654 Park 12 
E01015594 Bretton North 14 
E01015632 North 15 
E01015600 Central 17 
E01015604 Central 18 

Indicator 

Private Sector Stock Social Stock 
Owner occupied Private Rented 

No. % No. % No. % 

Number of Dwellings 49,804 ~ 16,353 ~ 16,244 ~ 

HHSRS category 
1 hazards 

All hazards 5435 11% 2430 15% 1015 6% 

Excess Cold 1761 4% 710 4% 287 2% 

Fall Hazards 4718 9% 2225 14% 730 4% 

Disrepair 1159 2% 841 5% 148 1% 

Fuel Poverty (10%) 5302 11% 2856 17% 1330 8% 
Fuel Poverty (Low income/High 
Cost) 2776 6% 4486 27% 994 6% 

Low income households 10559 21% 6664 41% 12374 76% 

HHSRS category 2 hazards 7583 15% 3515 21% 1680 10% 

90



19 
 

E01015611 East 21 
E01015601 Central 25 
E01015655 Park 32 
E01015622 Fletton and Woodston 33 
E01015616 East 36 
E01015652 Park 41 
E01015621 Fletton and Woodston 42 
E01015624 Fletton and Woodston 45 
E01015677 Walton 48 
E01015596 Bretton North 49 
E01015668 Stanground Central 51 
E01015614 East 61 

 

High Levels of Crime 

When considering whether areas suffer from high levels of crime a local authority may wish to have 
regard to whether the area has displayed a noticeable increase in crime over a relatively short 
period, whether the crime rate in the area is significantly higher than in other parts of the local 
authority area or that the crime rate is higher than the national average. In particular the local 
authority may want to consider whether the impact of crime in the areas affects the local 
community and the extent to which a selective licensing scheme can address the problems. 

Licensing must be part of a wider strategy to address crime in the designated areas and can only be 
made if a high proportion of properties in that area are privately rented. The authority should 
consider: 

• Whether the criminal activities impact on some people living in privately rented 
accommodation as well as others living in the areas and businesses  

• The nature of the criminal activity, eg theft, burglary, arson, criminal damage, graffiti 
• Whether some of the criminal activity is the responsibility of some people living in privately 

rented accommodation 

Nationally the rate of crime per 1,000 population is 63.8, Peterborough’s overall rate of crime per 
1,000 population is significantly higher at 80.2 crimes per 1,000 population.  

Within the last 12 months, across Peterborough (excluding the city centre) there was a total of 
13,213 recorded crimes. Of those 6,883 (52.1%) were within 22 LSOAs which make up  the proposed 
licensing areas The highest being recorded in the LSOAs within Central ward which contributed 1,710 
of the total crimes recorded which is 12.9% of the citywide total. The proposed LSOAs in the East 
ward contributed 948 crimes which is 7.14% of the city total. 

Within the last 12 months there have been 577 recorded burglaries across the city with 200 
occurring within the proposed areas which equates to 35% of all burglaries. The average number of 
burglaries in each LSOA across the whole of Peterborough is 5, however in the proposed LSOAs this 
increases to 9. The highest recorded burglaries were within the Central LSOA – E010105602, within 
that LSOA 56.7% of the dwellings are privately rented, in LSOA – E01015603 45% are privately 
rented.  Within the LSOA – E01015652 in Park ward 35% of all dwellings are privately rented and in 
the North ward LSOA – E01015632  33.3% of all dwellings are privately rented.  

 

91



20 
 

 

 

Within the last 12 months there were 229 reported robberies within the city with 142 being within 
the proposed areas, this equates to 62% of all robberies. The average number of robberies in each 
LSOA across the whole of Peterborough is 2, however in the proposed LSOAs this increases to 6. The 
highest recorded number of robberies were recorded in the Central LSOA – E010105602 where 
56.7% of the dwellings are privately rented. Followed by LSOA E01015654 in Park ward where 31% 
of the dwellings are privately rented and in LSOA E01015612 in East ward where 40% of the 
dwellings are privately rented.    

 

 

 

 

 

0
2
4
6
8

10
12
14
16
18

Burglaries

0

5

10

15

20

25

Robberies

92



21 
 

Within the last 12 months there were 2120 reported vehicle related crimes within the city with 782 
being within the selected areas, this equates to 37% of all robberies. The average number of vehicle 
related crime in each LSOA across the whole of Peterborough is 19, however in the proposed LSOAs 
this increases to 35. The highest recorded number of vehicle related crimes were recorded in the 
Central LSOA – E010105602 where 56.7% of the dwellings are privately rented. Followed by LSOA 
E01015599 also in Central ward where 41% of the dwellings are privately rented and in LSOA 
E01015611 in East ward where 22.5% of the dwellings are privately rented. 

 

Within the last 12 months there were 4465 thefts reported across Peterborough with 2454 being 
within the proposed areas, which is 55% of the total thefts within the city. The average number of 
thefts in each LSOA across the whole of Peterborough is 39, however across the proposed LSOAs this 
increases to 111* (including city centre data). The highest recorded number of thefts were recorded 
in the Central LSOA – E010105602 where 56.7% of the dwellings are privately rented. Followed by 
LSOA E01015594 in Bretton North where 21% of the dwellings are privately rented and in LSOA 
E01015677 in Walton where 29% of the dwellings are privately rented. 

 

*Graph excludes city centre data 

 

0
10
20
30
40
50
60
70
80
90

Vehicle Related Crime

0
50

100
150
200
250
300

Theft

93



22 
 

The proposed areas contain 37.9% of the citywide private rented accommodation. The proposed 
areas cover 1637 hectares which is 4.8% of the city’s geographical area (34,343 hectares).  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Ten separate criteria were used to demonstrate crime and applied to all of the 112 lower super 
output areas across the city. Of the 22 LSOAs identified as meeting the overall criteria for selective 
licensing 22 met the crime threshold. Each of the LSOAs was ranked within the crime condition. 
Across the city the 22 LSOA’s are shown with their index rank below  

lsoa ward CRIME INDEX RANK 
E01015599 Central 1 
E01015602 Central 2 
E01015594 Bretton North 3 
E01015654 Park 4 
E01015603 Central 5 
E01015677 Walton 6 
E01015611 East 7 
E01015612 East 9 
E01015616 East 10 
E01015601 Central 12 
E01015639 Orton Longueville 13 
E01015655 Park 14 
E01015622 Fletton and Woodston 15 
E01015652 Park 17 
E01015632 North 18 
E01015621 Fletton and Woodston 21 
E01015604 Central 23 

94



23 
 

E01015624 Fletton and Woodston 25 
E01015668 Stanground Central 26 
E01015600 Central 28 
E01015614 East 30 
E01015596 Bretton North 34 

 

 

 

 

95



This page is intentionally left blank

96



1

APPENDIX 6: Selective Licensing – Proposed Conditions 

Selective Licensing Scheme Conditions Schedule 4 - Housing Act 2004

These conditions are set out in sections no 1 to 19

The licence holder must ensure that the premises fully comply with each of the conditions in sections 
1 to 19 below unless specific alternatives are notified and agreed with the case officer.

Failure to comply with any condition may result in legal proceedings including fines up to £5,000 and 
loss of the licence

Licence holder includes any agent or representative acting on behalf of the licence holder

97



2

1. Tenancy Management

The Licence Holder must give the occupiers a written statement of the terms on which they occupy 
the house (tenancy agreement) and details of the arrangements in place to deal with repairs and 
emergencies.  Copies of the written statement of terms must be provided to the Council for 
inspection within 7 days upon demand

The licence holder must act lawfully and reasonably in requiring any deposits from occupiers, in 
handling rents, in returning deposits and in making deductions from deposits.  The licence holder will 
provide occupiers/prospective occupier with the following information:

 The amount of rent payable
 The details of any deposit required
 Details of what the deposit covers and arrangements for its return
 The frequency of payments
 The details of any utilities (gas, electric, water) or other charges included in the rent
 The responsibility for payment of Council Tax
 The responsibility for payment of utilities and arranging provision of such
 Provide tenants with written details of how to dispose of rubbish properly, including 

appropriate use of the bulky waste collection service and information on the recycling centre 
provided by Peterborough City Council. 

 It must also include a prohibition regarding the illegal burning of waste and warn residents 
not to fly-tip from the property.

The licence holder shall ensure that each tenant is made aware, in written format, that they are 
responsible for their own behaviour and the behaviour of other occupiers and visitors.  Tenants must 
be made aware that if they, other occupiers, or their visitors: Cause nuisance or annoyance to 
neighbours; or fail to dispose of refuse properly; or cause damage to fixtures, fittings, fire prevention 
or alarm equipment or installations, or to the fabric of the premises; or fail to give access to 
inspection of works undertaken within their accommodation. They may be liable to enforcement 
action which may include possession proceedings under the terms of their tenancy, pursuant to 
Grounds 13 or 14 of Schedule 2 of the Housing Act 1988.

In addition to giving the prescribed information to the tenants, you, or your agent must keep a 
record of having given this information i.e. a signed disclaimer, to demonstrate this information was 
received by the tenants.

During the fixed term of the tenancy agreement, you must not make any attempt to increase the 
rent or make extra charges other than what is allowed for in the tenancy agreement.  If the tenancy 
becomes periodic (there is no fixed term and the tenancy is continuing after the fixed term) any rent 
increases will be proposed through the appropriate legal procedure (currently Housing Act 1988 
s.13)

2. References

You must obtain references for prospective tenants.  These references must provide testimony as to 
the tenants past record of adhering to tenancy conditions and not committing anti-social behaviour, 
or provide other genuine and significant evidence as to the likelihood of them adhering to tenancy 
conditions and not committing anti-social behaviour such as the tenants signing a declaration 

98



3

(written in a language they can fully understand) stating that they agree to abide to the licence and 
tenancy conditions and outlining the specific conditions relating to anti-social behaviour, waste 
management and overcrowding.  This signed declaration must be kept by the landlord/agent for the 
period of the licence and provided to the council within 14 days on demand. It is understood that in 
certain circumstances it may not be possible to obtain a reference i.e. where it is a first tenancy, 
newcomer to the UK, tenant was previously homeless or being rehoused with assistance from 
support services.

3. General

Gas and electric meters, fuse boards, gas and water stop taps should be accessible to all occupants at 
all times without having to pass through other accommodation or through a shop/business premises.  
Where this is not possible due to security issues, tenants must be able to shut off gas and electrics 
from within their accommodation.

The licence holder must ensure that the appropriate consents are obtained from Peterborough City 
Councils planning and building control departments prior to any relevant improvement or repair 
works commencing

The licence holder must not unreasonably cause or permit the water supply or drainage used by the 
occupants of the house to be interrupted.

The licence holder must not unreasonably cause or permit the gas or electric supplies used by the 
occupants to be interrupted.

4. Gas

If gas is supplied to the property, the licence holder must obtain a gas safety check, carried out by a 
GAS SAFE registered engineer.  A copy of the current gas safe certificate must be provided to 
Peterborough City Council at the time of licence application and annually thereafter or within 7 days 
of being requested by the Council.  

A Carbon Monoxide alarm is required for any property with a gas or solid fuel appliance, such as a 
boiler, gas fire or gas oven/hob.  This will conform to BS EN50291:2001.  It should be fitted to a 
suitable location, following the manufacturer’s specific instructions, usually at least 3m away from 
the gas appliance.  Where there are multiple gas appliances additional detectors should be 
positioned in accordance with manufacturer’s instructions.  The whole detector (not just the battery) 
must be tested as part of the regular tenancy inspection regime, (at least annually), in accordance 
with the manufacturer’s instructions.

5. Electrics

The fixed electrical wiring and installations must be certified as safe by an electrician qualified to 
undertake the test at least every 5 years, unless otherwise indicated on the previous inspection to be 
sooner, and must be to a ‘Satisfactory’ standard.  This will usually be a domestic electrical installation 
condition report.  The landlord must supply a copy of the electrical condition report with the 
application for licensing.  Where there is no existing report then one shall be provided within 1 year 
of the commencement of the licence. 

99



4

Should the Electrical Report specifies that the installation is unsatisfactory, the licence holder must 
ensure that such works are completed no later than 28 days following the date of the report and 
must inform the licensing team upon completion of the works.

Any works highlighted by the report must be completed as required by the report; and the Council 
advised once works are complete.

The licence holder must ensure, throughout the period of the licence, that the premises are covered 
by a valid domestic electrical installation condition report.  Where a report expires during the term 
of the licence, an up to date report must be provided to the Council within 28 days of the expiry 
date. 

6. Smoke and Carbon Monoxide Alarms

The licence holder must ensure that smoke alarms are installed in the property and kept in proper 
working order and provide a declaration as to their condition and position to Peterborough City 
Council upon request. Smoke alarms must be tested at each property inspection, details of the test 
recorded by the licence holder and supplied to the Council within 7 days of written request. 

The licence holder will inform the local authority of any changes to the positioning of smoke alarms.

* note - It is a legal requirement for all landlords to fit smoke alarms in rented homes.  Under the 
new laws smoke alarms must be fitted on every floor of the property as well as carbon monoxide 
alarms in properties which burn solid fuels. Landlords must check the alarms are working at the start 
of every new tenancy with potential penalties of up to £5,000 if they don't comply. 

7. Furniture and Furnishings

The licence holder must ensure that furniture and furnishings supplied by them are compliant with 
the Furniture and Furnishings (Fire) (Safety) Regulations 1988 (as amended 1989 and 1993) and must 
provide a declaration as to their safety at the time of application and thereafter on demand.

8. Numbers of Occupants

The licence holder and/or his agent must ensure that rooms other than bedrooms are not used for 
sleeping purposes. The number of persons residing in the house shall not exceed the maximum 
number stated on the licence.

9. Space Standards

Houses occupied as single family dwellings that are of up to 3 bedrooms shall have a minimum of 
one living room – minimum 13m² - that is not used for sleeping. This will increase by 1m² for each 
extra bedroom.

Bedrooms of 10.2 sqm or above can be occupied by a maximum of 2 adults or children over 10 years 
old, 1 adult and 2 children or 4 children

Bedrooms 8.35sqm to 10.2 sqm can be occupied by no more than 1 adult and 2 children or 3 children

Bedrooms 6.5 sqm to 8.35 sqm can be occupied by no more than 1 adult or 2 children

Bedrooms 4.65 sqm and 6.5 sqm can be occupied by no more than 1 child

100



5

Rooms of less than 4.65 sqm are not acceptable as bedrooms

(An adult is deemed to be anyone over the age of 10 and a child anyone between the ages of 1 and 
9)

Multi Occupied Houses shall adhere to the following minimum room sizes:

Bedrooms - 10 sqm if occupied by a single person or 15 sqm if occupied by two persons 

These sizes can be reduced to 7 sqm and 11 sqm if there is a separate communal lounge that is not 
used as a kitchen/dining room.

(Space standards for kitchens, living rooms and dining rooms vary in accordance with the number of 
occupants and layout and need to be assessed individually)

10. Energy Efficiency

The licence holder must provide the tenant with a copy of the Energy Performance Certificate 
(where applicable). The licence holder must supply a copy of the Energy Performance Certificate to 
the Council within 7 days of request.

11. Overcrowding

You must not allow anyone to live or stay in your property if it is going to make it overcrowded. Your 
licence will state how many people can live in your property. 

If you suspect that your house has become overcrowded, you must make the tenant immediately 
aware that it is an offence.  The Council can prosecute landlords and tenants who cause 
overcrowding.

Where there is evidence that the tenants have caused overcrowding, you must make it clear to the 
tenants, in writing, that you will take reasonable steps to end the overcrowding including taking 
possession action through the courts for breach of the tenancy agreement.

Tenants must be informed that they must not allow guests to sleep in their homes, except on an 
occasional short term basis, if it will exceed the permitted numbers shown on your licence.

*short term occasional basis – i.e. over a holiday period, or a 2 week period for visiting friends and 
family.

12.  Property Management

The licence holder must ensure that:

a) the occupiers of the house, with details of the following:
 Name and address of the licence holder or managing agent
 A contact address, daytime telephone number
 An emergency contact telephone number

This information must be clearly displayed within the house.  An emergency contact telephone 
number for the licence holder/agent or representative shall also be made available and notified to 
the Council

101



6

Competent and reputable persons carry out all repairs to the house or any installations, facilities or 
equipment within it or its boundary, and that, repairs are completed to a reasonable standard. All 
tradespersons must remove all debris and redundant components from the property and exterior 
after completing works. 

All occupants of the house receive written confirmation detailing arrangements in place to deal with 
repairs and emergencies and report nuisance and anti-social behaviour

a) If accommodation is provided on a furnished basis and includes electrical appliances, the 
licence holder must provide the occupier copies of user manuals or equipment provided as 
part of the agreement of occupation (tenancy agreement)

b) All occupiers are made aware of the licence and conditions and be given a copy of the licence 
as part of their agreement of occupation (tenancy agreement)

The licence holder/management agents must make regular inspections of the property to ensure 
that the property is in a decent state of repair and that the occupiers are not in breach of tenancy 
terms and conditions. Regular means at least every 3 months during the first 12 months of a tenancy 
and then as appropriate thereafter but at least annually.

The licence holder must ensure that any persons involved with the management of the house are to 
the best of their knowledge ‘fit and proper persons’ for the purposes of the Act.

13. Security

The licence holder must ensure that:

a) The security provisions for the access to the building (including but not limited to locks,       latches, 
deadbolts and entry systems) must feature all the security features of an equivalent lock complying 
with BS3621:2004 and be maintained in good working order at all times

b) Where window locks are fitted, the licence holder will ensure that keys are provided to the 
relevant occupant

c) Where a burglar alarm is fitted to the house the licence holder will inform the occupant in writing 
the circumstances under which the code for the alarm can be changed, and provide details when 
required on how this can be arranged

d) Where alley gates are installed to the rear of the licensed property, the licence holder must take 
responsibility for holding a key and making satisfactory arrangements for the occupier access

14. External Refuse and Waste

The licence holder must ensure that: -

a) The exterior of the property is maintained in a reasonable decorative order, and in a good 
state of repair

b) The exterior of the property and all boundary walls, fences and gates must be kept free from 
graffiti

c) At all times any gardens, yards and other external areas within the curtilage of the house are 
kept in reasonably clean and tidy condition and free from rodent infestation. The tenancy 

102



7

agreement must set out who is responsible for maintaining the gardens and other external 
areas within the curtilage of the property.

d) The licence holder must ensure the gardens, yards and other external areas are cleared of 
rubbish, debris and accumulations and are cleaned between tenancies.

e) Suitable and adequate provision is made available, at the start of a tenancy, for storage of 
refuse generated in the property and that occupants are provided with information on the 
correct storage and disposal of waste prior to collection. 

f) The licence holder must inform the tenants in writing that receptacles are put out for 
collection as appropriate in accordance with their collection date and times and that bins are 
removed from the street as soon after collection as possible. .

g) Access must be available to adequate, external, refuse storage

The licence holder must inform occupants on the correct disposal arrangements for rubbish and 
bulky waste and the penalties of fly-tipping and storing accumulations within the front and rear 
gardens and any outbuilding of the house.

The licence holder must ensure that the water supply and drainage system serving the house is 
maintained in good, clean and working order.

The licence holder must take reasonable steps to protect occupants from injury especially in relation 
to:

a) Any roof or balcony that is unsafe – ensuring that it is either made safe or access to it 
restricted.

b) Any windowsill that is at floor level – ensuring that bars or other such safeguards are fitted 
as necessary to protect occupants from falling

The licence holder must ensure that all common parts and fixtures are maintained in a safe 
condition including handrails, windows, stair coverings, fixtures, fittings and appliances.

15. Training

The Licence holder and/or Manager shall undertake property management training courses where 
required to do so by the authority.

16. Anti-Social Behaviour

Anti-social behaviour is defined as being ‘behaviour that causes nuisance, annoyance, harassment, 
alarm or distress to one or more people living nearby’.   This can include (but I not limited to), leaving 
rubbish and litter, vandalism, noise nuisance, harassment and intimidation, abusive behaviour, and 
drug and alcohol abuse. 

The licence holder must take reasonable and practical steps to reduce or prevent ASB by persons 
occupying or visiting the house and the use of the premises for illegal purposes.

The licence holder must: -

a) Obtain tenant references prior to granting a tenancy as to previous tenancy conduct, 
including behaviour of that of the proposed occupier and household (see condition 2 above)

b) If a licence holder receives a reference request for a current or former tenant from another 
landlord he must respond to the request in writing within a reasonable period and either i) 

103



8

decline the request for a reference; or ii) when giving a reference state whether or not he is 
aware of any allegations of ASB made against their tenant and if such allegations have been 
made give details of the same including details of whether (to his knowledge) the allegations 
have been admitted or have been found proven in any court or tribunal.

c) The licence holder and/or the manager are required to provide information regarding the full 
names and dates of birth of each occupant,  when asked by the Council

d) Co-operate with Peterborough City Council, Cambridgeshire Constabulary and other 
agencies in resolving complaints of anti-social behaviour.  The licence holder and/or their 
nominated managing agent are required to undertake an investigation of any complaints 
regarding their tenants.  Written records of these will be required.

e) The licence holder will ensure occupants of the house are aware of the services available to 
them and how they can report nuisance and ASB to the authority

f) The licence holder must not ignore or fail to take action, if he has received complaints of ASB 
that concern the visitors to or occupiers of the property or result from their actions.

g) Any letters relating to ASB sent or received by the licence holder or managing agent must be 
kept for 3 years by the licence holder, and provided to the Council on demand.

h) The licence holder must ensure that written notes are kept of any meetings or telephone 
conversations or investigations regarding ASB for 3 years.

i) If a complaint regarding ASB is received or discovered by the licence holder or manager then 
the tenant must be contacted within 14 days and informed of the allegations of ASB in 
writing and of the consequences of its continuation.

j) The licence holder shall from the date of receipt of a complaint monitor any allegations of 
ASB and whether it is continuing.

k) Where ASB continues for 28 days from receipt of the complaint the licence holder or his 
manager/agent must, within 7 days, visit the premises and serve the tenant with a warning 
letter advising them of the possibility of eviction.

l) Where the licence holder or manager has reason to believe that the ASB involves criminal 
activity the licence holder shall ensure that the appropriate authorities are informed.

m) If after 14 days of giving a warning letter the tenant has taken no steps to address the ASB 
and the ASB is continuing the licence holder shall take formal steps under the written 
statement of terms of occupation (tenancy agreement) which shall include promptly taking 
legal proceedings to address the ASB

n) Where the licence holder is specifically invited they shall attend any case conferences or 
multi agency meetings arranged by the Council or the police.  

17. Notification of Changes

The Licence Holder and managing agents must consult with Peterborough City Council before making 
any material changes to the layout, amenity provision, fire precautions or occupation of the house 
and must inform the Council of:

a) Details of any unspent convictions not previously disclosed to the Local Authority that may 
be relevant to the licence holder and/or property manager and their fit and proper person 
stats and in particular any such conviction in respect of any offence involving fraud or 
dishonesty, or violence or any offence listed in Schedule 3 of the Sexual Offences Act 2003;

b) Details of any findings by a court or tribunal against the licence holder and/or the manager 
that he/she has practiced unlawful discrimination on grounds of sex, colour, race, ethnic or 
national origin or disability in, or in connection with, the carrying on of any business;

c) Details of any contravention on the part of the licence holder or manager of any provision of 
any enactment relating to housing, public health, environmental health or landlord and 
tenant law which lead to civil or criminal proceedings resulting in a judgment or finding being 
made against him/her;

104



9

d) Information about any property the licence holder or manager owns or manages or has 
owned or managed for which a local housing authority has refused to grant a licence under 
Part 2 or 3 of the Act, or has revoked a licence in consequence of the licence holder 
breaching the conditions of his/her licence;

e) Information about any property the licence holder or manager owns or manages or has 
owned or managed that has been the subject of an interim or final management order under 
the Housing Act 2004;

f) Changes to liability insurance;
g) Notification of foreclosure or repossession;
h) Successful claims against the licence holder for default of tenancy deposits;
i) Change in managing agent or the instruction of a managing agent;

Any major works to be undertaken to the property, including conversions and modernisations or 
emergency problems relating to fire, flood or disaster and the tenants are made temporarily 
homeless.

18. Absence

The licence holder is required to have in place suitable emergency and other management 
arrangements in their absence.  The name and contact details of the licence holder and/or manager 
must be given to each occupier and must also be displayed in a prominent place within the property.

19. Compliance Inspections

The licence holder must allow officers of the Council (upon production by of their ID) access to the 
house for the purpose of carrying out inspections of the house at all reasonable times.

Contact details

Further information about the Selective Licensing Scheme can be found at 
www.peterborough.gov.uk/selectivelicensing

105

http://www.peterborough.gov.uk/selectivelicensing


This page is intentionally left blank

106



APPENDIX 7:

SELECTIVE LICENSING
PROPOSED FEES AND CHARGES (October 2015)

All fees are non-refundable

FEE STRUCTURE Fee per property

Accredited Fee
Available to accredited members of a nationally accredited 

landlords association.

  50.00

Standard Fee 600.00

House in Multiple Occupation 750.00

Late Application
Any landlord who is found to be renting a property without having 

made a valid application 3 months after the start of the scheme.

900.00

ADMINISTRATION CHARGES Fee per property

Incomplete Application   30.00

Variation Fee   50.00

Application for Temporary Exemption Notice   50.00

Re-inspection Fee - Properties found to be not compliant after 

inspection 

100.00

107



This page is intentionally left blank

108



APPENDIX 8
Equality Impact Assessment:

Initial Assessment

Name: Selective Licensing for the areas of Central, North, Park, 
East, Fletton, Woodston, Stanground Central, Walton (part); 
Bretton North; Orton Longueville (part)

1). What is the aim of your policy, project or strategy/purpose of activity?

2). Will your policy/project/strategy have a disproportionate effect on members 
of the equality groups below? (See Appendix A for further information):

Equality Group () Is the effect Positive, Negative, Neutral or 
Unclear?

Please comment where applicable
Particular age groups Neutral

Disabled people Neutral

Married couples or those entered 
into a civil partnership

Neutral

Pregnant women or women on 
maternity leave

Neutral

Particular ethnic groups, including 
Gypsy and Travellers and new 
arrivals

The private rented sector in Peterborough is made 
up of all ethnic groups. we have been informed 
that there is a higher proportion of landlords of 
Asian descent in central, north, Park and East 
areas but have no data supporting this to confirm 
with accuracy

Those of a particular religion or 
who hold a particular belief

neutral

Male/Female Neutral

Those proposing to undergo, 
currently undergoing or who have 
undergone gender reassignment

Neutral

Sexual orientation Neutral

1

Part 3 of the Housing Act 2004 sets out the scheme for licensing private rented properties in a 
local housing authority area. Under section 80 of the Act a local housing authority can designate 
the whole or any part or parts of its area as subject to selective licensing. Where a selective 
licensing designation is made it applies to privately rented property in the area. Proposals for 
selective licensing schemes for the areas of Central, North, Park, East, Fletton, Woodston, 
Walton (part) Stanground Central; Bretton North; and Orton Longueville (Part).

109



If there are any negative or unclear affects, you are required to do a full EqIA.
Need for a full EqIA? Please circle:   Yes

Date Initial EqIA completed: October 2015
Assessment completed by: Belinda Child
Policy Review Date: 14 January 2016
Signed by Head of Service: Adrian Chapman

Equality Impact Assessment:

Full Assessment

1). Name of the policy area or programme with which this assessment is 
concerned:

Lead officer:

2). Provide a summary of your policy area/programme in no more than 350 
words (see Appendix A for further guidance):

3). Why do you feel your policy area/programme will impact the groups 
identified in the initial assessment? What information/data do you have to 
support this? (See Appendix A for further guidance):

2

Public consultation on the proposals for selective licensing schemes for the areas of Central, 
North, Park, East, Fletton, Woodston, Stanground Central; Bretton North; and Orton Longueville 
(Part).

To consult on the proposed areas identified to improve the housing conditions and management 
standards through a proactive approach in the proposed areas, rather than reacting to individual 
complaints.  This allows Officers of the Council to work proactively in the private rented sector 
rather than just in reaction to a complaint.
In the proposed selective licensing schemes for the areas of Central, North, Park, East, Fletton, 
Woodston, Stanground Central; Bretton North; and Orton Longueville (Part), to bring in 
mandatory licensing of all privately rented properties.
Selective licensing will form a part of a wider set of measures that seek to address issues within 
the private rented sector associated with anti- social behaviour, low demand, poor property 
conditions, high levels of migration, high levels of deprivation and high levels of crime.

The private rented sector in Peterborough is made up of all ethnic groups. However some of the 
areas identified have higher numbers of some ethnic groups. 
Evidence from the 2011 census shows that across the selected 22 LSOAs in the proposed 
selective licensing areas, 70% of White Other Ethnicities live in Private Rented accommodation. 
This increases to almost 80% across the Central ward. We have been informed that there is a 
higher proportion of landlords of Asian descent in central, north, Park and East areas but have 
no data supporting this to confirm with accuracy

 

EQiA selective 
licensing ethnic breakdown by LSOA.xlsx

Belinda Child

110



4). What does your evidence show? (See Appendix A for further guidance):

5a). Who have you consulted with? 5b). If you haven’t consulted yet, 
please list who you are going to 
consult with and when by:

6). Please give examples of how you have or are going to consult with specific 
groups or communities (e.g. meetings, surveys):

3

See 3 above

A full 12 week public consultation will start 
on 22nd October 2015

The Council is required to consult with local residents, including tenants, landlords, managing 
agents and other members of the community who live or operate businesses or provide services 
within the proposed designation and those in the surrounding area. Everyone who responds to 
this consultation will have their view fully considered. Our comprehensive engagement and 
consultation process with partners, stakeholders and customers will include: 
• Private landlords 
• Accredited private landlords 
• Private tenants 
• Local communities 
• Tenant and resident associations 
• Landlord associations 
• Citizens Advice Bureau 
• Registered Social Landlords 
• Local community committees 
• Locally elected members 
• Local businesses 
• Police
• Other Peterborough City Council teams including Adult Social Care, Children’s Services, 
Safer Peterborough Partnership, Strategic Housing Teams and Councillors.
• National Bodies – e.g. Shelter, BME, Equality Commission.

            Methods of consultation: 
• Peterborough City Council website: www.peterborough.gov.uk 
• Direct mail (consultation pack) to all landlords and their managing agents, and Landlord, 
Tenant and Resident Associations who operate in and around the proposed area. 
• Direct mail (consultation pack) to all residents and business or services within the 
proposed area of Selective Licensing and surrounding area; 
• Press release to local media. 
• Questionnaire to landlords, residents and businesses who operate within the proposed 
areas 
• Community meetings 
• Articles in local community newsletters
• Drop in sessions and information at locations such as libraries

111



7). What will your policy do to mitigate existing inequalities?

8). Tick which one of the following best summarises your Equality Impact 
Assessment:

A A positive impact is explicitly intended and very likely.

B There is a clear potential to have a positive impact by reducing and removing 
barriers and inequalities that currently exist.

C An adverse impact is unlikely. However, there is insufficient evidence to 
confirm this statement

x

D There will be a neutral effect, neither positive nor negative

E Adverse impact is probable, since certain groups are likely to be 
disadvantaged, either proportionately or absolutely, or both. Remedial action 
is therefore necessary.

F Adverse impact is certain for certain groups but the policy as a whole can 
nevertheless be justified.

Legal advice obtained Yes    Legal Officer: Alison Stuart

9). Expand and explain why that summary best describes your assessment:

10). Next Steps (See Appendix A for further guidance):

4

PLEASE NOTE:
If you select “E” or “F” from the above list, it will be necessary to obtain legal advice.

The introduction of selective licensing will improve the health and wellbeing of tenants and 
provide interventions to combat the exploitation of tenants in the proposed areas. It will 
encourage landlords to become accredited and provide good quality, well managed homes in 
the private rented sector. 

112



11). How are you going to review the policy, project or strategy, and who will 
be responsible?

When EqIA will be reviewed: 

Date  EqIA completed: October 2015
Assessment completed by: Belinda Child
Policy Review Date: 14 January 2016
Signed by Head of Service: Adrian Chapman
Signed by Legal Officer Alison Stuart

5

What will be done What expected 
outcomes as a result:

By whom: By when:

 Landlords will be required to submit an 
application for a licence with the fee

 If the landlord meets all the requirements a 
licence will be issues for a five year period

 The property will be inspected during the 5 
year period

 If a private rented property is not licensed the 
landlord will be prosecuted

 Landlords may pass 
on fee costs to the 
tenant

 Landlords may evict 
tenants to avoid 
licence 

 Improved health and 
wellbeing of the 
tenants

 Landlords are 
accredited

 Reduction in crime, 
ASB, poor housing 
conditions, 
deprivation and low 
housing demand

 Housing 
Enforcemen
t Officers

Schemes 
would start 
June 2016

The selective licensing schemes will be reviewed during the 5 year period

14 January 2016

113



This page is intentionally left blank

114



STRONG AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITIES 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Agenda Item No. 7

24 NOVEMBER 2015 Public Report

Report of the Head of Housing and Health Improvement 

Contact Officer(s) – Belinda Child
Contact Details – 01733 863769 

COMMUNITY CONNECTORS

1. PURPOSE

1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide the Scrutiny Committee with an overview of the work the 
Community Connectors (CC’s) have been involved in since they commenced employment in 
June 2015. 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 The Committee is asked to scrutinise the progress made by the Community Connectors, and 
comment on any aspect which they feel could be improved or enhanced.

2.2 Additionally, the Committee are asked to agree to receive a further report in 6 months, with a 
particular focus on how the issues identified in section 5.3 and 5.4 are being addressed.

3. LINKS TO THE SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY

3.1 The Community Connectors project has a strong link to the Sustainable Community Strategy and 
fits with the key priorities of creating opportunities, talking inequalities and creating strong and 
supportive communities.

4. BACKGROUND

4.1 Four Community Connectors have been recruited to work with the Latvian, Lithuanian, Czech 
and Slovak communities. Their role involves focusing on the following five priorities which is 
overseen by a cross-council Strategic Advisory Group (SAG):

 Health and Wellbeing
 Service Management
 Intervention, Education and Diversion
 Perceptions and Integration
 Prevention

4.2 The Community Connectors’ work is largely concentrated on the communities in the Central 
ward, Millfield and New England areas and aims to facilitate better connections between 
communities and enhance levels of community engagement. The aim of facilitating this 
connection and engagement is to improve awareness about local support, provide signposting 
and referrals to services, to provide information about local and national legislation and 
behaviours, and to provide preventative messages regarding health, wellbeing and societal 
issues.

115



5. KEY ISSUES

5.1 This section of the report highlights some of the outputs achieved by the Connectors since they 
came into post.

5.1.1 Drop-in sessions at Citizen’s Advice Bureau, CareZone, and Papworth Trust

Weekly drop-in sessions have proved to be popular and are held at the various venues to provide 
community members with an opportunity to discuss their issues in their native language with the 
Connectors, who are able to give them the correct information about local services available and 
refer/connect them to specialist services for support.

    
Outputs:

 Over 39 sessions held with the average of 6 clients per session (230 clients supported from 
July-Oct 2015)
 48 clients supported and referred to housing services
 12 clients needed information and support with homelessness 
 57 clients supported with welfare benefits information
 31 clients required information and support regarding UK laws and rights
 12 clients provided with information in relation to primary/secondary education provision
 40 clients had concerns relating to employment
 20 clients had queries relating to affordable English language training provision
 10 clients required information in relation to health services. 

5.1.2 Health and Wellbeing

The national evidence base shows that, when compared to the UK-national population, Eastern 
European populations have poorer mental health, higher mortality due to heart attacks and 
stroke, higher levels of obesity, increased risk of sexual ill-health, higher smoking rates and 
higher lung cancer prevalence. Evidence is mixed on rates of alcohol and drug use in this 
population. These health inequalities are compounded by poor or insecure housing, low pay, 
isolation, unemployment or underutilisation of skills and prejudice. There are very few published 
evaluated interventions aimed at Eastern European populations.

At a local level the Community Connectors have highlighted barriers to accessing health services 
including language problems, not understanding the UK health system, as well as cultural 
differences such as differing prescribing practices and frustration with the GP referral model (as 
opposed to directly accessing specialist care). Work in relation to health promotion has 
commenced, however there is a significant amount that needs to be developed and delivered 
specifically associated to priorities agreed by the Health and Wellbeing Board including for 
example a year of health campaigns, screening and immunization implementation plans.

Outputs:

 Working with colleagues from the Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) to develop relevant 
resources relating to different primary care services and how to access them 

 Stoptober Campaign during which 35 referrals were made to the stop smoking service
 Healthy lifestyles promotion including events which resulted in 10 referrals to weight 

management programmes
 Health promotion information posted on Community Connector’s Facebook pages
 Health drop in sessions at the Millfield Medical Centre

5.1.3 Community Engagement

Community development work with community groups has been undertaken and continues to be 
an on-going part of the Connectors’ work. This has included establishing links with local groups 
such as the Millfield and New England Regeneration Partnership (MaNERP), Lithuanian 
community group, Lithuanian dance group “Raskila” and Lithuanian Music Studio group “Nona”, 
Latvian community group, Eastern European Supplementary schools, and Compas (a community 
partnership group set up for the Slovak and Czeck community). 

116



The Community Connectors project has also established links with the National Roma Network 
Forum which brings together organisations working with Roma communities to share good 
practice, highlight the main issues affecting the community and provide support to new projects 
working with the Roma community.

Outputs:

 Facebook pages set up in native languages, most popular hits include: My Peterborough App 
(3,600); fostering (3,000); OVO energy scheme (over 1,000); Crimestoppers (2,600); 
Stoptober (4,000); waste management (2,300); and Selective Licensing (over 1,700)

 200 contacts established with community members
 15 strong links with community leaders
 Attendance at a range of local events to promote the Connectors’ role 
 Encouraging the local community to attend citywide events (harvest festival, arts, 

multicultural, Diwali and Black history month)
 Supporting local councillors (roving surgeries, community walkabouts)
 English language training provision for over 40 people from all communities who attended a 

pilot 10-week course
 Working with the City College to deliver a 6 week “unlock the cultural box” project 
 Supporting colleagues across the council (housing, domestic abuse, social care, early help, 

neighbourhood enforcement officers, Safer Peterborough Partnership, fostering team)    

5.2 Throughout October 2015, as part of the stakeholder engagement for the development of a 
Peterborough Migrant Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA), our Community Connectors 
asked individuals attending their weekly ‘drop in’ sessions in Peterborough to complete a 
questionnaire allowing them to voice their views on the elements of living in the UK that they 
enjoy and find to be of value and also the difficulties and issues that they experience. Although 
the sample who participated in completing the questionnaires was small, the data analysis 
reflects the issues the Community Connectors have raised as ongoing concerns in the 
community.  In total, 98 questionnaires were returned to Community Connectors, the results of 
which are summarised in Appendix 1.

5.3

5.4

The Community Connectors have highlighted a range of key issues which will form the basis of 
work within the council and with our partners over the next few months. For example, 
community cohesion and engagement is believed to be key to ensuring that the Eastern 
European population and service providers understand cultural differences in health beliefs and 
healthcare systems and to enable individuals to self-manage their health and access services 
when appropriate.

Other issues identified relate to:

 Myths and perceptions in the community, including mistrust of authorities
 Affordable English language training provision
 Housing issues, particularly relating to private rented accommodation
 Activities for young people
 Lack of cultural awareness amongst Eastern European communities and organisations
 Domestic abuse
 Health beliefs including immunizations, vaccinations, screening and healthy lifestyle advice

The wide range of project activities and outcomes presented in this report highlights the positive 
impact of the project for the community. However working with the community and partners is 
not free of challenges. The information below provides a snapshot of some of the challenges 
faced by the Community Connectors:

 Community Connectors seen as interpreters and translators
 Case workers (for local community as well as organisations)
 Dealing with angry and frustrated community members who do not understand the system 

and assume the Community Connector’s will “fix” their problem

117



5.5

 Fear of the consequences if concerns are reported, for example issues with landlords and 
letting agencies 

 Housing, mainly connected to individuals been given the wrong advice about their eligibility 
for housing by family and friends

 Very little integration amongst Roma/Czech/Slovak communities
 Language support at the appropriate services (not meeting expectations to access 

interpreters)

Over the next few weeks and months the Community Connectors will be supporting with and 
leading on the delivery of a range of initiatives and activities:

• Week of action in the Can Do area
• Health and Wellbeing Market Place
• Different community events (Latvian independence day, Lithuanian theatre, Latvian 

sports day)
• Health Promotion campaigns focused on healthy lifestyles, screening and immunisation
• Youth projects – working with the youth services team to set up a project focusing on 

youth in the Can Do area
• Exploring more projects with the City College (accredited English language training, job 

searching, interview techniques, police awareness)
• Accessing Peterborough Safeguarding Boards Professional Development Programme

6.

6.1

7.

IMPLICATIONS

It is anticipated that the work of the Connectors continues to meet the needs of both 
communities and agencies, and that following the discussion at the Committee meeting we will 
be able to tailor their work more effectively.

CONSULTATION

7.1 The Community Connectors are engaging on a daily basis with the community and service 
partners on a broad range of topics.

8.

8.1

9.

9.1

10.

NEXT STEPS

The Community Connectors work programme will be focussed on (i) direction given and 
comments made as a result of the scrutiny process, and (ii) addressing the issues and 
challenges identified in sections 5.3 and 5.4.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

None.

APPENDICES

10.1 Appendix 1: Peterborough Migrant Questionnaire Analysis

118



1

Appendix 1

Peterborough Migrant Questionnaire October 2015 – Data Analysis

Throughout October 2015, our Community Connectors asked individuals attending their weekly 
‘drop in’ sessions in Peterborough to complete a questionnaire allowing them to voice their views on 
the elements of living in the UK that they enjoy and find to be of value and also the difficulties and 
issues that they experience.  

In total, 98 questionnaires were returned, the results of which are summarised below:

Figure 1: Number of respondents by country of origin 

32%

24%

21%

17%

4%

1%

Lithuania

Latvia

Slovakia

Czech Republic

Poland

Portugal

Number of respondents by country of origin # %
Lithuania 31 32%

Latvia 24 24%
Slovakia 21 21%

Czech Republic 17 17%
Poland 4 4%

Portugal 1 1%
Total 98 100%

 95% of respondents originate from either Lithuania, Latvia, Slovakia or the Czech Republic.   

119



2

Figure 2:  Number of respondents by first language spoken

31%

23%
21%

17%

4%

2%
1%

Lithuanian

Latvian

Slovak

Czech

Polish

Russian

Portuguese

Number of respondents by first language spoken # %
Lithuanian 30 31%

Latvian 23 23%
Slovak 21 21%
Czech 17 17%
Polish 4 4%

Russian 2 2%
Portuguese 1 1%

Total 98 100%

94% of respondents speak either Lithuanian, Latvian, Slovak or Czech as their primary language, 
correlating strongly with country of origin. Consideration may be given to extending this 
questionnaire to a wider audience (e.g. through publishing on our Peterborough City Council 
website) in order that a broader range of views from other migrant populations such as our Polish 
and Portuguese communities may be considered. 

120



3

Figure 3:  Number of respondents by age

5%

17%

49%

29%

<18
18-30
31-45
46-67

Number of respondents by age band # %
<18 5 5%

18-30 17 17%
31-45 48 49%
46-67 28 29%
67+ 0 0%

Total 98 100%

 The majority of respondents were of working age, with 49% within the 31-45 age bracket and 29% 
aged 56-67. No questionnaires were returned from individuals over the age of 67 and only 5% from 
under 18s. 

121



4

Figure 4:  Number of respondents by residency time in UK

2%

4%

40%54%

Less than 3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years 5+ years

Number of respondents by residency time in UK # %
Less than 3 months 2 2%

4-12 months 4 4%
>12 months -5 years 39 40%

5+ years 53 54%
Total 98 100%

 94% of questionnaire respondents have resided in the UK for at least one year and 54% for over 5 
years.

122



5

Figure 5:  Number of respondents by English proficiency

5%

24%

19%26%

26%

I do not understand anything I understand a little I can participate in simple conversations
I can understand most things My English is very good

Number of respondents by English proficiency # %
I do not understand anything 5 5%

I understand a little 24 24%
I can participate in simple conversations 19 19%

I can understand most things 25 26%
My English is very good 25 26%

Total 98 100%

52% of respondents responded to a question regarding their English proficiency with the answer ‘I 
can understand most things’ or ‘my English is very good’. By contrast, 29% stated ‘I do not 
understand anything’ or ‘I understand a little’.  

123



6

Figure 6:  English Proficiency/Residency time in UK Correlation

1

3

1

12 12

1

11

7

2

9

14

1 1

4

19

Less than 3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years 5+ years
0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

20

I do not understand anything I understand a little I can participate in simple conversations
I can understand most things My English is very good

Questionnaire responses suggest a general trend towards English proficiency increasing with length 
of time within the UK, although 25% of respondents who have lived in the UK for over 5 years stated 
‘I do not understand anything’ or ‘I understand a little’. Of 39 respondents who have lived in the UK 
for between 1 and 5 years, only 33% (13 of 39) stated that ‘I can understand most things’ or ‘My 
English is very good’. 

124



7

Figure 7:  GP Registration Status 

96%

3%

1%

Yes No Not Stated

Percentage of respondents registered with a GP # %

Yes 94 96%
No 3 3%

Not Stated 1 1%
Total 98 100%

 96% of respondents stated that they were registered with a GP, with 3% not registered and 1 
respondent not providing an answer. 

125



8

 Figure 8: Top 5 Stated Areas of ‘Required Assistance’

Top 5 Stated Areas of ‘Required Assistance’ %
Housing 29%
Health 28%

Benefits 21%
UK laws and rights 16%

Employment/Job issues 14%
Total 100%

The questionnaire provided an opportunity for respondents to tick as many themes of ‘required 
assistance’ as they felt they might benefit from. The table above shows the most common five 
themes, with the most common being housing with 29% of respondents mentioning it as an area of 
required assistance, health with 28%, benefits 21%, UK laws/rights 16% and employment/job issues 
14%. 

 Figure 9: Most commonly stated positive aspects of living in the UK

Respondents opinion of the things that are good about living in the UK %
Employment opportunities 43%

Social cohesion and acceptance 22%
Good working conditions 22%

Education 16%
Housing 9%

Total 100%

The questionnaire provided a ‘free text’ opportunity for respondents to comment on any areas of 
living in the UK they felt were particularly good. The most common themes stated are summarised in 
the table above. Employment opportunities were noted by 43% as a positive factor about living in 
the UK, with social cohesion/acceptance, working conditions, education and housing also featuring 
in the five most common responses. 

126



9

 Figure 10: Most commonly stated negative aspects of living in the UK 

Respondents opinion of the things that are bad about living in the UK %
Poor working conditions 19%

Cost of living/rent/council tax 15%
Lack of opportunities to improve English through formal education 12%

Healthcare 12%
Social cohesion 11%

Total 100%
 

Respondents were also given the opportunity to comment on areas they considered to be bad about 
living in the UK. There is a degree of crossover between most common ‘good’ and ‘bad’ themes 
stated by respondents, with poor working conditions the most common complaint – 19% of 
respondents mentioned this as an issue but this also appeared in the most common ‘good’ aspects 
of living in the UK. Other areas of concern that were commonly expressed included the cost of 
living/rent/council tax, lack of opportunities to improve English through formal education rather 
than regular day to day interactions, healthcare and elements of social cohesion/exclusion. 

 

127



This page is intentionally left blank

128



STRONG AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITIES 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

Agenda Item No.  8

24 NOVEMBER 2015 Public Report

Report of the Director of Governance

Report Author – Paulina Ford, Senior Democratic Services Officer
Contact Details – 01733 452347 or email dania.castagliuolo@peterborough.gov.uk 

FORWARD PLAN OF EXECUTIVE DECISIONS

1. PURPOSE

1.1 This is a regular report to the Strong and Supportive Communities Scrutiny Committee outlining 
the content of the Forward Plan of Executive Decisions.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 That the Committee identifies any relevant items for inclusion within their work programme.

3. BACKGROUND

3.1 The latest version of the Forward Plan of Executive Decisions is attached at Appendix 1.  The 
Plan contains those Executive decisions, which the Leader of the Council believes that the 
Cabinet or individual Cabinet Member(s) can take and any new Executive decisions to be taken 
after 11 December 2015.

3.2 The information in the Forward Plan of Executive Decisions provides the Committee with the 
opportunity of considering whether it wishes to seek to influence any of these key decisions, or to 
request further information.

3.3 If the Committee wished to examine any of the Executive decisions, consideration would need to 
be given as to how this could be accommodated within the work programme.

3.4 As the Forward Plan is published fortnightly any version of the Forward Plan published after 
dispatch of this agenda will be tabled at the meeting.

4. CONSULTATION

4.1 Details of any consultation on individual decisions are contained within the Forward Plan of 
Executive Decisions.

5. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

None

6. APPENDICES

Appendix 1 – Forward Plan of  Executive Decisions

129

mailto:dania.castagliuolo@peterborough.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank

130



PETERBOROUGH CITY 
COUNCIL’S FORWARD PLAN 
OF EXECUTIVE DECISIONS 

PUBLISHED:  13 NOVEMBER 2015

131



FORWARD PLAN                                                                                                                                     AB
PART 1 – KEY DECISIONS
In the period commencing 28 clear days after the date of publication of this Plan, Peterborough City Council's Executive intends to take 'key decisions' on the issues set out below 
in Part 1.  Key decisions relate to those executive decisions which are likely to result in the Council spending or saving money in excess of £500,000 and/or have a significant 
impact on two or more wards in Peterborough.

If the decision is to be taken by an individual Cabinet Member, the name of the Cabinet Member is shown against the decision, in addition to details of the Councillor’s portfolio. If 
the decision is to be taken by the Cabinet, this too is shown against the decision and its members are as listed below:
Cllr Holdich (Leader); Cllr Coles; Cllr Elsey; Cllr Fitzgerald (Deputy Leader); Cllr Hiller, Cllr Lamb; Cllr North; Cllr Seaton; Cllr Serluca.

This Plan should be seen as an outline of the proposed decisions for the forthcoming month and it will be updated on a fortnightly basis to reflect new key-decisions.  Each new 
Plan supersedes the previous Plan and items may be carried over into forthcoming Plans.  Any questions on specific issues included on the Plan should be included on the form 
which appears at the back of the Plan and submitted to Gemma George, Democratic Services Manager, Governance Department, Town Hall, Bridge Street, PE1 1HG (fax 08702 
388039). Alternatively, you can submit your views via e-mail to gemma.george@peterborough.gov.uk or by telephone on 01733 452268. For each decision a public report will be 
available from the Governance Team one week before the decision is taken.

PART 2 – NOTICE OF INTENTION TO TAKE DECISION IN PRIVATE
Whilst the majority of the Executive’s business at the Cabinet meetings listed in this Plan will be open to the public and media organisations to attend, there will be some business 
to be considered that contains, for example, confidential, commercially sensitive or personal information.  In these circumstances the meeting may be held in private, and on the 
rare occasion this applies, notice will be given within Part 2 of this document, ‘notice of intention to hold meeting in private’. A further formal notice of the intention to hold the 
meeting, or part of it, in private, will also be given 28 clear days in advance of any private meeting in accordance with The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings 
and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012. 

The Council invites members of the public to attend any of the meetings at which these decisions will be discussed (unless a notice of intention to hold the meeting in private has 
been given).

PART 3 – NOTIFICATION OF NON-KEY DECISIONS
For complete transparency relating to the work of the Executive, this Plan also includes an overview of non-key decisions to be taken by the Cabinet or individual Cabinet Members, 
these decisions are listed at Part 3 and will be updated on a weekly basis.

You are entitled to view any documents listed on the Plan, or obtain extracts from any documents listed or subsequently submitted to the decision maker prior to the decision 
being made, subject to any restrictions on disclosure. There is no charge for viewing the documents, although charges may be made for photocopying or postage.  Documents 
listed on the notice and relevant documents subsequently being submitted can be requested from Gemma George, Democratic Services Manager, Governance Department, 
Town Hall, Bridge Street, PE1 1HG (fax 08702 388038), e-mail to gemma.george@peterborough.gov.uk or by telephone on 01733 452268. 

All decisions will be posted on the Council's website: www.peterborough.gov.uk/executivedeisions. If you wish to make comments or representations regarding the 'key decisions' 
outlined in this Plan, please submit them to the Democratic Services Manager using the form attached.  For your information, the contact details for the Council's various service 
departments are incorporated within this Plan.

132

mailto:gemma.george@peterborough.gov.uk
mailto:gemma.george@peterborough.gov.uk
http://www.peterborough.gov.uk/executivedeisions


PART 1 – FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS

KEY DECISIONS FROM 11 DECEMBER 2015
KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION

Intelligent Transport 
Systems Infrastructure – 
KEY/11DEC15/01
To introduce the use of 
Variable Message Signs 
(VMS) on the road 
network to provide real-
time driver information.

Councillor Peter 
Hiller
Cabinet Member 
for Growth, 
Planning, 
Housing and 
Economic 
Development

December 
2015 to Mar 
2016

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Peter Tebb
Network and Traffic 
Manager
Tel: 01733 453519
Peter.tebb@peterborou
gh.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

The decision will include an
exempt annexe. By virtue of
paragraph 3, information 
relating to the financial or 
business affairs of any 
particular person
(including the authority 
holding
that information).

Direct Payment Support 
Service – 
KEY/11DEC15/02
To approve the direct 
payment support service.

Councillor 
Fitzgerald
Deputy Leader 
and Cabinet 
Member for 
Integrated Adult 
Social Care and 
Health

May 2016 Scrutiny 
Commission 
for Health 
Issues

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Jenny Beasley
Commissioning 
Manager
Tel: 01733 452482
Jenny.beasley@peterb
orough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

The decision will include an
exempt annexe. By virtue of
paragraph 3, information 
relating to the financial or 
business affairs of any 
particular person
(including the authority 
holding
that information).

133



KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION

PREVIOUSLY ADVERTISED DECISIONS
Delivery of the Council's 
Capital Receipt 
Programme through the 
Sale of Dickens Street 
Car Park - KEY/03JUL/11
To authorise the Chief 
Executive, in consultation 
with the Solicitor to the 
Council, Corporate Director 
Resources, the Corporate 
Property Officer and the 
Cabinet Member Resources, 
to negotiate and conclude 
the sale of Dickens Street 
Car Park. 
For Cabinet to consider 
future options for service 
delivery. 

Councillor David 
Seaton
Cabinet Member 
for Resources

November 
2015

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Consultation will 
take place with 
the Cabinet 
Member, Ward 
Councillors, 
relevant internal 
departments & 
external 
stakeholders as 
appropriate.

Richard Hodgson
Head of Strategic 
Projects
Tel: 01733 384535
richard.hodgson@peter
borough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

134



KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS /  
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION

Sale of the Herlington 
Centre - 
KEY/21MAR14/03
Delivery of the Council’s 
capital receipts 
programme through the 
sale of the Herlington 
Centre, Orton Malborne.

Councillor David 
Seaton
Cabinet Member 
for Resources

November
2015

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Simon Webber
Capital Projects Officer
Tel: 01733 384545
simon.webber@peterb
orough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Formalise Integrated 
Community Equipment 
Service Funding and 
Commissioning 
Arrangements - 
KEY/18APR14/01
To formalise integrated 
community equipment 
service joint funding 
arrangements.

Councillor 
Wayne Fitzgerald
Deputy Leader 
and Cabinet 
Member for 
Integrated Adult 
Social Care and 
Health

November 
2015

Scrutiny 
Commission 
for Health 
Issues

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Nick Blake
Head of Commissioning 
for Older People, 
Physical Disabilities and 
Sensory Impairment
Tel: 01733 452406
nick.blake@peterboroug
h.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Award of Contract for 
Build of a Waste Transfer 
Station - KEY/18APR14/02
To award a contract for the 
build of a waste transfer 
station.

Councillor Gavin 
Elsey
Cabinet Member 
for Digital, Waste 
and Street Scene 

November 
2015

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Paul Robertson
Waste Project Officer
Tel: 01733 864740
paul.robertson@peterbo
rough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Print Managed Services - 
KEY/13JUN14/01
To enable Council officers 
to be able to print, copy and 
scan.

Councillor David 
Seaton
Cabinet Member 
for Resources

November 
2015

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Vicki Palazon
Financial Services 
Manager – Planning and 
Reporting
Tel: 01733 864104
Vicki.palazon@peterbor
ough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

135



KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION

Selective Licensing - 
KEY/17OCT14/01
To improve standards and 
management of properties 
in the private rented sector.

Councillor Peter 
Hiller
Cabinet Member 
for Growth, 
Planning, 
Housing & 
Economic 
Development 

January 
2016

Strong and 
Supportive 
Scrutiny 
Committee

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders

Belinda Child
Head of Housing and 
Health Improvement
Tel: 01733 863769
Belinda.child@peterboro
ugh.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Classroom Extension 
and Associated Works 
Heltwate School - 
KEY/06MAR15/01
To authorise the construction 
of an extension at Heltwate 
School and give authority to 
the Executive Director of 
Resources to award the 
construction contract within 
the approved budget.

Councillor John 
Holdich
Leader of the 
Council and 
Cabinet Member 
for Education, 
Skills and 
University

November 
2015

Creating 
Opportunities 
and Tackling 
Inequalities

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Alison Chambers
Assets and School 
Place Planning Officer
Tel: 01733 863975
Alison.chambers@pete
rborough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

St Michaels Expansion – 
KEY/06MAR15/07
Award of contract for the 
expansion of St Michaels 
Church School to a 2FE, 
including the approval of 
property, legal and 
financial arrangements for 
various enabling 
agreements and third 
parties.

Councillor David 
Seaton
Cabinet Member 
for Resources

November 
2015

Creating 
Opportunities 
and Tackling 
Inequalities

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Brian Howard
Head of Schools 
Infrastructure
01733 863976
Brian.howard@peterbo
rough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

136



KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHOR

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION

Wirrina Car Park – 
KEY/06MAR15/10
Disposal of Wirrina Car 
Park to Peterborough 
Investment Partnership.

Councillor David 
Seaton
Cabinet Member 
for Resources

November 
2015

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital 
Scrutiny 
Committee

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Richard Hodgson, 
Head of Strategic 
Projects
01733 384535
Richard.hodgson@pete
rborough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Mobile Homes Charging 
Schedule – 
KEY/01MAY15/04
To approve the mobile 
homes charging schedule. 

Councillor Peter 
Hiller
Cabinet Member 
for Growth, 
Planning, 
Housing & 
Economic 
Development 

November 
2015

Strong and 
Supportive 
Scrutiny 
Committee

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders 
during eight week 
consultation.

Belinda Child
Head of Housing and 
Health Improvement
Tel: 01733 873769
Belinda.child@peterbor
ough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Novation of Contract 
Regarding Temporary 
Staff – KEY/15MAY15/01
To approve the novation 
of the temporary staff 
contract.

Councillor John 
Holdich
Leader of the 
Council and 
Cabinet Member 
for Education, 
Skills and 
University

November
2015

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

James Fordham
Recruitment and 
Retention Officer
Tel: 01733 864581
James.fordham@peter
borough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

137



KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHOR

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION

Real Time Passenger 
Information – 
KEY/10JUL15/02
To approve the expansion 
and maintenance contract.

Councillor Peter 
Hiller
Cabinet Member 
for Growth, 
Planning, 
Housing & 
Economic 
Development 

November
2015

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and External 
stakeholders.

Amy Pickstone
Senior ITS Officer
Tel: 01733 317481
Amy.pickstone@peterb
orough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Delivery of the Council’s 
Capital Receipt 
Programme through the 
sale of Welland House, 
Dogsthorpe – 
KEY/24JUL15/01
To authorise the sale of 
Welland House, 
Dogsthorpe.

Councillor David 
Seaton
Cabinet Member 
for Resources

November
2015

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Simon Webber
Strategic Projects 
Officer
Tel: 01733 384545
Simon.webber@peterb
orough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Delivery of the Council’s 
Capital Receipt 
Programme through the 
sale of Pyramid Centre, 
Bretton North – 
KEY/24JUL15/02
To authorise the sale of 
the Pyramid Centre, 
Bretton North.

Councillor David 
Seaton
Cabinet Member 
for Resources

November
2015

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Gareth Dawkins
Capital Projects Officer
Tel: 01733 384618
Gareth.dawkins@peter
borough.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

The decision will include an 
exempt annexe. By virtue of 
paragraph 3, information relating 
to the financial or business 
affairs of any particular person 
(including the authority holding 
that information).

138



KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION

Sale of Land at Rear of 
Braybrook School, Orton 
Longueville – 
KEY/24JUL15/03
To authorise the Chief 
Executive, in consultation 
with the Solicitor to the 
Council, Corporate 
Director Resources, the 
Corporate Property Officer 
and the Cabinet Member 
Resources, to negotiate 
and conclude the sale of 
Land.

Councillor David 
Seaton
Cabinet Member 
for Resources

December 
2015

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Brian Davies
Sales and Acquisitions
Tel: 01733 384547
Brian.davies@peterbor
ough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Sale of the Lindens, 
Lincoln Road – 
KEY/24JUL15/04
To authorise the Chief 
Executive, in consultation 
with the Solicitor to the 
Council, Corporate 
Director Resources, the 
Corporate Property Officer 
and the Cabinet Member 
Resources, to negotiate 
and conclude the sale.

Councillor David 
Seaton
Cabinet Member 
for Resources

December 
2015

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Brian Davies
Sales and Acquisitions
Tel: 01733 384547
Brian.davies@peterbor
ough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

139



KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION

Sale of Bretton Court, 
Bretton North – 
KEY/24JUL15/05
To authorise the Chief 
Executive, in consultation 
with the Solicitor to the 
Council, Corporate 
Director Resources, the 
Corporate Property Officer 
and the Cabinet Member 
Resources, to negotiate 
and conclude the sale.

Councillor David 
Seaton
Cabinet Member 
for Resources

December 
2015

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Brian Davies
Sales and Acquisitions
Tel: 01733 384547
Brian.davies@peterbor
ough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Expansion by One Form 
of Entry to Jack Hunt 
Secondary School – 
KEY/07AUG15/02
To approve expansion by 
1 form of entry of Jack 
Hunt Secondary School to 
include award of building 
contracts for the required 
enhancement of facilities 
and any legal changes to 
the schools PFI contract. 

Councillor John 
Holdich
Leader of the 
Council and 
Cabinet Member 
for Education, 
Skills and 
University

November 
2015

Strong and 
Supportive 
Communities 
Scrutiny 
Committee

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Brian Howard
Head of Schools 
Infrastructure
Tel: 01733 863976
Brian.howard@peterbo
rough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Procurement Strategy - 
KEY/21AUG15/01
To approve the 
Procurement Strategy. 

Cabinet 7 December 
2015

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Vicki Palazon
Financial Services 
Manager – Planning 
and Reporting
Tel: 01733 864104
Vicki.palazon@peterbo
rough.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

140



KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION

Changes to the 
Council’s Adult Social 
Care Charging Policy – 
KEY/21AUG15/03
Consultation around 
proposed changes to the 
Council’s charging policy in 
recognition of the statutory 
obligations and powers 
introduced by the Care Act 
2014.

Cabinet 18 January  
2016

Scrutiny 
Commission 
for Health 
Issues

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders

Mark Gedney
Financial Systems 
Manager
Tel: 01733 452335
Mark.gedney@peterbor
ough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Peterborough Local Plan 
(Preliminary Draft 
version) - 
KEY/04SEPT15/04
Cabinet to approve the 
first draft of the updated 
Local Plan for public 
consultation in January 
2016

Cabinet 7 December 
2015

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital 
Scrutiny 
Committee

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Richard Kay
Head of Sustainable 
Growth
Tel: 01733 863795
richard.kay@peterboro
ugh.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

141



KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION

Peterborough Statement 
of Community 
Involvement (SCI) – 
KEY/21SEPT15/01
For Cabinet to approve 
the Statement of 
Community Involvement.

Cabinet 7 December 
2015

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Richard Kay
Head of Sustainable 
Growth Strategy
Tel: 01733 863795
Richard.kay@peterbor
ough.gov.uk

Gemma Wildman
Principal Strategic 
Planning Officer
Tel: 01733 863824
Gemma.wildman@pete
rborough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Draft Housing Strategy – 
KEY/21SEPT15/03
For Cabinet to approve 
the Strategy for public 
consultation.

Cabinet 8 February 
2016

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Anne Keogh
Housing and Strategic 
Planning Manager
Anne.keogh1@peterbo
rough.gov.uk
Tel: 01733 863815

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Future of America Farm 
Solar and Wind Project – 
KEY/02OCT15/02
For Cabinet to agree the 
future of the project at 
America Farm.

Cabinet 25 
November 
2015

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

John Harrison
Corporate Director 
Resources
Tel: 01733 452520
John.harrison@peterbo
rough.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

142



KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION

Rural Vision and Parish 
Charter – 
KEY/16OCT15/01
For Cabinet to approve 
the Rural Vision and 
Parish Charter.
 

Cabinet 25 
November 
2015

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Cate Harding
Community Capacity 
Manager
Tel: 01733 317497
Cate.harding@peterbor
ough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Council Tax and NNDR – 
KEY/13NOV15/01 
To agree the calculation of 
the Council Tax base for 
2016/17 and the NNDR1 
return.

Cabinet 18 January 
2016

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Steven Pilsworth
Service Director 
Financial Services
Tel: 01733 384564
Steven.pilsworth@pete
rborough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Passenger Transport 
Services AMEY – 
KEY/27NOV15/01
To approve the award of 
six routes to Amey under 
the existing contract 
arrangements. 

Councillor John 
Holdich
Leader of the 
Council and 
Cabinet Member 
for Education, 
Skills and 
University

November 
2015

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Sara Thompson
Team Manager, 
Passenger Transport 
Operations
Tel: 01733 317452
Sara.thompson@peter
borough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

The decision will include an
exempt annexe. By virtue of
paragraph 3, information 
relating to the financial or 
business affairs of any 
particular person
(including the authority 
holding
that information).

143



PART 2 – NOTICE OF INTENTION TO TAKE DECISIONS IN PRIVATE

KEY DECISIONS TO BE TAKEN IN PRIVATE

KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 

NONE AT THE CURRENT TIME

144



PART 3 – NOTIFICATION OF NON-KEY DECISIONS

NON-KEY DECISIONS 

DECISION REQUIRED DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION

Single City Enforcement 
Team Tackling Anti-
Social Behaviour –
To approve the City 
Centre Anti-Social 
Behaviour/Begging Policy.

Cabinet 7 December 
2015

Strong and 
Supportive 
Communities

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Justin Beaumont
City Officer
Tel: 01733 452217
Justin.beaumont@pete
rborough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

School Organisational 
Plan 2013-2018 – To 
approve the School 
Organisational Plan.

Cabinet 25 November 
2015

Strong and 
Supportive 
Communities

Relevant Internal 
and External 
Stakeholders

Terry Reynolds
Interim Service Director 
– Education
Tel: 01733 863743
Terry.reynolds@peterb
orough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Delivery of Universal 
Credit Support Services 
– To agree that the
Council works in
partnership with the
Department of Work and
Pensions to deliver
Universal Credit Support
Services.

Councillor 
David Seaton
Cabinet 
Member for 
Resources

November 
2015

Strong and 
Supportive 
Communities

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Ian Phillips
Social Inclusion 
Manager
Tel: 01733 863849
Ian.phillips@peterboro
ugh.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

145



DECISION REQUIRED DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION

Citizens Advice Bureau
Funding –
To fund Citizens Advice
Bureau £3731 until March
2016 (via DWP grant
funding) to deliver
Personal Budgeting
Support to new UC
claimants requiring
assistance.

Councillor
David Seaton
Cabinet
Member for
Resources

November 
2015

Strong and 
Supportive 
Communities

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Ian Phillips
Social Inclusion 
Manager
Tel: 01733 863849
Ian.phillips@peterboro
ugh.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Vivacity Funding –
To fund Vivacity £1278
until March 2016 (via
DWP grant funding) to
provide digital support for
UC claimants to make
benefit claims online at
Central Library.

Councillor
David Seaton
Cabinet
Member for
Resources

November 
2015

Strong and 
Supportive 
Communities

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Ian Phillips
Social Inclusion 
Manager
Tel: 01733 863849
Ian.phillips@peterboro
ugh.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Budget Proposals First 
Tranche Consideration - 
To approve the 
consultation on the first 
tranche of Budget 
Proposals.

Cabinet 25 November 
2015

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Steven Pilsworth
Service Director 
Financial Services
Tel: 01733 384564
Steven.pilsworth@pete
rborough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Council Tax Support 
Scheme 2016/2017 
Consultation – To 
approve the consultation 
on the Council Tax 
Support Scheme 
2016/2017.

Cabinet 25 November 
2015

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Steven Pilsworth
Service Director 
Financial Services
Tel: 01733 384564
Steven.pilsworth@pete
rborough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

146



DECISION REQUIRED DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION

Budget Proposals First 
Tranche 
Recommendation - 
To recommend the first 
tranche of budget 
proposals to Council.

Cabinet 7 December 
2015

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant Internal 
and External 
Stakeholders

Steven Pilsworth
Service Director 
Financial Services
Tel: 01733 384564
Steven.pilsworth@pete
rborough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Council Tax Support 
Scheme 2016/2017 
Recommendation – 
To recommend the 
Council Tax Support 
scheme to Council.

Cabinet 18 January 
2016

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Steven Pilsworth
Service Director 
Financial Services
Tel: 01733 384564
Steven.pilsworth@pete
rborough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Budget Proposals 
Second Tranche 
Consideration – To 
approve the consultation 
on the second tranche of 
Budget Proposals.

Cabinet 8 February 
2016

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Steven Pilsworth
Service Director 
Financial Services
Tel: 01733 384564
Steven.pilsworth@pete
rborough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Budget Proposals 
Second Tranche 
Recommendation – 
To recommend the 
second tranche of budget 
proposals to Council.

Cabinet 29 February 
2016

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Steven Pilsworth
Service Director 
Financial Services
Tel: 01733 384564
Steven.pilsworth@pete
rborough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Local Transport Plan – 
To recommend approval 
to Council of the fourth 
Local Transport Plan.

Cabinet 18 January 
2016

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant Internal 
and External 
Stakeholders

Lewis Banks
Principal Transport 
Planning Officer
Tel: 01733 317465
Lewis.banks@peterbor
ough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

147



DECISION REQUIRED DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION

Extension to Sutton 
Conservation Area – For 
the Cabinet Member to 
approve the extension.

Councillor 
Peter Hiller
Cabinet 
Member for 
Growth, 
Planning, 
Housing and 
Economic 
Development

November 
2015

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Jim Daley
Principal Built 
Environment Officer
Tel: 01733 453522
Jim.daly@peterboroug
h.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Extension to Longthorpe 
Conservation Area – For 
the Cabinet Member to 
approve the extension.

Councillor 
Peter Hiller
Cabinet 
Member for 
Growth, 
Planning, 
Housing and 
Economic 
Development

November 
2015

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Jim Daley
Principal Built 
Environment Officer
Tel: 01733 453522
Jim.daly@peterboroug
h.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Registration of the 
Mayor’s Charity -
To approve the 
registration of the Mayor’s 
Charity with the Charity 
Commission.

Councillor 
John Holdich 
Leader of the 
Council and 
Cabinet 
Member for 
Education, 
Skills and 
University

November
2015

Creating 
Opportunities 
and Tackling 
Inequalities

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Natalie Moult
Assistant Lawyer 
(Contracts and 
Procurement)
Tel: 01733 452527
Natalie.moult@peterbo
rough.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

148



DECISION REQUIRED DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION

Vivacity Premier Fitness 
Invest to Save Scheme - 
To authorise investment in 
developing Vivacity 
Premier Fitness on an 
invest to save basis

Councillor 
David Seaton
Cabinet 
Member for 
Resources

November
2015

Creating 
Opportunities 
and Tackling 
Inequalities

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

John Harrison
Corporate Director 
Resources
Tel: 01733 452520
John.harrison@peterbo
rouh.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

The decision will include an 
exempt annexe. By virtue of 
paragraph 3, information relating 
to the financial or business 
affairs of any particular person 
(including the authority holding 
that information).

Extension of Current 
Adult Social Care 
Contracts – To approve 
the extension of Mental 
Health Employment, 
Wellbeing and Recovery 
Services contracts from 1 
October 2015 and 30 Nov 
2016 due to 
reconfiguration of the 
contract.

Councillor 
Wayne 
Fitzgerald
Deputy 
Leader and 
Cabinet 
Member for 
Integrated 
Adult Social 
Care and 
Health

November
2015

Scrutiny 
Commission 
for Health 
Issues

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Mubarak Darbar
Head of 
Commissioning 
Learning Disabilities
Tel: 01733 452509
Mubarak.darbar@peter
borough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

149



DECISION REQUIRED DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION

Delegation of Authority -
To delegate authority for 
funding governance 
arrangements for care 
placements for Looked 
After Children to the 
Service Director – 
Safeguarding and 
Children for a period of 12 
months.

Councillor 
Andy Coles
Cabinet 
Member for 
Children’s 
Services

November
2015

Creating 
Opportunities 
and Tackling 
Inequalities

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Helene Carr
Head of Service, 
Access to Resources 
and Specialist 
Commissioning 
Tel: 01733 863901
Helene.car@peterboro
gh.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Personal Budgets in 
Peterborough - 
To agree to adopt 
Peterborough’s Personal 
Budget Policy Statement 
as part of the revised 
statutory duties that apply 
to the Council as part of 
the SEND reforms, under 
the Children and Families 
Act 2014.

Councillor 
John Holdich
Leader of the 
Council and 
Cabinet 
Member for 
Education, 
Skills and 
University

November
2015

Strong and 
Supportive 
Scrutiny 
Committee

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders

Carrie Gamble
Commissioner
Tel: 01733 863931
Carrie.gamble@peterb
orough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

150



DIRECTORATE RESPONSIBILITIES

RESOURCES DEPARTMENT Executive Director's Office at Town Hall, Bridge Street, Peterborough, PE1 1HG
Strategic Finance
Internal Audit
Schools Infrastructure (Assets and School Place Planning)
Corporate Property
Waste and Energy
Strategic Client Services (Enterprise Peterborough / Vivacity / SERCO including Customer Services, ICT and Business Support)

PEOPLE AND COMMUNITIES DEPARTMENT Director’s Office at Bayard Place, Broadway, PE1 1FB
Adult Services and Communities (Adult Social Care Operations, Adult Social Care and Quality Assurance, Adult Social Care Commissioning, Early Help – Adults, 
Children and Families, Housing and Health Improvement, Community and Safety Services, Offender Services)
Children’s Services and Safeguarding (Children’s Social Care Operations, Children’s Social Care Quality Assurance, Safeguarding Boards – Adults and 
Children’s, Child Health, Clare Lodge (Operations), Access to Resources)
Education, People Resources and Corporate Property (Special Educational Needs and Inclusion, School Improvement, City College Peterborough, Pupil Referral 
Units, Schools Infrastructure)
Business Management and Commercial Operations (Commissioning, Recruitment and Retention, Clare Lodge (Commercial), Early Years and Quality 
Improvement)

GOVERNANCE DEPARTMENT Director’s Office at Town Hall, Bridge Street, Peterborough, PE1 1HG
Legal and Democratic Services 
Human Resources (Business Relations, HR Policy and Rewards, Training and Development, Occupational Health and Workforce Development)
City Services and Communications (Markets and Street Trading, City Centre Management including Events, Regulatory Services, Parking Services, Vivacity 
Contract, CCTV and Out of Hours Calls, Marketing and Communications, Tourism and Bus Station, Resilience)
Performance and Information (Performance Management, Information Governance, Systems Support Team, Coroner’s Office, Freedom of Information)

  GROWTH AND REGENERATION DEPARTMENT Director’s Office Stuart House, St Johns Street, Peterborough, PE1 5DD
Development and Construction (Development Management, Planning Compliance, Building Control)
Sustainable Growth Strategy (Strategic Planning, Housing Strategy and Affordable Housing, Climate Change and Environment Capital, Natural and Built 
Environment)
Opportunity Peterborough
Peterborough Highway Services (Network Management, Highways Maintenance, Street Naming and Numbering, Street Lighting, Design and Adoption of Roads, 
Drainage and Flood Risk Management, Transport Policy and Sustainable Transport, Public Transport)
Peterborough Investment Partnership

PUBLIC HEALTH DEPARTMENT Director’s Office at Town Hall, Bridge Street, Peterborough, PE1 1HG

151



THIS PAGE IS LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK

152



UPDATED 12 NOVEMBER 2015 2015 

STRONG AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
WORK PROGRAMME 2015/16

Meeting Date Item Notes

Strong And Supportive Communities: Introduction, Overview And 
Work Programme

To identify and discuss potential items to be added to the 2015/2016 
Work Programme.

Contact Officer:  Adrian Chapman

11 June 2015

Draft Report 22 
May
Final Report 1 
June 

Review of 2014/15 and Draft Work Programme 2015/16

To review the work undertaken during 2014/15 and make any 
recommendations for future monitoring.

Contact Officer: Dania Castagliuolo

CRIME AND DISORDER SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
Safer Peterborough Partnership - Cyber Crime 

To scrutinise the report and suggest ideas and initiatives which will 
impact on Cyber Crime. 

Contact Officer: Robin Sissons

Requested by the Committee on 14 January 2015

STRONG AND SUPPORTIVE COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

22 July 2015

Draft Report 3 
July 
Final Report 10 
July 

Portfolio Progress Report from Cabinet Member for Communities 
and Environment Capital

To scrutinise and comment on the progress of the portfolio of the 
Cabinet Member.

Contact Officer:  Wendi Ogle-Welbourn/Adrian Chapman

Annual Report from Cabinet Member 

153



UPDATED 12 NOVEMBER 2015 2015 

Meeting Date Item Notes

Visitor Economy Strategy 2015 – 2020 Progress Report 

To scrutinise the progress of the strategy and make comments before its 
submission to Cabinet.

Contact Officer: Dr Douglas Gyte
Community Asset Transfers

To scrutinise and comment on the Community Asset review.

Contact Officer: Belinda Child

Requested by the Committee on 11 June 2015

Portfolio Progress Report from Cabinet Member for Growth, 
Planning, Housing and Economic Development  

To scrutinise and comment on the progress of the portfolio of the 
Cabinet Member.

Contact Officer: Belinda Child

Annual Report from Cabinet Member 

Communities Strategy Task and Finish Group Terms of Reference 

To agree the Terms of Reference of the Task and Finish Group.

Contact Officer: Adrian Chapman
Proposed Selective Licensing Scheme for the Gladstone, Millfield, 
New England and Eastfield Areas of Peterborough

To review and scrutinise the proposed scheme and make comments 
and recommendations.

Contact Officer: Belinda Child

16 September 
2015

Draft Report 28 
August 
Final Report 4 
September 

Road Safety and progress on Operation Backfire

To scrutinise, challenge and suggest ideas on road safety. 

Contact Officer: Robin Sissons

154



UPDATED 12 NOVEMBER 2015 2015 

Meeting Date Item Notes

Portfolio Progress Report from Cabinet Member for City Centre 
Management, Culture & Tourism

To scrutinise and comment on the progress of the portfolio of the 
Cabinet Member.

Contact Officer: Lisa Roberts/Cllr Serluca

Annual Report from Cabinet Member

Community Connectors

To scrutinise the progress made by the Community Connectors and 
make recommendations

Contact Officer: Adrian Chapman

24 November 
2015

Draft Report 5 
November 
Final Report 12 
November 

Selective Licensing Consultation

To provide a formal response to the consultation.

Contact Officer: Belinda Child

26 November 
2015
(Joint Meeting 
of the Scrutiny 
Committees 
and 
Commissions) 

Budget 2016/17 and Medium Term Financial Strategy to 2025/26 
Phase One

To scrutinise the Executive’s proposals for the Budget 2016/17 and 
Medium Term Financial Plan 2025/26.

Contact Officer:  John Harrison/Steven Pilsworth 

CRIME AND DISORDER SCRUTINY COMMITTEE20 January 
2016

Draft Report 31 
December 

Safer Peterborough Partnership Plan – Refresh 

Contact Officer: Robin Sissons 

Annual Refresh

155



UPDATED 12 NOVEMBER 2015 2015 

Meeting Date Item Notes

Community Serve

Contact Officer: Adrian Chapman
City Market 

Contact Officer: Annette Joyce

Final Report 8 
January 

Communities Strategy Task and Finish Group Report

Contact Officer: Ian Phillips/Hayley Thornhill

10 February 
2016
(Joint Meeting 
of the Scrutiny 
Committees 
and 
Commissions)

Budget 2015/16 and Medium Term Financial Plan – Phase Two
To scrutinise the Executive’s proposals for the Budget 2016/17 and 
Medium Term Financial Plan.

Contact Officer:  John Harrison/Steven Pilsworth

Vivacity Annual Report 

Contact Officer: Lisa Roberts

Reviewed Annually 10 March 2016

Draft Repot 2 
March 
Final Report  9 
March Commercial Operations Plan

Contact Officer: Annette Joyce 

Reviewed Annually 

156



UPDATED 12 NOVEMBER 2015 2015 

Meeting Date Item Notes

CRIME AND DISORDER SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
Safer Peterborough Partnership Plan – Annual Refresh

Contact Officer: Robin Sissons

Reviewed Annually

157



T
his page is intentionally left blank

158


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Meeting held on 16 September 2015
	5 Portfolio Progress Report: Cabinet Member for City Centre Management, Culture and Tourism
	5. Saturday stops Annex A

	6 Selective Licensing Consultation
	6. SL - Appendix 1
	6. Appendix 2
	6. Appendix 3
	6. Appendix 4
	6. Appendix 5
	6. SL - Appendix 6
	6. SL - Appendix 7
	6. SL - Appendix 8

	7 Community Connectors
	7. Community Connectors - Appendix 1 - FINAL

	8 Forward Plan of Executive Decisions
	8. Appendix 1 - Forward Plan of Executive Decisions

	9 Work Programme 2015/2016



